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SECTION I. CORPORATE POLICY
A. RBCCI's Vision and Mission Statements

VISION

The Rural Bank of Calbayog City, Incorporated (RBCCI), exhibiting integrity, Competence, and compassion,
aims to be the leading rural bank in the Samar Island and a catalyst for financial growth in the countryside that
uplifts the standard of living of its people.

MISSION
The Rural Bank of Calbayog City, Incorporated (RBCCI) is committed to providing financial products and
services at reasonable rates and terms to promote business opportunities to micro small and medium
enterprises, to develop agricultural livelihood projects, and to provide technical support and assistance to

agricultural reform beneficiaries and encourage agribusiness as alternative livelihood.

Towards this end, RBCCI shall provide quality service that will meet and exceed its clients’ expectations
to ensure that RBCCl becomes their bank of choice.
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B. Introduction of RBCCl's Brand Compared to Other Banks

The Rural Bank of Calbayog City, Incorporated (RBCCI) was founded on O7 February 1959 with the late
Hermenegildo R. Rosales at its helm as the Chairman of the Board, came together with the intention of assisting
the agricultural and aquaculture sectors.

RBCCI maintained the distinction being the first bank in the City of Calbayog as well as in the Province of
Samar. Incorporated with an authorized capital of Php 50,000.00, this “seed” money was more than sufficient
to assist the farmers, fishermen and other small businesses. Its main thrust was to improve the quality of the
Samarenos’ lives by offering finance assistance and technical know-how regarding the business or project they
would like to embark on.

In addition to providing financial assistance to those who require it, RBCCl also provides depository
services to its clientele. Such a facility not only provides security measure for the bank, but at the same time, it
provides an investment opportunity to its depositors through its earned interest on their respective monies.

Owing its continued existence and success to the communities served by the bank, RBCCI in return takes
part in social responsibilities like giving contribution to various disaster-relief programs, socio-civic activities
and charitable institutions.

Rural development emerged as a distinct focus of policy and research in 1950's and gained full
momentum in 1970’s when Universal and Commercial Banks (UCBs) started their venture in Calbayog. Whereas
economic growth and industrialization were important, rural areas and its development had crucial and different
roles to play. Moreover, it also entails more than the development of agricultural production — which was the
primary objective of RBCCI.
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Meanwhile, Calbayog has paced its development with employment opportunities, amenities, education,
business establishments and the density of population has gradually increased over the years. Looking at the
current market of the banking industry, two things to be considered were identified. First, the broader and
larger macroeconomic picture, and secondly, a more focused view on the investments and improvements of
software programs and hardware technologies and how the management can harness the specified
considerations to the bank’s advantage.

With continuous development of rural economy and development demand, banks have become the
important element to develop new economy.

From its humble beginnings, RBCCI has steadily moved on an upward growth trend to obtain its present
stature. In February 2019, RBCCI celebrated its 60th Anniversary with total resources of more than One
Hundred Forty-Three Million Pesos (Php 143 million) with a total capitalization of more than Thirty-Seven Million
Pesos (Php 37 million) plus retained earnings with over Fourteen Million Pesos (Php 14 million) which has been
strengthened by the increase in the number of branches/extension office in the Province of Samar.
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C. RBCCl's Business Model

Rural banks (RBs) are an important force of supporting rural economic development. Its development can
help construct healthier and more diversified rural financial system, effectively improve overall financial
environment of rural development and solve financial repression problem that herein exist.

Familiarity, with the grassroots of rural community a rural bank serves, is the fundamental strength of a
rural bank. However, familiarity — even if it's an advantage — may not be enough to guarantee its operational
viability. A need for financial services will always exist and it is incumbent upon the bank to develop products
and services that can address the requirements of its constituents, and this reflects the banks’ responsibility to
be portals of economic improvement.

To continuously promote and facilitate orderly development of rural economy and solve financing difficulty
of rural areas in development process, RBCCI has planned to participate in various government lending programs
that will mitigate the bank'’s possible risks and improve the RBCCl's performance by actively participating as an
avenue to make successful government financing programs, while simultaneously ensuring decent profits and
maintaining the fine balance between growth and quality. To achieve these objectives, the RBCCI intends to
evolve itself in government-initiated programs. These objectives are reviewed periodically and adjusted as
necessary, in order to guarantee a high level of service quality, as follows:

1. To stimulate and promote the circulation of money in the City of Calbayog as well as its
neighboring cities;

2. To be a vital member of the Region’s progress by expanding the operational territories of the
Bank by providing quality banking service and job opportunities; and

3. To provide a unique difference in the communities served by acting with the highest standards
of integrity, participating in the community development programs.
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Meanwhile, RBCCI generates its revenues through various channels, primarily focusing on aggressive
collection of loan receivables and the sale of acquired and foreclosed properties. These activities help to ensure
the bank's financial stability and profitability.

By offering these diverse products and services, RBCCI aims to shifting of its planned paradigm — from

usual high-volume lending programs to focusing on high-yielding investment partnered with the government
programs.
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B. List of Major Stockholders'

Below are the Top 10 stockholders of the Bank:

oy | NYEEROF - PeRCEMAGE o
1. Sarmiento, Alan Giles Mary S. Filipino 52,856 21.14%
2. Rosales, Olivia C. Filipino 27,682 11.07%
3. Santos, Milagros R. Filipino 24,486 9.79%
4. Schnable, Carmina R. Filipino 22,462 8.98%
5. Santos, Ma. Rosario R. Filipino 15,976 6.39%
6. Rosales, Bienvenido Filipino 10,436 4.17%
7. Corrales, Felipa Maxima V. Filipino 10,000 4.00%
8. Santos, Ma. Fatima R. Filipino 9,580 3.83%
9. Morales, Ma. Isabel Dolores S. Filipino 8,080 3.23%
10. Santos, Maria Milagros R. Filipino 7,080 2.83%

1 Stockholders owning more than 20% of voting shares of stock or which enables such stockholder to elect, or be elected as, a director of the Bank.
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C. Products and Services Offered

RBCCI offers a variety of products and services to cater to the needs of its clients. These include savings
accounts, credit accommodations such as real estate and chattel mortgages, agricultural loans, salary loans, and
business loans. The bank also facilitates bills payment for SAMELCO 1 (Samar Electric Cooperative 1) and
provides ATM/POS transactions for added convenience.

e Savings Accounts
1. Regular Savings
There are two types of regular savings accounts: personal accounts and juridical accounts. Under
personal accounts are individual, joint, student and ITF accounts while on the juridical accounts
are partnership, association/organization and corporation accounts. Each classification shall earn
an interest of 0.025% per annum upon reaching a required balance and shall be credited to their
account on a quarterly basis.

2. Special/Smart Savings
With required minimum deposit of TEN THOUSAND PESOS (Php 10,000.00) a depositor can open
a smart savings deposit. The account shall earn interest depending to its balance and shall be
credited at least on a monthly basis or depositor's discretion, they may opt to choose
(Quarterly/Semi-Annually/Annually).

3. Time Deposit
With required minimum deposit of TEN THOUSAND PESOS (Php 10,000.00) a depositor can open
a time deposit account. The same with the preceding item, this account shall earn interest
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depending to its balance and shall be credited at least on a monthly basis or at depositor’s
discretion, they may opt to choose (Quarterly/Semi-Annually/Annually).

¢ Loans and Other Credit Accommodations

1.

Other Agricultural Loans

This type of loan is available to eligible borrowers for financing capital requirements to enhance
the efficiency, productivity, and profitability of agricultural-related businesses. If unsecured, the
loan limit is Php 200,000 and the loan term is up to 5 years. If secured, the loan can be up to
60% of the appraised value with a term of up to 10 years.

. Salary Loans

Salary Loans are generally unsecured, it is available for various consumption purposes for up to
Php 200,000.00. It is granted to individuals with regular employment status based on their
regular salary, pension, or other fixed compensation, and is limited to borrowers under 60 years
old with a net take home pay of not less than Php 7,500.00.

. Business Loans

Business loans, either secured or unsecured, can be generally classified as Microfinance Loans or
Small and Medium Loans. Microfinance loans including Pondo sa Pagbabago at Pag-asenso (P3)
Loan, a government initiative which is aimed at facilitating access to affordable alternative
financing is payable until five years for microfinance loans, improvement/repairs are limited to
Php 150,000 loanable amount and until fifteen years for construction and lot acquisition is limited
to Php 300,000 loanable amount. Borrowers for this type of loan should not be older than 60
years old for unsecured loan and not older than 70 years old for secured type of business loan.
Meanwhile, the loanable amount for Small and Medium Loan is limited to amount at 10% of the
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assets for small enterprises (assets size of Php 3 million to Php 15 million) and medium
enterprises (asset size of Php 15 million to Php 100 million). The same loan type is available to
borrowers with the same eligibility as the borrowers for Microfinance Loans.

. Other Loans

a) Housing Loans
Housing Loan refers to Low-Cost Housing program initiated by RBCCl aimed at providing
access to affordable and quality housing. Eligible borrowers should not be older than
60 years old for unsecured type and 70 years old for secured housing loan with a
loanable amount ceiling determined by the bank based on the repayment capacity of
eligible borrowers.

b) Real Estate Loans
Real estate loans are partially secured by nature where a borrower obtains funds without
offering any specific property. He/she may offer his/her property title/s as attachment to
his/her loan application. Age restriction, financial situation and repayment capabilities
are carefully considered to qualify for this type of loan.

¢) Gadget Loans
Gadget loans allow borrowers to purchase electronic devices through instalment
payment. It comes with fixed monthly payments over a predetermined period, with
interest rates and terms varying depending on the lender and the borrower's
creditworthiness. Age restriction, financial situation and repayment capabilities are
carefully considered to qualify for this type of loan.

d) Others
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Other loan products encompass a diverse range of financial instruments tailored to
specific needs beyond real estate and gadgets. These include personal loans, motorcycle
loans, among others. Personal loans offer funds for various purposes, from consolidating
debt to covering unexpected expenses, typically based on the borrower's
creditworthiness. Motorcycle purchases, providing financing options for new or used
motorcycles, with terms ranging from a few years to a decade.

o Bills Payment

The bank now offers a convenient service for SAMELCO 1 consumers: paying electricity bills incurs a
minimal charge of Php 5.00 per transaction. Additionally, depositors and other clienteles can easily make
payments or withdrawals through POS transactions for a fee of Php 20.00 per transaction.

D. RBCCl's Website

Website:  https://rbcalbayog.com/

Social Media Pages:
Facebook: https://www.facebook.com/profile.Php?id=100086306274335
YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/@ruralbankofcalbayogcityinc1720
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E. List of Banking Units

RBCCI operates through multiple branches and branch-lite offices. The bank's main office serves as the

central hub, while the two branches are located in Sta. Margarita and Allen. Additionally, there are two branch-
lite offices known as the Money Shop Branch-lite Office and the Oquendo Branch-lite Office.

Calbayog Main Branch — All operational aspects are available in the main branch. All types of
Savings accounts and time deposits. The main branch is the only office that provides loan
processing and approval.

Address: 82T Bugallon St. Brgy. Central (Poblacion), Calbayog City, W. Samar, 6710
Contact Details:

Landline: (055) 209-1265 | (055) 209-1407 | (055) 209-2541
Accounting: 0965-308-7958
Loans: 0965-308-7892
Collection: 0916-834-7200

Compliance and Internal Audit: 0965-746-2763

Branches other than the Main Branch — All types of Savings accounts and time deposits. Loan
applications and loan payments are also accepted.

Sta. Margarita Branch
Address: Brgy. Cautod, Sta. Margarita, W. Samar, 6709
Contact Details: 0997-155-5070

Allen Branch
Address: Rizal St., Brgy. Sabang 1, Allen, N. Samar, 6405
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Contact Details: 0916-648-6683

¢ Branch-lite Offices — All types of Savings accounts and time deposits, as well as loan payments
are accepted.

Ogquendo Branch-lite Unit
Address: Brgy. Oquendo (Poblacion) Calbayog City, W. Samar, 6710
Contact Details: 0935-141-2430

Money Shop Branch-lite Unit
Address: Brgy. Bagacay, Calbayog City, W. Samar, 6710
Contact Details: 0997-155-5070

For all concerns, queries, and complaints, clients may contact any of the foregoing contact numbers or
send an email to customercare@rbcalbayogcity.com .
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SECTION Ill. FINANCIAL SUMMARY / HIGHLIGHTS?

MINIMUM REQUIRED ARENMEAI(56R0)
DATA Current Year Previous Year

(2023) (2022)

Total Net Interest Income | Php 12,259,171.00 | Php 11,077,712.00

Total Non-interest 12,104,179.00 3,667,524.00

Income

Total Non-interest 16,213,286.00 13,046,862.00

Expense

Pre-provision Profit 8,150,064.00 1,698,374.00

Provision for Income Tax 1,266,979.00 352,468.00

Allowance for Credit 11,671,614.00 14,666,137.00

Losses (GLLP and SLLP)

Net Income Php 6,883,085.00 | Php 1,345,906.00

Return on Equity (ROE) 14.19% 3.03%

Return on Assets (ROA) 3.47% 0.71%

Net Interest Margin 6.72% 6.27%

2 As provided in the submitted Audited Financial Statements 31 December 2023, following Section 174 of the MORB.
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B. Capital Ratios, including the components of capital adequacy and requirements

PARENT BANK (SOLO)
MINIMUM REQUIRED DATA Current Year Previous Year
(2023) (2022)
Tier 1 Capital Ratio 30.64% 19.25%
Tier 2 Capital Ratio 0.41% 0.30%
Capital Adequacy Ratio 31.05% 19.55%

Components of Tier 1:

CET 1 Capital:

Paid-up Common Stock

Php 20,000,000.00

Php 20,000,000.00

Retained Earnings

26,881,656.00

21,114,889.00

Deductions from CET 1:

Deferred Tax Asset

(25,346.00)

(111,126.00)

Total CET 1 Capital

Php 46,856,310.00

Php 41,003,763.00

Additional Tier 1:

Paid-up Preferred Stock

5,000,000.00

4,005,000.00

Total Tier 1

Php 51,856,310.00

Php 45,008,763.00

Components of Tier 2:

General Loan Loss Provision

P 691,600.00

P 691,600.00

Deductions from Tier 2

0.00

0.00

Total Tier 2

Php 691,600.00

Php 691,600.00

Total Qualifying Capital

Php 52,547,910.00

Php 45,700,363.00
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Capital Requirements Net Carrying Amount | Risk Weighted Amount
For Year 2023:
Credit Risk
0% Risk Weight Php 30,687,832.00 Php 0.00
20% Risk Weight 0.00 0.00

50% Risk Weight

28,171,177.00

14,085,588.00

75% Risk Weight

18,873,061.00

14,154,796.00

100% Risk Weight

1,223,722.00

1,223,722.00

150% Risk Weight

11,931,631.00

17,897,446.00

100% Risk Weight
(Other Assets)

102,694,051.00

102,694,051.00

Total Credit Risk-Weighted

Assets

Php 193,581,475.00

Php150,055,604.00

Capital Charge (10% of Credit RWA)

Php 15,005,560.40

Market Risk:

Php 0.00 |

Php 0.00 |

Operational Risk:

Average Gross Income for the Past Three Years® (2020-

Php 13,236,014.00

2022)
Capital Charge (12% of ave. gross income) 1,588,322.00
Adjusted Capital Charge by 125% 1,985,402.00

Total Operational Risk-Weighted Assets
(adj. capital charge multiply by 10)

Php 19,854,021.00

Total Risk Weighted Assets Php 169,909,625.00

3 Based on the 2020 to 2022 Audited Financial Statements submitted.
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MINIMUM REQUIRED L2 N0 L0)
DATA Current Year Previous Year
(2023) (2022)

Liquid Assets Php 187,335,269.00 | Php 198,910,721.00
Gross Loans 103,724,861.00 80,915,979.00
Total Assets 192,889,765.00 203,421,739.00
Deposits 136,444,153.00 146,638,029.00
Total Equity Php 51,881,656.00 Php 45,119,889.00
Ratio of qul:IId Assets 137.30% 135.65%

Over Deposits

Debt to Equity Ratio 271.79% 350.85%

Past Due Ratio 20.39% 33.46%

C. Performance Ratios
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SECTION IV. FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

“Together we will grow” — this newly proposed tagline emerged from the
latest strategic planning session conducted by the Board in anticipation of
2024. While on the surface, this phrase may seem innocuous and
commonplace, a closer examination reveals its profound relevance as an
appropriate depiction of the bank's accomplishments over the past five years.
It will undeniably remain the driving mantra as we navigate the latter half of
this decade.

In 2018, just as the economic landscape was looking very bright, our
loan portfolio was at Php 67.89 million increasing to Php 80.21 million in
2020, despite the pandemic induced fiscal reduction and now currently stands
at Php 114.45 million.

2018 was an opportunistic year and our assets stood at Php136 million
rising to Php 155 million, a testament to the resilient nature of the bank’s
performance and are now at Php 223 million, a certain sign of the continuing
growth of the bank. Capital grew from Php 37.51 million in 2018, inching higher to Php 39.21 million in 2020
and finally bursting at a healthy Php 50.39 million in 2023. All this was achieved with minimal investment
intervention but rather through ever improving performance.

To further fuel the bank’s progress and in conjunction with its new tagline, a conscious establishment of
customer centric and proactive programs simultaneously with the introduction of new products and deliberate
transition into the digital landscape, we are confident that indeed “Together We Will Grow”.
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B. Report of the President and CEO

Before we examine the financial report, | extend my heartfelt thanks
for your steadfast support. Your investment and its Return on Investment
are paramount.

| am delighted to announce that for the last three years (2021-2023),
we have consistently distributed dividends. This year marks a significant
achievement as we declare a record dividend of Php 1.25 million. Following
a 10% tax deduction, this dividend will be disbursed on 21 February 2024.
In 2023, the dividend payout is Php 5 per share. Management and the
board are committed to aiming for a dividend between Php 10 and Php 12
per share, equating to a 10-12% annual ROI for both common and preferred
shares starting in 2024.

Financial Reports

Going back to 2015, our capital stood at Php 34.5 million, and we faced a challenging Php 1.6-million
loss. This setback became the catalyst for the Board and Management to strive for greater heights. Last year,
we achieved our highest gross income of Php 25.6 million, with a taxable income of Php 8.4 million and saw
our capital grow from Php 34.5 million to Php 50.329 million in 2023 — an impressive achievement for our
institution.
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The bar graphs below show the comparative financial performance of the Bank from 2015, 2022, and
2023 as well as the comparative projection and actual financial analysis.

Comparative Income (2015, 2022, 2023) Projected Income vs. Actual Income

Projected & Actual

Income
for C.Y. 2023

INC LOSS

for C.Y. 2023

Income , Expense &Net ,
OME / ‘

* CALBAYOG (1T *

u INCOME o EXPENSE W NET PROFIT/LOSS PHILIPPNL
1236912023

200 - 10365108

B 156741686

1481151677
02 14,131,957.61

B 1961906

25560,261.05
202 19,046,440.55

N 651382650

30,000,000 PILIPPINYS

25,000,000

PROJECTED:
19,220,327.68
15,000,000

ACTUAL: 19,220,327.68
95,560.267.00

5,000,000

20,000,000

25,560,267.00

PROJECTED ACTUAL

1]

Of course, we do not intend to stop there. Moving forward, we aspire to reach even greater financial
milestones, aiming to set new benchmarks and elevate our income to unprecedented heights.
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Reflecting on the financial operations of the Bank for the previous years, particularly in 2015 when the
past due ratio skyrocketed to 57% and heavily skewed towards unsecured loans, the Board and the
Management focused on growing the loan portfolio in 2023, a significant shift resulting to a substantial increase
in the total loan portfolio to Php 114 million with 90% secured loans by 2023 and improving bad debt

collection.
LOAN
STATUS 2015 2023
Current Php 17,350,454.75 | 40.3% | Php 91,253,469.40 | 79.6%
Pas Due 24,505,163.64 | 56.9% 14,888,580.79 13%
Litigation 1,200,380.88 | 2.79% 8,484,215.96 | 7.4%
TOTAL | Php 43,055,999.27 Php 114,626,266.15
LOAN
RELEASES 2015 2023
Secured Php 0.00 0% | Php 67,630,035.11 | 92.3%
Unsecured 7,287,000.00 | 100% 5,623,305.68 | 7.67%
TOTAL | Php 7,287,000.00 Php 73,253,340.68

The reduction of past due loans is crucial to the bank’s performance and profitability and the continued
reduction of the ratio is a directive of the BSP and to conform with the industry standard at 25%.

The breakdown above indicates that the majority of the loan portfolio is current, with 79.61% of loans

being actively serviced without issues. The past due loans are divided into non-performing and ITL categories,
with 7.96% and 7.40% respectively.
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The figure below will help the understand the health and risk exposure of the loan portfolio per security:

BREAKDOWN OF BREAKDOWN OF
LOAN PORTFOLIO LOAN PORTFOLIO

STATUS PER SECURITY STATUS PER SECURITY

Current
CURRENT
ot
o
$4,974,529.25

NON-PERFORMING

A
Non

0 .
61.81% Performing NON-PERFORMING
£6,889,258.97
— . CURRENT
3111Al Current £3,467,917.97

PAST DUE PERFORMING

It can be gleaned from the figure above that the secured loans dominantly represent current accounts
showing 84.83% while 61.81% of the unsecured loans comprise non-performing loans, which increases the
credit risk of the Bank on unsecured loans.

Due this, the Board and the Management opted to avoid the salary loan, seeking to recover the old past
accounts arising from the old management.

Page | 27




[TEM

SECURED:
No. Of Accounts

Total Amounts
UNSECURED:

No. Of Accounts

Total Amounts

2023 LOAN RELEASE:

No. Of Accounts
Total Amounts

GROSS LOAN
Amounts

i
PROJECTED

29
15,000,000

13,000,000

10
30,000,000

110,000,000

!

ACTUAL

©

’oT0 TARGET

196.00%
450.87%

113.33%

37.49%

142.86%

244.18%

114,626,266.15

104.21%

The projections serve as a key performance
indicator offering into how closely the bank actual
results align with the banks initial projection.

The loan performance for 2023 exceeded
expectations in several key areas. The bank projected
a total loan amount of Php 110 million but achieved
an actual loan portfolio of Php 114.63 million,
surpassing the target by 4.21%. This demonstrates
a positive variance, indicating that the bank
exceeded its loan target by Php 4 million.
Additionally, the actual loan releases for the year
amounted to Php 67 million. In addition, secured
loans saw remarkable growth, with the number of
accounts reaching 49, nearly doubling the projected
25 accounts. The total amount for secured loans was
Php 67.63 million, a significant 450.87% of the
target, reflecting the bank's aggressive lending
strategy. Unsecured loans also performed well in
terms of the number of accounts, exceeding the
target by 13.33% with 51 accounts compared to the
projected 45. However, the total amount for
unsecured loans was Php 5.62 million, achieving
only 37.49% of the target, indicating a more
conservative approach in unsecured lending.
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As for the cash (deposit) operations, the Bank easily reached the Php 6.5 million deposit target, with
actual amount of Php 16.765 million for 2023, although it fell short in terms of the projection on the number
of newly opened accounts. This achievement is attributed, not only due to the required opening for new loans,
but also due to the increased good reputation of the Bank raising the bar for trust and confidence.

PROJECTED & ACTUAL
DEPOSIT YEAR 2023

PROJECTED & ACTUAL

AMOUNT PROJECTED & ACTUAL
20,000,000 ACCOUNTS

300
15,000,000 250
200
10,000,000
150
19 267
6.500,000 8 16,765,770
50
0
PROJECTED ACTUAL 0

PROJECTED ACTUAL

* CALBAYOG CITY *

PRI S
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Speaking of the Bank's reputation, the Management is actively investing effort into enhancing it, as
evidenced by the ongoing renovations of the building. The updated look now exudes a more contemporary
appearance compared to its previous state.

@m calbayog City

rRBCCI &% == |
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SECTION V. RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

A. Overall Risk Management Culture and Philosophy

Banking is in the business of managing risks. Risk is the exposure to loss that may have an adverse impact
on the Bank's capital and earnings. They are usually unavoidable, but the consequences can be prevented.
Sometimes it is exposure to the consequences of risks that needs to be managed rather than exposure to risks

themselves.

A complete risk management cycle consists of identifying, analyzing, capturing, measuring, controlling,
managing, re-evaluating, reporting and disclosing the risks and the possible consequences involved.

The main risks that RBCCl has identified in its operations are credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk,
operational risk and compliance risk. These risks are managed with the overall objective of maintaining financial
soundness and avoiding activities that could threaten the Bank’s reputation.

The Bank’s risk management framework comprises of risk policies and procedures formulated for each of
the risks identified to assess, measure, monitor, and report risks including several layers of limits set to manage
the exposure to quantifiable risks. RBCCI recognizes that effective risk management is based on a sound risk
culture which is characterized, among others, by a high level of awareness concerning risk and management in
the organization. Regular training of staff in risk-related matters is part of the Bank'’s risk management practice.
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B. Risk Governance Structure

Successful implementation of the risk management process emanates from the top with the demonstration
of its strong commitment to integrate basic operations and strategic decision-making in risk management. Thus,
the Board of Directors (BoD) and Senior Management should have adequate understanding of how the Bank’s
risk profile is affected by varied factors.

vedei In general, RBCCl's BoD is responsible for establishing the Bank'’s risk
W appetite and tolerance under normal and stressed scenarios, for the approval
cota naighil of strategic and action plans, providing sufficient support for the
Risk Governance . . . . .
S e resonsiie implementation of the approved plans, and oversight on the implementation
Business:ndsu'ategms:k;:d\tmsk,erk!tﬂlsk, of the same.
Liquidity Risk, Operational Risk, Reputational Risk and
Compliance Risk
Guidelines, Instructions, Rating Frameworks, process . . . . .
e On the other, President and CEO is responsible for managing the risk

profile of the Bank within the framework set and for ensuring that the Bank’s
aggregate risk is consistent with its financial resources and willingness to take risk. In addition, he shall report
to the BoD all major/high risk deficiencies and changes to policies, procedures and/or processes to correct,
revise and/or create a policy, procedure and/or process to be included in the RBCC Policies and Procedures
Manual, addressing the noted findings/non-conformities.

As for the Compliance Officer and Internal Audit Head, they shall be responsible in conducting

independent reviews and assessment to ensure that all regulatory requirements are complied with, and
established policies and procedures are followed in all levels of the Bank. Likewise, they shall be responsible in
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reporting all findings and/or non-conformities noted to the Internal Control and Audit (Compliance) (ICAC)
Committee for appropriate actions.

Lastly, Section Heads and their subordinates shall be responsible in monitoring the Bank’s day-to-day
operations, implementing the approved strategic and/or action plans and reporting to President and CEO any
indicators, triggers, or breaches of risk appetite and tolerance affecting the Bank.

C. Risk Management Process

RBCCI has identified the following risks in its operations, which shall be managed with the overall objective
of maintaining financial soundness and avoiding activities that threatens the Bank’s operations: business and
strategic, credit, market and investment, interest rate, liquidity, operational, compliance, and reputational risks.
In addition to defining, documenting and updating the relevant policies and procedures, the Bank has
developed, implemented, and maintains risk management framework for each of the foregoing identified risks
as outlined in its RBCC Policies and Procedures Manual Chapter 10, which provides strategic direction and
guidelines to ensure effective risk management. The frameworks provide comprehensive capture of data
elements needed to measure and verify the risk exposures as well as implementing appropriate reporting
systems and mitigation strategies.

As to measurement of identified risks, a 3X3 matrix is maintained and used by multiplying the ratings
based on the probability and severity criteria.
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As a rule, the ratings used shall be 1 to 3, with 1 as the low risk and 3 being the high risk. Unlike the
probability criterion, severity has four (4) factors, namely: financial, client, legal and regulatory, and reputation.
Each severity factor shall be assessed using the aforesaid matrix.

D. Risk Appetite and Strategy

RBCCl'’s ability to take risks depends on its risk-bearing capacity, considers the various risk types and is
operationalized via thresholds, policies, processes, and controls. Establishing a strong risk culture and effective
risk governance framework is essential for managing risk effectively and within acceptable levels. Portfolio risk
limits for the quantifiable risk types are cascaded and other significant risk aspects are guided by qualitative
expression of principles to ensure that the Bank’s risk-taking activities are conducted in a controlled and
transparent manner.

The following factors are used to determine the appetite of the Bank to ensure that the risk-taking
activities align with its overall business objectives and regulatory requirements.
1. Capital Adequacy by ensuring that the Bank maintains the sufficient capital requirements to
absorb potential losses arising from its risk-taking activities;

2. Asset Quality by assessing the quality of the Bank's assets such as the performance of loan
portfolio and the creditworthiness of the borrowers;

3. Liguidity Management by maintaining the liquidity position enabling the Bank to meet its
obligations as they fall due and ensuring to withstand liquidity stress scenarios;

4. Operational Risk by ensuring the continuity of business operations within the acceptable risk
parameters for internal processes, systems, external events, and even people;
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5. Compliance Risk by continuing to adhere with the regulatory requirements outlining acceptable
levels of exposure in different areas such as capital, credit, liquidity, and operational risk, in
addition to other standards fundamental for Rural Banks which if not complied may result to
imposition of penalties, reputational damage, and other legal consequences; and

6. Strategic Risk by ensuring that the Bank'’s risk appetite aligns with the Bank’s strategic objectives
and business model.

To reiterate, RBCCI has identified the following risks in its operations, which shall be managed with the
overall objective of maintaining financial soundness and avoiding activities that threatens the Bank’s operations:
business and strategic, credit, market and investment, interest rate, liquidity, operational, compliance, and
reputational risks.

. Practices Implemented to Mitigate and/or Prevent ML/TF Risks

To protect the Bank’s integrity against unscrupulous perpetuators of money laundering activities, RBCCI
created policies, procedures, and controls to combat money laundering and prevent terrorist financing, which
shall serve as a tool for its employees, officers, as well as the BoD, in performing their duties and responsibilities.

As provided in the Bank's policies and procedures manual, particularly under Chapter 12, and in
compliance to Section 905 of the MORB, the following policies shall be adhered to combat money laundering:
1. Use of anonymous, fictitious names or coded accounts unless otherwise permitted under any
existing laws shall not be allowed nor kept by RBCCI;
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2. Conduct business in conformity with high ethical standards in order to protect its safety and
soundness as well as the integrity of the national banking and financial system;

3. Sufficiently know your customer at all times and ensure that the financially or socially
disadvantaged are not denied access to financial services while at the same time prevent

suspicious individuals or entities from opening or maintaining an account or transacting with the
Bank;

4. Adopt and effectively implement a sound AML and terrorist financing risk management system
that identifies, assesses, monitors and controls risks associated with money laundering and
terrorist financing;

5. Equip bank personnel awareness on money laundering activities and provide training programs
in combating the same;

6. Comply fully with existing laws aimed at combating money laundering and terrorist financing by
making sure that officers and employees are aware of their respective responsibilities and carry
them out in accordance with superior and principled culture of compliance;

7. Act promptly and treat with utmost confidentiality all requests for information and/or documents,
as well as orders, to provide customer records pursuant to the AMLC’s functions to investigate
or conduct bank inquiry; and

8. Fully cooperate with AMLC for the effective implementation and enforcement of the AMLA, as
amended, and its RIRR.

Furthermore, preventive measures are put in place as added layer against money laundering and terrorist
financing activities such as, but not limited to, customer due diligence, record keeping, and transaction reporting.
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Customer Due Diligence is mandatory in several instances such as when establishing new relationships,
conducting occasional significant transactions for non-regular clients, when suspicions of money laundering or
terrorist financing arise, or when existing identification data is in doubt. To comply with regulatory standards,
RBCCI has implemented robust systems, methods, and internal controls, varying based on customer type,
business relationship, and the nature of transactions. The process includes:

a. Customer Identification
This involves face-to-face contact at the outset of the relationship, or as soon as feasible,
ensuring minimal disruption to business operations. Information and Communication Technology

may assist in these procedures, provided that the Bank is in possession of and has verified the

identification documents submitted by the prospective Client prior to the interview and that the

entire procedure is documented.

b. Verification of Beneficial Owners
When transactions are conducted on behalf of others, the Bank verifies the identities of both
the account holder and the beneficial owner. This includes determining their roles and
responsibilities through documented evidence, applying enhanced diligence if suspicions of
misuse arise.

c. Politically Exposed Persons (PEP)
Special measures are in place for PEPs and their relatives or associated entities, including
senior management approval for business relationships, and ongoing monitoring to assess risks.
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d. Risk Assessment
Each client is evaluated based on various criteria such as the nature and purpose of their
transactions, the amount and regularity of funds involved, and whether they originate from high-
risk jurisdictions or exhibit suspicious transaction indicators. Clients are categorized into low,
normal, or high risk, with corresponding levels of due diligence applied.

e. Ongoing Monitoring
Regular updates of customer information occur at least every three years, or more frequently
if risks warrant it. Enhanced due diligence is triggered by new information indicating potential
inaccuracies, increased risk status, or suspicious transaction indicators.

As for Record Keeping, the Bank maintains meticulous records of customer identification and transaction
documents. These records are securely stored for a minimum of five years from the transaction dates, ensuring
they can be reconstructed as needed to provide evidence for potential legal proceedings against illicit activities,
except in the following instances:

a. Retention During Legal Proceedings
If a court case involves an account, records pertaining to that account must be retained beyond
the standard five-year period. They are kept until officially confirmed by the AMLC Secretariat that
the case has been conclusively resolved, decided, or terminated.

b. Closed Accounts
Even after accounts are closed, the Bank retains and safely stores records of customer
identification and transactions for at least five years from the closure dates.
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c. Record Format

All records are preserved in their original form or in formats that are legally admissible in
court.

Electronic copies of covered and suspicious transaction reports submitted to the AMLC are also archived
for at least five years from the submission dates. For clients categorized as Low Risk, the Bank maintains and
stores records of customer information and transactions in any form deemed appropriate.

Lastly, in accordance with stringent anti-money laundering regulations, the Bank mandates reporting of
transactions that meet specific criteria to the Anti-Money Laundering Council (AMLC). Transactions exceeding
Five Hundred Thousand Pesos (Php 500,000.00) within one banking day are classified as covered transactions.
Additionally, any transaction flagged with suspicious indicators outlined in regulatory guidelines, regardless of
amount, is categorized as a suspicious transaction.

Upon identifying a suspicious transaction, the Bank must promptly determine its suspicious nature within
ten calendar days from the transaction date, unless the transaction is linked to unlawful activities or money
laundering, in which case the timeline starts from the Bank's awareness. All covered and suspicious transactions
must be reported to the AMLC within five working days, unless specified otherwise by the AMLC, not exceeding
fifteen working days.

In Reporting of Covered and Suspicious Transactions, the following guidelines shall be observed:
a. Substance and Form of Reports
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The Bank shall ensure the accuracy and completeness of covered and suspicious transaction
reports, which shall be filed in the forms prescribed by the AMLC and be submitted in a secured
manner to the AMLC in electronic form.

b. Confidentiality of Reporting
The Bank and any of its employees and bank Officers are prohibited from communicating,
directly or indirectly, in any manner or by any means, to any person or entity, or the media, the
fact that a covered or suspicious transaction has been or is about to be reported, the contents of
the report, or any other information in relation thereto.

Furthermore, any information about such reporting shall not be published or aired, in any
manner or form, by the mass media, or through electronic mail, or other similar devices. In case
of violation thereof, the concerned employee and/or bank Officer shall be held criminally liable.

c. Exemption to Confidentiality of Reporting
The Bank and any of its employees and bank Officers shall not be deemed to have violated
the law on secrecy of bank deposits and other similar laws when reporting covered and suspicious
transactions to AMLC. In the same manner, no administrative, criminal or civil proceedings shall
lie against any person for having made a covered or suspicious transaction report in the regular
performance of his duties and in good faith, whether or not such reporting results in any criminal
prosecution under the AMLA or any other Philippine law.

The foregoing measures and practices underscores the Bank's commitment to regulatory compliance,

ensuring transparency, accountability, and integrity in its transactions as well as the prevention of money
laundering and other related and predicated crimes.
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SECTION VI. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A. Overall Corporate Governance Structure and Practices

The corporate governance is a critical component of sound strategic business management and, therefore,
the Board of Directors (BoD) and Management of the Rural Bank of Calbayog City, Inc. (RBCCI) will undertake
every effort necessary to create awareness within the organization to ensure that the principles of fairness,
accountability and transparency are indispensable in conducting the day-to-day business of the bank.

Pursuant to Section 15 and 17 of RA. No. 8791, as stipulated under Section 132 of the MORB 2020,
RBCCI shall have at least five (5) directors, and a maximum of fifteen (15) members to ensure that the number
thereof is commensurate to the size and complexity of the BSFI's operations.

RBCCI'S BoD operates with significant independence from its management which consists of five (5)
directors, namely:

1. The Chairman of the Board, a non-executive position, as appointed by the members of the
BoD;

2. The President and CEO, an executive director of RBCCI, appointed separately from the
Chairman of the Board;

3. An Independent Director, having no interest or relationship with RBCCI at the time of election,
appointment or re-election; and

4. Directors, elected annually by RBCCI stockholders during its Annual Stockholders Meeting held
every January.
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B. Selection Process for the Board and Senior Management

Identifying, assessing, and selecting candidates to ensure that the elected and/or appointed directors and
officers meet fit and proper standards in accordance with the regulatory and bank-established standards is a
critical process. As such, RBCCI follows a structured procedure as indicated below:

1. Identifying Candidates
Generally, RBCCI utilizes referrals for the members of the BoD. As for the key officers, hiring
preference is given first to employees working for the company. This is to provide opportunities
for employees for their career growth. They will however still have to meet the minimum
qualifications set for the applied positions.

e Chairman of the Board of Directors
a. He must be a non-executive director or an independent director, to promote checks
and balances; and
b. He must not have served as CEO of the Bank within the past three (3) years.

e Independent Director
a. Under SEC Memorandum Circular No. 16, series of 2002
i) He must have at least one (1) share of stock of the Bank;
ii) He must be at least a college graduate, or he must have been engaged or exposed
to the business of the corporation for at least five (5) years;
iii) He shall possess integrity/ probity; and
iv) He shall be assiduous.
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b. Additional Qualifications

i) He must not been a member of the executive committee of the BoD, an officer or
employee of the Bank, its subsidiaries of affiliates or related interests during the
past three (3) years counted from the date of his election;

ii) He must not be a director or officer of any related financial institution;

iii) He must not be a stockholder with shares of stock sufficient to elect one seat in
the BoD;

iv) He must not be a relative within the fourth degree of consanguinity of affinity,
legitimate or common-law of any director, officer or a stockholder holding shares
of stock sufficient to elect one seat in the BoD;

v) He must not be acting as a nominee or representative of any director or substantial
shareholder of the Bank;

vi) He must not be retained as professional adviser, consultant agent or counsel of
the Bank, either in his personal capacity or through his firm; and

vii)jHe must not be engaged and does not engaged and does not engage in any
transaction with the Bank or with any of its substantial shareholders, whether by
himself or with other persons or through a firm of which he is partner/ director/
substantial shareholder, other than transactions which are conducted at arm’s
length and could not materially interfere with or influence the exercise of his
judgment.

e Directors
a. He must be fit and proper for the position of a director.
In determining whether a person is fit and proper for the position of a director,
the following matters must be considered: integrity/ probity, physical/ mental fitness,
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competence, relevant education/ financial literacy/ training, diligence and knowledge/
experience.

b. He must be a holder of at least one (1) share of stock of the Bank;

He must have attended a special seminar on corporate governance for BoD
conducted or accredited by the BSP and SEC: Provided, that incumbent Directors
must attend said seminar within a period of six (6) months from date of election;

He shall be assiduous in his work habits; and

He must possess the foregoing qualifications in addition to those required or
prescribed under R.A. No. 8791 and other applicable laws and regulations.

President and CEO

In addition to the qualifications specified for Officers under Section 134 of the MORB,

the President and CEO shall possess the following:

a.
b.

Should be a graduate of any business or management courses or related field;

Must have extensive experience in the banking sector, preferably with a significant
portion of that experience in rural banking;

Must have proven track record of leadership, demonstrating the ability to lead and
inspire teams;

. In-depth understanding of banking regulations, particularly those relevant to rural

banks;
Have strong financial management skills, including budgeting, financial analysis, risk
management, and capital allocation;
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f. Excellent communication skills, both verbal and written, with the ability to effectively
communicate with diverse stakeholders including board members, staff, customers,
and regulators;

. Strong interpersonal skills to build and maintain a cohesive and motivated team;

Have ability to innovate and adapt to changes in the banking industry, leveraging

technology and digital solutions to enhance operational efficiency and customer

service;

i. Strong analytical and critical thinking skills to identify issues, evaluate alternatives,

and make timely and effective decisions; and

j- Demonstrated commitment to the mission and values of rural banking, with a passion

for serving underserved communities and promoting financial inclusion.

> @

e Compliance Officer
In addition to the qualifications specified under Section 134 of the MORB, the
Compliance Officer shall possess the following:
Should be a graduate of any Business Courses or related field;
Should have at least two (2) years of work experience in the related field;
Knowledgeable in banking/financial regulatory requirements, an advantage;
Good command in verbal and written English;
Must be detail oriented;
Must be computer literate (MS Word, Excel, PowerPoint, etc.); and
None of the disqualifications under Section 138 of the MORB.

@ "0 a0 o P
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e |[nternal Audit Head

Similar with Compliance Officer who shall possess the qualifications specified under

Section 134 of the MORB, Internal Audit Head shall possess the following:

a. Should be able to demonstrate competence;

b. At least two (2) years fulltime practical workplace experience in a bank;

c. Shall be knowledgeable of the provisions stated in BSP's MORB as may be applicable
to RBCClI's operations;

d. Should have undergone training to ensure competence to carry out and manage
internal audits;

e. Good command in verbal and written English;

f. Must be computer literate (MS Word, Excel, PowerPoint, etc.); and

g. None of the disqualifications under Section 138 of the MORB.

2. Assessing Candidates
All referrals and applications will undergo rigorous screening against the established
qualifications to create a shortlist of candidates. Following this, initial interviews will be conducted
via phone, video, or face-to-face to evaluate their qualifications, experience, and suitability for the
role.

Furthermore, the Bank will conduct a thorough assessment of fithess and propriety,

meticulously evaluating integrity, physical and mental fitness, competence, relevant education and
financial literacy, training, diligence, experience, and availability to fulfill responsibilities.
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Moreover, comprehensive background, financial, and reference checks will be conducted to
ensure candidates do not pose risks related to financial integrity or fraud, and to gain insights
into their conduct.

. Decision Making and Selection of Candidates

Throughout the decision-making process, meticulous documentation was maintained. This
documentation encompassed detailed records of the selection criteria, the rationale behind each
decision, and any pertinent observations made during interviews and assessments.

Once selected, the candidate shall be provided with a comprehensive orientation session
covering regulatory mandates, Bank's policies and procedures, and training on corporate
governance. This is to equip him with the necessary knowledge and resources to navigate his role
effectively from day one.

Following the panel interviews, assessments, the final step involved obtaining confirmation
from the Bangko Sentral to ensure that all regulatory standards and protocols were met.
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C. Board's Overall Responsibility, together with the Role and Contribution of the Chairman of the

BoD

The corporate powers of RBCCI shall be exercised, its business manage, and all its property controlled
and held, by its BOD. The powers of the BOD as conferred by law are original and cannot be revoked by the
stockholders. Likewise, the directors hold their office charged with the duty to exercise sound and objective
judgment for the best interest of the bank.

Under Section 132 of the MORB, the following are the specific duties and responsibilities of the Chairman
of the Board, BOD, Directors and Independent Director:

e Board of Directors
1. Select and appoint officers who are qualified to administer the bank effectively and soundly
and to establish adequate selection process for all personnel;
- It is the primary responsibility of the BOD to appoint a competent Management Team. The
BOD should apply fit and proper standards on key personnel.

2. Establish objectives and draw up a business strategy, consistent with the Bank’s objectives
and business plans to direct its on-going activities;
- The board should ensure that performance against the plan is regularly reviewed with

corrective action taken as needed.

3. Conduct the affairs of the Bank with high degree of integrity;
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- ltis in the Bank’s best interest that in its dealings with the public high standard of integrity
is observed. The BOD should prescribe corporate values, codes of conduct and other
standards of appropriate behavior for itself, the senior management and other employees.

. Establish and ensure compliance with sound written policies;
- The BOD should adopt written policies on all major business activities, i.e.,
investments, loans, assets and liability management, business planning and budgeting.

. Prescribe a clear assignment of responsibilities and decision-making authorities, incorporating

a hierarchy of required approvals from individuals to the BOD;

- The BOD should establish in writing the limits of the discretionary powers of each officer,
committee, and such other group for the purpose of lending, investing or committing the
Bank to any financial undertaking or exposure to risk at any time.

. Effectively supervise RBCCl's affairs;

- The BOD should establish a system of checks and balances which applies in the first
instance to the BOD itself. The system should also provide a mechanism for effective check
and control by the BOD over the President and CEO and the latter over the officers of the
Bank.

. Monitor, assess and control the performance of Management;

- The BOD shall put in place an appropriate reporting system so that it is provided with
relevant and timely information to be able to effectively assess the performance of
Management.
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8. Adopt and maintain adequate risk management policy;
- The BOD shall be responsible for the formulation and maintenance of written policies and
procedures relating to the management of risks throughout the Bank.

9. Constitute the Internal Control and Audit (Compliance) (ICAC) Committee, which shall be
comprised of independent board members, preferably with accounting and finance experience
to provide oversight of the Bank’s internal and external auditors;

10. Conduct/hold meeting/s regularly to properly discharge BOD functions;
- Independent views in BOD meetings shall be given full consideration and all such meetings
shall be duly documented.

11. Keep the members of the BOD and the shareholders informed,;

- It is the duty of the board to present to all its members and to the shareholders a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Bank’s performance and financial condition. It should
also provide appropriate information that flows internally and to the public. All members of
the BOD shall have reasonable access to any information about the Bank.

12. Assess at least annually the performance and effectiveness of President and CEO, ICAC
Committee and other officers of the Bank; and

13. Keep authority within the powers of the Bank as prescribed in the Articles of Incorporation,
By-laws and in existing laws, rules and regulations.
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- The BOD should appoint a Compliance Officer who shall be responsible for coordinating,
monitoring and facilitating compliance with existing laws, rules and regulations. The
Compliance Officer shall be vested with appropriate authority and provided with
appropriate support and resources.

e Chairman of the Board

1.

ol

Ensure that the BOD is properly informed, and that sufficient information is provided to enable them
to formulate appropriate judgements;

. Ensure that the order of the agenda and the conduct of meetings do justice to the importance of the

issues before the BOD,;

. Work closely with the President and CEO to develop and discuss which items should appear in BOD’

regular and/or special (as applicable) meetings;
Provide independent advice and counselling to the President and CEO; and

. If there is a vote and it is dead lock, the Chairman’s view shall prevail.

Directors

1.

Conduct fair business transactions with the Bank and to ensure that personal interest does not bias
Board decisions;

. Act honestly and in good faith, with loyalty and in the best interest of the Bank, its stockholders,

regardless of the amount of their stockholdings, and other stakeholders such as its depositors,

investors, borrowers, other clients and the general public;

- While a Director should always strive to promote the interest of all stockholders, he should also
give due regard to the rights and interests of other stakeholders.
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. Devote time and attention necessary to properly discharge their duties and responsibilities;
- Directors must attend and actively participate in Board and Committee meetings, request and review
meeting materials, ask questions, and request explanations.

. Act judiciously;
- Before deciding on any matter brought before the BOD, every Director should thoroughly evaluate
the issues, ask questions and seek clarifications when necessary.

. Exercise independent judgment;
- A Director should view each problem / situation objectively. When a disagreement with others
occurs, he should carefully evaluate the situation and state his position.

. Have a working knowledge of the statutory and regulatory requirements affecting the Bank, including
the content of its Articles of Incorporation and By-laws, the requirements of the BSP, and where
applicable, the requirements of other regulatory agencies;

. Observe confidentiality; and
- Directors must not disclose non-public information to any other person without the authority of the
BOD.

. Acknowledge receipt of the copies of such specific duties and responsibilities and shall certify that they
fully understand the same.
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¢ Independent Director

1.

Devote time and attention necessary to properly discharge their duties and responsibilities;
- Independent Director should strive to attend all meetings of the BOD and of the Board committees
of which he is a member.

Be well informed about the Bank and have a working knowledge of the statutory and regulatory
requirements affecting the Bank and, where applicable, the requirements of other regulatory agencies;

Exercise independent judgment;

- Help in bringing an independent judgment to bear on the Board’s deliberations especially on issues
of strategy, performance, risk management, resources, key appointments and standards of conduct.
When a disagreement with others occurs, he should carefully evaluate the situation and state his
position.

Refrain from any action that would lead to loss of his independence;
- Where circumstances arise which make the independent director lose his independence, the
independent director must immediately inform the Board accordingly.

Not abuse his position to the detriment of the Bank or its shareholders or for the purpose of gaining
direct or indirect personal advantage or advantage for any associated person; and

Observe confidentiality.
- Independent Director must not disclose non-public information to any other person, unless such
disclosure is expressly approved by the Board or required by law.
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D. Board Composition and Qualifications of Each Board Member

e Board Composition

Number of
Principal Number of Shares % of Shares
Type of Stockholder Years Held
Name . . Held
Directorship | Represented | Servedas | (Common (250,000 shs)
(if Nominee) | Director & ’
Preferred)
Ma. Rosario R. Santos Non-executive - 21.92 yrs. 15,976 6.39
Alan Giles Mary S. Sarmiento Executive - 8.25 yrs. 52,856* 21.14
Alfred Dennis B. Ancheta Non-executive - 8.33 yrs. 146 .06
Reynaldo M. Prudenciado, Jr. | Non-executive - 5.08 yrs. 952 0.38
Jomari Jess S. Abellar Independent - 0.33 yrs. 2 0.00

426,856 common shares (out of 200,000 shares) and 26,000 preferred shares (out of 50,000 shares)
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¢ Qualifications of Each Board Member

MA. ROSARIO R. SANTOS

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Ma. Rosario R. Santos, 64, Filipino, was elected to the Board on 19 January 2002, and has since stayed
in the Board. She served as Vice Chairman from 5 May 2005 to 30 September 2006. She further served as
President of the Rural Bank of Calbayog City, Inc. from January 2014 to January 2015 and Vice President from
January 2015 to January 2016. She was elected as Chairman of Board since August 2023.

She is presently the President of Sanrose Sisters Land Corp and Vice President and Corporate Secretary
of Sanrose Management, Inc.

She received her Bachelor of Science in Management (with honors) from the College of the Holy Spirit
1981 and a scholarship for a Postgraduate Degree in Business Administration from Universitas 21 Global in
March 2009.
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ALAN GILES MARY S. SARMIENTO
Member of the Board of Directors
President and CEO

Alan Giles Mary S. Sarmiento, 57, Filipino, was elected to the Board of Directors on January 20, 2016.
He served as President and CEO from 2017 to 2024.

He attended seminar held by Rural Bankers Research and Development Foundation, Inc. and Rural Bankers
Research and Development Foundation, Inc. with a title of Orientation on BSP Cir 941: Amendments to the
Regulations on Past Due and Non-Performing Loans in 2018, Operational Risk Management Seminar in 2018,
Circular 950: Updated AML Rules and Regulations Seminar in 2017, and Risk Management in 2016.

He graduated at University of San Jose Recoletos with a degree of Bachelor of Science in Office in Hotel
in Restaurant Management in 1987. And went to Adamson University for studying LLB Law in 2001.
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ALFRED DENNIS B. ANCHETA
Member of the Board of Directors

Alfred Dennis B. Ancheta, 59, Filipino, was elected to the Board of Directors on 20 January 2003.
He served as Chairman of the Board from 2017 to 2023.

Prior to joining RBCCI, he worked various roles in Directory Philippines Corporation, with the last as
District Sales Manager. He was also the first serving General Manager of Web Sales, Inc. and DSSC, the official
publisher of the Digitel, Bayantel and Globe Telecom Directories. He was the former Head of Sales and Marketing
for Western Union Business Solutions and the ex-Country Manager of Veem, formerly Align Commerce.

He later served as a Consultant for Agora Technologies, an e-commerce company and Paynamics
Technologies, a global payment solutions provider. He is currently a Business Development and Marketing
Consultant at SD Solutions Inc., an application development and IT Outsourcing company.

He received his AB Philippine Studies degree from the University of the Philippines.
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REYNALDO M. PRUDENCIADO, JR.
Member of the Board of Directors

Reynaldo M. Prudenciado, Jr., 35, Filipino, a Certified Public Accountant, securing 6" rank in the 2010
CPA Licensure Examination, and a Lawyer with expertise in the fields of taxation, customs compliance, and
global trade management, was elected to the Board of Directors on 19 January 2019. He graduated at Christ
the King College with a degree of Bachelor of Science in Accountancy 2009 and in Arellano University School
of Law with a degree of Bachelor of Laws 2015.

Prior to joining RBCCI, he worked with various company with significant roles. He first worked at
Punongbayan and Araullo (P&A Grant Thornton) as Auditor from 2010 to 2012. Second was a Senior Associate
at Du-Balalad and Association (BDB Law) WTS from 2012 to 2017. Third, as Tax Manager at Araneta Center
Inc from 2017 to 2020.

He later served as Director and Treasurer in GOIT Consultancy Inc. and Pacific Alliance Consulting, Inc from
2023 up to present. He also served as Director of Ipraxis Financial Services Inc. and Rocket Support Services
Inc from 2020 up to present. And as AVP Finance of Fast Retailing Philippines, Inc. from 2020 up to present.
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JOMARI JESS S. ABELLAR
Member of the Board of Directors

Jomari Jess S. Abellar, 29, Filipino, a Certified Public Accountant securing 2™ rank in the 2018 CPA
Licensure Examination, was elected as an Independent Director on 21 August 2023 and currently heads the
Internal Control and Audit (Compliance) Committee.

Concurrently, he is a Director in iCare Professional Review, Paytaca, Inc., and A&A Advisory and
Management, Inc. Likewise he holds the positions of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Paytaca
and A&A Advisory, respectively. He also manages the operations of EVALCALA CPA Audit Assurance and
Advisory Centre. On the side, he teaches audit and assurance courses at Saint Paul School of Professional

Studies (SPSPS).

He took his Bachelor of Science in Accountancy at Saint Paul School of Professional Studies (SPSPS) and
his Master of Business Administration at Philippine Christian University
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E. List of Board-level Committees

¢ Organizational Structure

The Internal Control and Audit (Compliance) (ICAC) Committee Structure defines the bank-wide functional
relationships in the exercise of the compliance and internal audit functions and responsibilities.

BOARD OF T'
DIRECTORS ﬁ’ Internal Control and
‘Jj Audit [Compliance)
‘ Committee
PRESIDENT
AND CEQ
\» COMPLIAMNCE HEAD f

_______________ INTERNAL AUDIT HEAD

Internal Audit Compliance
Assistant Assistant

ICAC Committee Chairman: Jomari Jess S. Abellar
Members : Reynaldo M. Prudenciado, Jr.
Alfred Dennis B. Ancheta
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e Duties and Responsibilities of the Committee
1. Oversees the implementation of the RBCClI's Internal Audit and Compliance Programs, including its MLPP,
ensuring that the Bank complies with all applicable laws, regulations, codes of conduct and standards of
good practice. The Committee also ensures that compliance issues are resolved expeditiously;

2. Ensures the regular review and updating, at least annually, of the Internal Audit Program, Compliance
Program and the MLPP to incorporate changes in laws, rules and regulations for approval by the Board;

3. Endorses the appointment of a Compliance Head and Internal Audit Head to the Board and be responsible
for coordinating, monitoring and facilitating compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations;

4. Vests the Compliance and Internal Audit personnel with the appropriate authority and provide the
necessary support and resources to effectively perform his or her responsibilities;

5. Assist the Board in making an informed assessment on how the Bank is managing its compliance risk. The
Committee shall review with Senior Management and the Compliance Head the actions taken by the Bank
to address any findings/directives in report of examinations by regulatory agencies;

6. Evaluate the performance of the Compliance Head and Internal Audit Head at least on an annual basis;

7. Oversees the Internal Audit function in relation to the review of the Compliance Program administered
across business and support units and the discharge of Compliance Section's oversight function over this;

8. Causes Senior Management to act on regulatory findings noted insofar as it impacts the internal control;

9. Reports to the Board significant compliance risks affecting internal control necessitating BOD attention
and/or approval; and

10. Approves the Internal Audit and Compliance Programs and amendments thereto.
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F. Attendance at the Board and Committee Meetings

BOARD ICAC COMMITTEE
Number of Number of
NAME Meetings Meetings
Monthly Quarterly
Attended Y% Attended Y%
Ma. Rosario R. Santos 12 100 2 50
Alan Giles Mary S. Sarmiento 12 100 -
Alfred Dennis B. Ancheta 12 100 2 50
Reynaldo M. Prudenciado Jr. 12 100 4 100
Qais Abdelhameed P. Sabi 8 67 2 50
Jomari Jess S. Abellar 4 33 2 50
Total Number of Meetings 12 4
Held During the Year
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G. List of Executive Officers / Senior Management

;
o

S e
i

ALAN GILES MARY S. SARMIENTO
President and CEO
Filipino, 57 years old

Mr. Sarmiento holds a degree in Hotel and Restaurant
Management. He has served on the Board of Directors for
over eight years and has been elected as President and
CEO for more than seven years.

Throughout his tenure, he has developed in-depth
knowledge of corporate finance and expertise in business
management, successfully leading and managing
departmental teams.

As the President and CEO of RBCCI, Mr. Sarmiento holds
fundamental responsibilities, not only in managing the staff
but also in overseeing the entire organization. Despite the
numerous challenges faced by the bank, he successfully
carried out its mission and vision. He consistently
prioritized long-term goals and developed comprehensive
and systematic strategies to achieve the bank's targets.

Page | 63



Officers below rank of President and CEO:

JUSTINE G. BALLERMO
Corporate Secretary
Filipino, 24 years old

Ms. Ballermo holds a degree in Office Administration
and currently serves as the Bank’s Documents and Records
Controller demonstrating her potential to excellence in
corporate governance. As Corporate Secretary, she plays a
pivotal role in scheduling and documenting BOD and
Board-level Committee meetings, effectively
communicating BOD resolutions to concerned parties, and
maintaining corporate records.

Prior to her appointment as Corporate Secretary, the
Bank has conducted a fit and proper test on Ms. Ballermo
to ensure that she meets the BSP eligibility
requirements/qualifications. She also attended seminar for
Corporate Secretary as Corporate Governance Professional
held by Rural Bankers Association Philippines on November
29, 2023.
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MARA S. MAHUSAY
Corporate Treasurer
Filipino, 28 years old

Ms. Mahusay holds a degree in Accountancy and
currently serve as the Bank's Cash Management Head
demonstrating her potential to excellence in corporate
governance.

She first became Accountant from 2020 to 2022 and as
Branch Head from 2022 to 2023 of the Bank. As Corporate
Treasure, she plays a pivotal role in working with the
Management in establishing growth and profit objectives
of the Bank.

She elected as Bank Officer on January 1, 2023. Prior to
her appointment as Corporate Treasurer, the Bank has
conducted a fit and proper test on Ms. Mahusay to ensure
that she meets the BSP eligibility requirements/
qualifications.
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SHERLYN S. SABAR
Chief Compliance Officer and
Internal Audit Head
Filipino, 29 years old

Ms. Sabar holds a degree in Accountancy and still
studying in Juris Doctor. She is currently the Bank’s CCO
and |A Head. Prior to joining the RBCCI she worked in Fast
Distribution Corporation Calbayog as Branch Internal
Auditor in 2015 and Branch Accountant in 2016. And she
became Part-Time Instructor in Christ the King College in
2023. Before she was elected as Bank’s Officer she was
first assigned as CCO Assistant from 2017-2019, Internal
Auditor from 2019 to 2022, and Internal Audit Head from
2022 to present.

As CCO, she plays a crucial function in ensuring
applicability and collection of all banking laws, and relevant
rules and regulations of BSP, SEC, PDIC, SSS, DOLE and
BIR. She also oversees and monitor the implementation of
RBCCl's Compliance Program and Bank’s Code of Conduct.
And as IA Head, she is responsible for developing and
finalizing a comprehensive annual IA Plan, as well as
submitting the IA Report and Accomplishment.

Prior to her appointment, the Bank has conducted an
assessment to Ms. Sabar to ensure she meets the BSP
eligibility requirements/ qualifications. She went also to
seminars on Compliance Officers and Internal Auditors 2nd
Annual Convention held by Rural Bankers Association
Philippines and Regional, and Anti-Money Laundering/
Countersign Terrorism and Proliferation Financing Training
in 2024 held by Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas.
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H. Performance Assessment Program

The performance evaluation of the Board of Directors (BOD) at RBCCI holds a pivotal role in ensuring
robust corporate governance practices. The BOD values feedback mechanisms aimed at assessing their
effectiveness both as individual directors and collectively as a governing body.

The evaluation process comprehensively assesses several facets:
1. Individual Director Performance
Each director receives a yearly self-assessment questionnaire. This questionnaire allows
directors to evaluate their own performance objectively, focusing on attendance at board and
committee meetings, active participation in discussions, and voting on significant matters. The
aim is to ensure alignment of strategic goals from the top leadership down to every employee.

2. Board as a Whole
Beyond individual assessments, the effectiveness of the BOD as a collective entity is also
evaluated. This includes assessing how well the board functions as a cohesive unit, its decision-
making processes, and its overall contribution to corporate governance and strategic direction.

3. Committee Evaluations
Specific board-level committees undergo evaluation by the BOD. This assessment ensures
that committees tasked with specialized functions are fulfilling their mandates effectively.

4. Evaluation of Executives
The President, CEO, and other appointed bank officers are subject to evaluation by the BOD.
This ensures accountability and effectiveness in executive leadership roles within the
organization.
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5. Process and Timing
Directors are given a defined period of five banking days to complete their self-assessment
forms/questionnaires. This timeframe allows for thorough reflection and ensures that feedback
is submitted in a timely manner.

l. Orientation and Education Program

¢ Training Program For Directors

In conjunction with BSP policies, the Board of Directors of the RBCCI shall undergo a training or seminar
on Corporate Governance every three (3) years. Although, the Board of Directors are familiar with their duties
and responsibilities as documented in the BSP MORB and RBCC Policies and Procedures Manual, as well as with
the operations of the Bank, briefings on market changes and updates in regulatory and mandatory requirements
shall be held every quarter through the Internal Audit and Compliance Head or in his absence, an authorized
representative as appointed by the Internal Control and Audit (Compliance) (ICAC) Committee Chairman.
Continuing education is salient for the Board of Directors as they become more knowledgeable and familiar
with the regulatory and statutory requirements equipping them to make well-defined decisions as the Bank
continues to grow.

All newly appointed directors shall be required to immediately undergo a Corporate Governance Seminar
facilitated by any BSP-accredited training center. Thereafter, an orientation on a director’'s duties and
responsibilities as documented in the MORB and RBCCI Policies and Procedures as well as the Bank’s operations
and programs.
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¢ Training Program For Senior Management, Officers and Other Employees

The Rural Bank of Calbayog City, Inc. (RBCCI) places a strong emphasis on the career development of its
employees, particularly senior management and officers. It is ingrained in the bank's policy to foster growth
among its workforce, aiming to enhance job performance and prepare employees for higher responsibilities
within the organization.

Under this policy, the Internal Control and Audit Committee (ICAC) along with the Head Office continually
explores opportunities for training, seminars, and workshops that cater to the professional and personal
development needs of RBCCl employees. These initiatives cover a wide array of subjects such as management
skills, banking operations, Anti-Money Laundering Act (AMLA) compliance, internal auditing, computer
proficiency, communication, and literacy.

Employees are encouraged to seek approval from their immediate supervisors or the President and CEO
before participating in specific training events, ensuring alignment with their individual development plans.
Additionally, external seminars may be accessible through invitations or sponsorships from external entities,
endorsed by supervisors.

A crucial aspect of the training program is maintaining accurate records. After completing any training
activity, employees are required to submit copies of their certificates or equivalent documents to be filed in their
Training Records. In cases where certificates are not issued by the training provider, the President and CEO
verifies attendance and completion before issuing a suitable document. These records, including a Summary of
Training, are periodically updated to reflect the latest completed sessions.
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J. Retirement and Succession Policy

e Terms in Service

Under Section 132 of the MORB, as amended, an Independent Director may only serve as such for a
maximum cumulative term of nine (9) years. After which, the independent director shall be perpetually barred
from serving as independent director but may continue to serve as regular director. The nine-year maximum
cumulative term for independent directors shall be reckoned from 2012. Furthermore, pursuant to SEC
Memorandum Circular No. 9, series of 2009:

1. A regular director who resigns or whose term ends on the day of the election shall only

qualify for nomination and election as an Independent Director after a two-year “cooling-
off period”; and

2. Persons appointed as Chairman “Emeritus”, Ex-Officio” Directors/Officers or Members of

any Executive Advisory Board, or otherwise appointed in a capacity to assist the Board in
the performance of its duties and responsibilities shall be subject to a one-year “cooling-
off period” prior to his qualification as an Independent Director.
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¢ Retirement Policy

RBCCl's Retirement Policy outlines clear guidelines for the retirement of its employees, ensuring fairness
and consistency in managing workforce transitions.

1. Mandatory Retirement
Employees who reach the age of sixty-five (65) years are subject to mandatory retirement.
Upon retirement, they are entitled to a retirement benefit equivalent to one month's salary per
year of service based on their last monthly salary. Despite retirement, employees have the option
to re-apply for a position.

2. Optional Retirement
Employees with at least fifteen (15) years of service, regardless of age, may opt for retirement
at their discretion or at the company's discretion. The retirement benefit varies based on the years
of service:
o 15 years of service: 75% of the compulsory retirement benefit
o 20 years and above: 100% of the compulsory retirement benefit

3. Service Computation
For calculating the retirement benefit based on years of service, any fraction of at least six (6)
months is considered as one (1) whole year. The computation starts from the most recent
unbroken period of active service by the employee.
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4. Just Cause Exception
An employee whose actions or omissions qualify as just cause for termination under company
policy forfeits entitlement to retirement benefits.

5. Termination Due to Unforeseen Circumstances
Employees terminated due to circumstances beyond their control, such as installation of labor-
saving devices, redundancy, or retrenchment resulting from mergers or economic reasons, may
receive separation pay as mandated by the Labor Code or similar legislation.

6. Final Accountabilities
Retirement benefits are included in the computation and settlement of the employee's final
accounts upon retirement.

7. Payment of Benefits
Benefits under the policy are disbursed to eligible employees in a lump sum payment.

This Policy reflects the Bank’'s commitment to providing structured and equitable retirement benefits while
ensuring compliance with labor laws and maintaining financial sustainability.
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e Succession Policy

RBCCl’s Succession Plan aims to ensure seamless continuity of critical operations and services in the event
of absences or vacancies among its directors, officers, and key personnel to maintain operational stability and
uphold governance standards by outlining procedures for appointing temporary replacements and permanent
successors across various leadership roles within RBCCI.

Key Definitions:

a.

Unplanned Absence one that arises unexpectedly, in contrast to a planned leave, such as a
vacation or sabbatical.

Temporary Absence one which is expected that the director or officer will return to his position
once the events precipitating the absence are resolved.

Permanent Absence one which is firmly determined that the concerned director or officer will not
be returning to the position.

Short-term Absence expected to last in three (3) months or less. Otherwise, if the absence is more
than three (3) months, the same is considered as long-term absence.

Succession Procedures for Unplanned or Temporary Absences:

1.

Appointing Authority
a. President and CEO
- The Board of Directors (BoD) selects an interim CEO from its members through majority
vote immediately after the absence commences.

b. Directors and Independent Directors
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- Temporary successors are chosen from the bank's stockholders list by majority vote.

c. Compliance Officer/Internal Auditor
- Assistants assume roles initially; subsequent appointments follow BoD majority vote.

d. Branch/Branch-lite Head, Cash Management Head, Credit Evaluation Head, Loans Reporting
Head, Loan Remedial Head, Cashier
- Successors are appointed by the President and CEO or chosen internally based on
operational needs.

2. Communication
Temporary replacements are communicated to RBCCI staff promptly via email or other suitable
channels on the affected officer's first business day away or within two (2) hours for unexpected
absences.

The appointee, in the absence of the President and CEO, informs relevant institutions as
necessary to ensure business continuity.

3. Authority and Restrictions
Appointees have full authority aligned with their assigned roles, subject to any specific
restrictions imposed by the appointing authority.
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Succession Plan for Permanent Absences
1. Procedures align with those for temporary absences, ensuring continuity while the BoD appoints
a permanent replacement within three (3) months.

2. For positions regulated by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP), confirmation and qualification
processes are mandated for permanent appointments.

This Succession Plan is unanimously approved by the full Board of Directors and signed by the Board,
Corporate Secretary, and President and CEO. Copies of which are maintained by key personnel, including the
Chairman of the Board, Corporate Secretary, President and CEO, and Compliance/Internal Audit Heads for
transparency and compliance purposes.

K. Remuneration Policy
e Directors

The RBCClI's Amended By-Laws provides that Directors shall receive such compensation for their
services as may from time to time be fixed by the stockholders subject to the limitations set forth in Section
29 of the Corporation Code. Each director shall also be entitled to a reasonable per diem, as may be
determined by the Board. The officers’ salary or compensation elected or appointed by the BOD shall be
fixed by the Board.
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o Officers and Other Employees

RBCCI places a strong emphasis on maintaining competitive wages and salaries for its officers and
employees, aiming to ensure that compensation remains motivational, fair, and equitable compared to other
employers in the market. The bank operates under a structured salary system that is regularly reviewed and
approved by its Board of Directors.

Job roles and their corresponding salary scales undergo periodic evaluations to ensure alignment with
market standards and internal equity. Any significant findings from these reviews prompt revisions to the job
hierarchy and salary ranges as necessary.

Salary adjustments within the Bank can occur through several avenues. Merit increases are awarded
based on an individual's exceptional job performance, incentivizing employees to excel in their roles.
Additionally, increases due to promotions or re-classifications are granted when an employee transitions to
a higher-level position within the organization.

All employees, including officers, receive their salaries on a bi-monthly basis, with payments scheduled
for the 15th and 30th of each month or earlier if these dates fall on weekends. Pay slips detailing the
breakdown of salaries and deductions are distributed through the Cashier, ensuring transparency in
compensation matters. Contractual staff members also receive their semi-monthly payments through the
same process.
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L. Policies and Procedures on Related-Party Transactions

Related Party Transactions (RPTs) can pose significant risks to the integrity and financial stability of rural
banks. Recognizing this, RBCCI has established this policy to ensure transparency, fairness, and in compliance
with Section 136 of the Manual of Regulations for Banks (MORB). This policy aims to govern all transactions
between the Bank and its related parties to mitigate conflicts of interest and safeguard the interests of
depositors, shareholders, and stakeholders.

It encompasses all types of transactions, including but not limited to loans, investments, guarantees,
leases, purchases, sales, and services of all directors, officers, and their related interest

Key Definitions:

a. Related Parties refers to individuals or entities that can influence the management or operating
policies of the bank or have significant financial or operational interactions with the bank,
including, but not limited to, directors, officers, major shareholders, and their close family
members. This shall also include such other person/juridical entity whose interests may pose
potential conflict with the interest of the Bank, hence, is identified as a related party.

b. Related Party Transactions (RPTs) are transactions or dealing with related parties of the Bank
regardless of whether or not a price is charged including, but not limited to, the following:
i) Purchase and sales of assets;
i) Lease arrangements/contracts; and
iii) Loans and credit accommodations.
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RPTs shall be interpreted broadly to include not only transactions that are entered into with
related parties but also outstanding transactions that were entered into with an unrelated
party that subsequently becomes a related party.

c. Arm’s Length Transaction refers to a transaction conducted as if between unrelated parties
under no duress to act in the best interest of the other party.

Account officers are mandated to notify the Board of any potential related party transaction as soon as
they become aware of it. If a transaction is determined to be a reportable RPT, the transaction along with
relevant information shall be submitted for analysis and evaluation to the RPT Committee. The Committee shall
determine whether or not the RPT is on terms no less favorable to the Bank than terms available to any
unconnected third party under the same or similar circumstances.

Transactions with amounts of at least Five Hundred Thousand Pesos or transactions requiring Board
approval, like DOSRI loans, are considered as material related party transactions. The RPT Committee is a board
committee composed of at least three (3) members of the Board of Directors, entirely consisting of non-executive
directors, majority of which are independent, including the chairman. The RPT Committee’s mandate is to review
material RPTs to determine whether the terms are at arm’s length.

The transaction, if endorsed, shall thereafter be presented to the Board for approval. Any member of the

Board who has an interest in the transaction under discussion shall not participate in discussions and shall
abstain from voting on the approval of the Related Party Transaction.
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The Board has delegated the review and approval of related party transactions below the materiality
threshold to the RPT Management Committee composed of members of senior management. Review of related
party transactions is part of compliance testing of the Compliance Office as well as audit work program of the
Internal Audit.

M. Self-Assessment Function

The ICAC Committee works hand-in-hand with the Internal Audit and Compliance Section which is
independent from the business activities of RBCCI. It shall carry out its responsibilities on its initiative in all units
where business and compliance risks exist and shall be provided with sufficient resources to carry out its
responsibilities effectively. The Internal Audit and Compliance Section shall have access to all operational areas
and information as well as any records or files necessary to enable it to carry out its duties and responsibilities
effectively, free to report to Senior Management and the BOD through the ICAC Committee, any irregularity or
breach of laws, regulations, code of conduct, standards of good governance, etc., without fear of retaliation or
disfavor from management and/or other affected parties.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES IN RELATION TO ICAC PROGRAM
1. Board of Directors
a. Oversees the implementation of the Internal Audit and Compliance Programs and ensures RBCCl's
overall conformity/compliance to the said programs;
b. Constitutes a Committee that will be responsible for coordinating, monitoring and facilitating
compliance with existing laws, rules and regulations; and
c. Selects the Internal Control and Audit (Compliance) Committee Chairman and Members.
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2. ICAC Committee

a.

Oversees the implementation of the RBCCl's Internal Audit and Compliance Programs, including its
MLPP, ensuring that the Bank complies with all applicable laws, regulations, codes of conduct and
standards of good practice. The Committee also ensures that compliance issues are resolved
expeditiously;

Ensures the regular review and updating, at least annually, of the Internal Audit Program, Compliance
Program and the MLPP to incorporate changes in laws, rules and regulations for approval by the Board;
Endorses the appointment of a Compliance Head and Internal Audit Head to the Board and be
responsible for coordinating, monitoring and facilitating compliance with applicable laws, rules and
regulations;

Vests the Compliance and Internal Audit personnel with the appropriate authority and provide the
necessary support and resources to effectively perform his or her responsibilities;

Assist the Board in making an informed assessment on how the Bank is managing its compliance risk.
The Committee shall review with Senior Management and the Compliance Head the actions taken by
the Bank to address any findings/directives in report of examinations by regulatory agencies;
Evaluate the performance of the Compliance Head and Internal Audit Head at least on an annual basis;

. Oversees the Internal Audit function in relation to the review of the Compliance Program administered

across business and support units and the discharge of Compliance Section's oversight function over
this;

Causes Senior Management to act on regulatory findings noted insofar as it impacts the internal control;
Reports to the Board significant compliance risks affecting internal control necessitating BOD attention
and/or approval; and

Approves the Internal Audit and Compliance Programs and amendments thereto.
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3. President and CEO
a. Administratively oversees the ICAC Section;
b. Ensures that Compliance Program is established and observed across the organization and assesses
its effectiveness and appropriateness;
c. Manages and accepts Business and Compliance Risks within levels approved by the BoD; and
d. Acts on findings noted during regulatory examinations, Internal Audit and Compliance Assessment
reviews, compliance self-testing and independent testing particularly on regulatory matters.

4. Compliance Officer
a. Designs the Compliance Assessment Program, parallel to the Bank’s business goals and strategies,
promotes its effective implementation and recommends appropriate courses of action to address
breaches that may arise.

b. Fosters a constructive working relationship with applicable regulatory agencies by:

i) Acting as the central point of contact of RBCCI on regulatory matters.

ii) Facilitating and monitoring non-periodic regulatory requirements, e.g. queries, correspondences,
surveys, approval requests.

iii) Managing regulatory examinations conducted by BSP, PDIC, SEC, AMLC and other applicable
external examinations conducted on RBCCI

iv) Consulting with BSP and other regulatory agencies on specific provisions of the pertinent laws and
regulations governing the Bank's operations as well as regulatory concerns or issues.
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. Promotes compliance awareness and propagates a strong compliance culture by:

i) Setting-up a monitoring system to properly account, in a timely manner, the bank activities and
assess conformity with related laws, rules and regulations.

i) Furnishing each Branch/Branch-lite/Section with a list of applicable laws, rules and regulations,
which shall be observed by its officers and staff.

iii) Providing each Branch/Branch-lite/Section with a list of all reports required to be submitted to BSP
and other regulatory bodies, whose officers and staff shall be responsible for the submission of the
reports identified.

iv) Keeping an active advisory service on compliance matters/queries.

. Continuously monitors and assesses the Compliance Assessment Program by:

i) Developing compliance testing procedures, documentation and reporting mechanism on identified
high and medium risk areas.

ii) Tracking remediation measures and report results to Senior Management and ICAC Committee.

iii) Maintaining a self-assessment compliance checklist to monitor compliance assessment activities of
banking units.

. Monitors and validates BOD resolutions and action programs to regulatory examination findings and
directives until completion.

Oversees compliance with regulatory and statutory reporting requirements.
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5. Internal Audit Head

a.

Designs the Internal Audit Program, parallel to the Bank's business goals and strategies, promotes its
effective implementation and recommends appropriate courses of action to address breaches that may
arise.

Fosters a constructive working relationship with external auditors by:

i) Acting as the central point of contact of RBCCI.

ii) Facilitating and monitoring non-periodic regulatory requirements, e.g. queries, correspondences,
surveys, approval requests.

iii) Maintaining a self-assessment internal audit checklist to monitor audit examination activities of
banking units.

Continuously monitors and assesses the Internal Audit Program by:

i) Developing audit examination procedures, documentation and reporting mechanism on identified
high and medium risk areas.

ii) Tracking remediation measures and report results to Senior Management and ICAC Committee.

iii) Maintaining a self-assessment internal audit checklist to monitor audit examination activities of
banking units.

Monitors and validates BOD resolutions and action programs to regulatory examination findings and
directives until completion.

In coordination with the President and CEO, adopts a system that would optimize the use of the
collective resources of the Bank's governance.
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6. All Personnel
a. Understand their roles and responsibilities in the internal control and compliance processes.
b. Be fully accountable in carrying out their responsibilities effectively and efficiently.
c. Communicate to the appropriate level of management any problem in operations, action or behavior
that is inconsistent with the established internal control and compliance processes as well as code of
ethics.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES IN RELATION TO ICAC COMMITTEE, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND BOD
1. Compliance Officer

a. Oversees the RBCCl's implementation of compliance programs, policies and procedures designed to
respond to the various compliance and regulatory risks which may arise;

b. Submits an assessment report after each assessment activity to the ICAC Committee Chairman for
review and discussion during the BOD meetings for the continued adherence to relevant regulatory
requirements, statutory mandates, best industry practices and company policies and procedures
governing all areas of operations and functions of RBCCI;

c. Immediately informs the ICAC Committee Chairman of any high-risk assessment finding/s for its
immediate resolution;

d. Have oversight responsibility for matters of non-financial compliance, significant legal or regulatory
compliance exposure and material reports or inquiries from government or regulatory agencies;

e. Oversees the investigation and may also request the investigation of any significant instances of non-
compliance with laws or company’s compliance program, policies and procedures or potential
compliance violations;

f. Analyzes the compliance education and training programs, providing continuing orientation and
training of employees to ensure that all personnel are adequately trained and supervised and made
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aware of the existence of particular laws, rules and regulations applicable to the Bank as well as its
Code of Conduct and standards of good practice;

g. Assists in development of policies addressing the remediation of the identified problems; and

h. Carries out other duties/functions as may be delegated by the Board of Directors from time to time.

2. Internal Audit Head

a. Assists the Board of Directors fulfill the corporate governance and overseeing the responsibilities in
relation to an entity’s financial reporting, internal control reporting, risk management system and
internal and external audit functions;

b. Immediately informs the ICAC Committee Chairman of any high-risk assessment finding/s for its
immediate resolution;

c. Submits an internal audit report after each audit examination activity to the ICAC Committee Chairman
for review and discussion during the BOD meetings;

d. Discussing the risk management policies and practices with Board of Directors and Management;

e. Reviews the result of an audit with management including matters to be communicated as well as
proposed audit/compliance approaches and handle coordination of the report with the
audit/compliance team; and

f. Carries out other duties/functions as may be delegated by the ICAC Chairman and Senior Management
from time to time.

Page | 85




N. Dividend Policy

e Policies and Procedures

The Dividend Distribution Policy of Rural Bank of Calbayog City, Inc. aims to establish guidelines and
procedures for declaring dividends to shareholders in a manner that ensures financial stability, compliance with
regulatory requirements, set out the criteria and parameters, which the Board of Directors shall take into
consideration at the time of recommendation for dividends, and fair distribution of profits.

Objectives:
« To provide shareholders with a reasonable return on their investment;
« To maintain financial soundness and stability of the Bank;
o To comply with all regulatory requirements set forth by the BSP and other relevant authorities; and
« To ensure dividends are declared and distributed in a fair and transparent manner.

General
1. Declaration of Dividends
The declaration of dividends shall be within the authority of the Board of Directors of Rural Bank of
Calbayog City, Inc. taking into consideration the Bank’s financial performance, profitability, and future
capital requirements, as outlined below, and approved by a majority vote of the Board of Directors during
the convened meeting.

The amount of dividends to be declared shall be determined by taking into consideration the following
parameters:

a. Financial performance and growth opportunities of the Bank;

b. Positive impacts capital market;

c. Dividend payout trend of the Bank;
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d. Tax implication;
e. Economic considerations; and
f. Regulatory requirements and statutory mandates.

For dividend payout, the Board shall consider the operating results to the Bank and the shareholders’
return. Dividend shall be paid out of Divisible profit of the Bank. If the eligibility criteria for
recommendation of dividend was not met by the Bank or if any threshold was fixed by the regulatory
authorities; the Board of Directors may recommend dividend according to acceptable restrictions.

. Entitlement to Dividends

Only bonafide shareholders duly registered with RBCCI on the record date fixed by the Bank shall be
entitled to receive dividends.

. Distribution of Dividends
Dividends shall be paid in cash or in the form of additional shares, as determined by the Board of
Directors, and distributed in the following manner, subject to regulatory approvals:
a. Within ten (10) banking days after dividend declaration, the Cash Management Head shall
issue a check in favor of each stockholder for the corresponding cash dividend (less applicable
taxes) according to the number of stocks owned by the stockholder;

b. A notification shall be issued via short message service (SMS) to the mobile number or email
address as provided by the shareholder or via RBCCl's official website informing the respective
stockholders to claim their dividend from the Bank’s Head Office by presenting the applicable
identification requirements:

i) Valid identification cards and proof of shareholding; or
ii) Authorization Letter signed by the shareholder, for representatives; or
iii) Extrajudicial Settlement of Estate, for the heirs of the deceased shareholder.
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Stockholders are given a one-year period from the date of distribution to claim their dividends.
Provided that said period shall not apply in the case where: (i) there is a dispute regarding to right to
receipt of the payment; or (ii) the dividend has been fully adjusted by the Bank against any sum due to it
from the shareholder; or (iii) there is any order by any court of law.

RBCCI shall not forfeit any unclaimed cash dividend. However, if the dividend is not claimed within one
(1) year from distribution of dividend, all unclaimed dividends shall be reclassified as Retained Earnings.

4. Documentation and Monitoring
RBCCI, by itself or by appointing an employee, shall maintain detailed and updated information on
each shareholder to include but not limited to the bank account (if any), mobile number, email and address
of the shareholder for the purpose of proper distribution of dividends.

RBCCI shall keep all information confidential. Any bank personnel who are exposed to such information
shall personally be liable to indemnify the Bank for any loss or damage the Bank sustains due to breach
of confidentiality of information of the shareholder.

Regulatory Compliance

RBCCI shall comply with all BSP regulations and guidelines pertaining to the declaration and
distribution of dividends and submit the following, in compliance with Section 124 of the MORB, within ten
(10) banking days after date of declaration:

a. Certification on Compliance with Requirements on Dividend Declaration; and

b. Report on Dividends Declared.
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Review and Amendment

The Board of Directors shall review and update the Dividend Distribution Policy at least once a year to
tailor the same to the specific needs and circumstances of the Bank while ensuring alignment with BSP
regulations and governance standards.

¢ Dividend Declaration for Year 2023

The Board of Directors, during the meeting held on 23 December 2023, approved the dividend (cash)
declaration amounting to ONE MILLION TWO HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND PESOS (Php 1,250,000.00) or FIVE
PESOS (Php 5.00) PER SHARE, to all stockholders on record as of 31 December 2023 to be distributed on 20
January 2024.

However, the declaration was retracted with the intention of rescheduling the distribution to coincide with
our forthcoming celebration of the Bank's 65th anniversary in February 2024.
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O. Corporate Social Responsibility Initiatives

ALAN GILES MARY S. SARMIENTO
President and CEO, RBCC/

The Rural Bank of
Calbayog City Inc. (RBCCI) is the
sole rural banking institution on
Samar Island that has joined an
agricultural initiative financially

« supported by the Agricultural

Credit Policy Council (ACPC),
which operates under the

* Department of Agriculture. This

unique partnership underscores

. RBCCl’s commitment to

integrating modern agricultural
practices with rural
development.
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In the fiscal year 2023, from January to December, RBCCI |
committed a significant portion of its resources—PHP 20 million— "-‘
to assist local farmers interest free ACPC-DA funding. This financial [}
aid forms a cornerstone of the bank’s social programs designed to i

uplift the agricultural community in Samar. By deploying these

funds, RBCCI aims to enhance the sustainability and productivity of ' #

local farming and fishing activities.

The primary offerings of RBCCl's program include providing

innovative and latest technological assistance, delivering |
comprehensive training programs, and extending loans without |

interest. These services are particularly targeted at the
marginalized farmers and fisherfolk in Samar, ensuring they receive
support that is both impactful and accessible. With the support
from ACPC-DA, the bank has already benefitted more than 150
individuals engaged in rice cultivation, various livestock, and
piggery, thereby boosting their economic stability and growth
potential.
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INTEGRATED Nige FINFISH BRooDsocy

Training and technology are pivotal to RBCCl's
strategy for community engagement and development.
Through these initiatives, the bank invests in the long-
term capability of the community, teaching skills and
knowledge that foster self-reliance and entrepreneurial
spirit. The philosophy guiding these efforts is to “teach
how to fish rather than just giving them fish,” promoting

¥ 4« enduring skills over temporary relief.

RBCCl's mission extends beyond immediate
financial and educational support; it seeks to transform
the mindset of local farmers. By demonstrating that
agriculture is not only a viable career but also a potentially
profitable enterprise, the bank aims to instill a sense of
pride and possibility among farmers. The goal is to
position agriculture as a profession worthy of respect and
succession, encouraging farmers to view their work as a
legacy to be passed down through generations, thereby
securing the future of agricultural practices and
community welfare on Samar Island.
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In the upcoming year of 2024, Rural Bank of Calbayog City Inc.
(RBCCI) plans to escalate its support to the agricultural sector by
distributing PHP 25 million. This funding will not only increase in total
amount but also shift in focus from micro agricultural projects to
small-scale initiatives. This strategic change aims to create a larger
and more profound impact on the community.

The bank intends to support over 50 new beneficiaries with this
enhanced funding approach. By targeting small-scale agricultural
enterprises, RBCCl| seeks to empower more robust and sustainable
operations that can significantly boost local food production and
economic health. This focus is expected to facilitate greater job
creation, increase agricultural output, and improve the livelihoods of
the broader community in Samar.

Through this initiative, RBCCl continues to reinforce its
commitment to developing a resilient agricultural framework in the
region, ensuring that investments not only support individual farmers
but also contribute to the collective prosperity and stability of the
community.




P. Consumer Protection Practices

The Consumer Protection Standards reflect the core principles which the Rural Bank of Calbayog City, Inc.
(RBCCI) employees shall always observe in their dealings with the Bank’s clients.

RBCCI employees shall ensure that clients have a reasonable holistic understanding of RBCCI's products
and services, which they may be acquiring or availing themselves. Any information given whether in writing,
electronically or verbally should be fair, clear, transparent, and easily comprehensible for the client to make an
informed choice about a product or service. This is made possible by providing the client with ready access to
information that accurately represents the nature and structure of the product or service, its terms, and
conditions, as well as its fundamental benefits and risks. In this regard, RBCCl employees shall adhere to the
following principles:

a. Ensure that when offering documents regarding the Bank’s products and services these should
contain information necessary for the clients to be able to make an informed judgment of the
product or service. All key features and risks of the products or services are highlighted
prominently in a succinct manner. Where a product or service is being offered on a continuous
basis, all its pertinent documents shall be updated in accordance with RBCCl's existing policies
and procedures.

b. Readily and consistently make available to the client a written copy of the Terms and Conditions
that apply to a product or service. The contents shall be fully disclosed and explained to the
client before initiating a transaction. Where and when warranted, reference to the Terms and
Conditions is made while transacting with the client and before consummating the transaction,
if such reference is material to the understanding of the client regarding the nature of the product
or service, as well as its benefits and risks. As a written document, the Terms and Conditions
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shall be complete, concise, easily understandable, accurate, and presented in a manner that
facilitates the client’'s comprehension.

e Terms and Conditions
1. The full price or cost of a product or service to the customer shall include all interest, fees, charges, and
penalties. The Terms and Conditions shall clearly state whether the interest, fees, charges, and penalties
can change over time. The method for computing said interest, fees, charges, and penalties is presented
in accordance with Truth in Lending dated 20 July 2011.

2. The Bank may only charge interest based on the outstanding balance of a loan at the beginning of an
interest period. For a loan where principal is payable in installments, interest per installment period shall
be calculated based on the outstanding balance of the loan at the beginning of each installment period.
a. General information about the operation of the products or services including the customer’s

obligations and liabilities;
b. Cancellation, return and exchange policies, and any related cost;

The actions and remedies which the Bank may take in the event of a default by the client;

d. Procedures to report unauthorized transactions and other contingencies, as well as the liabilities of
parties in such case; and

e. A summary of the Bank’'s Complaints Handling procedure.

]

3. Advise clients to read and understand the applicable Terms and Conditions, when considering a product
or service.

4. Communicate in such a manner that clients can understand the terms of the contract, their rights, and
obligations. Employees shall communicate with techniques that shall address literacy limitations, e.g.,
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a. where a client is unable to understand English, provide an oral explanation in a language or dialect
the consumer understands; or

b. where a client is unable to understand written information, explain orally to the client the written
information.

5. Provide clients adequate time to review the Terms and Conditions of the product or service and encourage
the client to ask questions or seek clarification prior to signing any contract or executing the transaction.

6. Be fully knowledgeable about the products and services marketed, including applicable statutory and
regulatory requirements to be able to explain the applicable provisions to the clients.

7. Use a variety of communication channels to disclose clear and accurate information. Such communication
channels shall be made available to the public without need for special access requirements, which may
entail additional expense. Communication channels should be sufficient.

e Duties and Responsibilities in Relation to Consumer Protection
1. Board of Directors
The Board of Directors (BOD) shall be primarily responsible for approving and overseeing the
implementation of the policies governing the Bank’'s consumer protection program, including mechanism
to ensure compliance with the set policies. The duties and responsibilities of the BOD shall include, but
not limited to, the following:

a. Approve the CPRMS and Financial Consumer Protection Assistance Mechanism (FCPAM)
that take into consideration the Bank’s business model, market, product lines, and
relationships with third parties that may give rise to risks to Financial Consumers;
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. Promote a culture of ethical behavior and ensure adherence to the Standards and all
relevant laws and regulations;

. Provide adequate resources and adopt policies to effectively implement training and
competency requirements for bank personnel and authorized representatives acting on
behalf of RBCCI;

. Approve a policy on remuneration and compensation packages structured to encourage
responsible business conduct, fair treatment and avoidance/mitigation of conflict of
interests; and performance assessment that could serve as basis for renewal of contract of
third-party service providers;

. Approve product oversight and governance mechanisms designed to ensure that financial
products and/or services meet the needs of Financial Consumers in target markets or
market segments, including those in vulnerable groups;

Adopt a policy on imposition of any fees and/or charges of the Bank’s financial product or
service which shall include among others, the basis and quantitative support for the setting
of the fees/charges and rationalization of the fee structure or amount;

. Approve and periodically review a Code of Conduct applicable to the directors, officers,
staff and third-party agents/representatives of the Bank. The BOD shall define the
corporate culture and values of the Bank as well as establish standards of conduct and
ethics and institutionalize a system that will allow reporting of concerns or violations to an
appropriate body; and
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h. Periodically review the implementation and effectiveness of the CPRMS, including how
findings are reported and whether the audit mechanisms are in place to enable adequate
oversight. The BOD shall also periodically review the relevance of the CPRMS in case of
changes in the Bank’s business model and/or operating environment.

2. Senior Management
The Senior Management shall be responsible for ensuring that the practices of the Bank and the third-
party agents/representatives are aligned with the Bank’s approved policies and risk management system
relative to consumer protection; and consistently displayed throughout the business units and sections
of the Bank that deal directly with Financial Consumers. In this regard, the Senior Management shall,
among others:

a. Ensure that approved CPRMS and FCPAM policies and procedures are clearly documented
and appropriately implemented across all business units which include the responsibility
of identifying the officer which will head the implementation and regular reporting of
consumer-related issues to the Board;

b. Establish an effective monitoring and management information system to promptly identify,
regularly measure, aggregate and analyze FCP-related issues to determine the level of
Financial Consumer risks. The management information system should be able to:

i) Provide adequate information on the performance and quality of the FCPAM and other
processes that can provide relevant information that allows for identification of
emerging issues and root cause analysis;

ii) Determine the level of FCP risk exposure through assessment of its implementation of
the standards;
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iii) Identify and regularly monitor risks that may result in financial loss of Financial
Consumers or to consumer detriment. Key indicators to monitor such risks shall include,
but not limited to, consumer complaints, data from consumer redress mechanisms and
reports of fraud; and

iv) Identify and assess emerging or increasing risks that affect the Bank's Financial
Consumers such as social engineering schemes, social media monitoring and market
monitoring.

c. Ascertain that identified weaknesses in the FCP practices or emerging risks are addressed
and corrective actions are taken in a timely manner;

d. Ensure observance of expectations and requirements prescribed under relevant regulations
on compliance and internal audit; and

e. Ensure regular reporting to the Board of adequate information and actions taken in terms
of the risks associated with FCPAM and any other material FCP-related developments that
will impact the Financial Consumers of the Bank.

e Handling Customer Complaints and Unauthorized and/or Erroneous Transactions
1. Complaints whether written or electronically forwarded shall be accepted.

2. A Suggestions and Complaints Box shall be placed in every branch/branch-lite office which shall be placed
where clients can clearly see the box for the same to drop their concern/s.
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3. Every attempt should be made to correct the situation that makes the client unhappy. Always adopt a
pleasant attitude towards the client and satisfy the client's needs without any unnecessary delay. Avoid
any clashes even if it is thought the client may be in the wrong.

4. When a client has a complaint, listen to the problem carefully and avoid interrupting.

o

Apologize to the client in a kind manner, regardless of the office, section or individual responsible for the
complaint.

Do not pass judgment or involve the client in internal problems.
Assure the client that his complaint will be forwarded to the Management for corrective action.

An appropriate corrective action/s shall be implemented and monitored by the respective office/unit head.

© 0 N O

For concerns raised in a client complaint, the following steps shall apply:

a. The concerned office/unit head shall be responsible for providing the response to the client
within fifteen (15) banking days from receipt of the complaint. The response shall be forwarded
via mail or email to the client.

b. A copy of the response to the client shall immediately be forwarded to the President and CEO
and Compliance Head for monitoring purposes.

c. If a complaint is resolved by the office/unit head and will not necessitate further action from
Management, the office/unit head shall communicate with the client via mail or email informing
the client that his concern has been resolved. If applicable, include in the response the
corrective action taken to address the client’s concern.

d. In case a concern requires the BoD’s decision for resolution, such as but not limited to
revision/new policies and procedures, written reprimand in case of employee misconduct, etc.
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the President and CEO shall report and discuss the concern with the Board in the succeeding
BoD’s Meeting. The Board’s decision shall be forwarded to the Compliance Head for handling.

10. In cases where fund transfer disputes or alleged unauthorized transactions took place, the Bank shall be
primarily responsible for providing assistance and redress to the Client. Upon receipt of such disputes
or allegations, the Bank shall inform and provide relevant information to the Client and the following
actions should be taken accordingly, pending the result of the investigation of the dispute or allegation:

a. Suspend the imposition of interests, fees or charges, if applicable;

b. Hold the disputed funds, if still intact, in compliance with company policies and procedures,
existing Bangko Sentral rules and regulations, or industry conventions;

c. Provide reasonable accommodations to the Client, such as a non-withdrawable provisional
credit or temporary hold of the disputed amount within a given period as determined by the
Bank; and

d. Perform such other necessary actions to protect the Client’s interests and/or assets, such as
but not limited to, account blocking or freezing of funds.

Within three (3) banking days from the conclusion of the investigation, the Bank shall send a notice
to the Client informing the results thereto. The information shall include, among others, a notification of
debiting the provisionally credited amount if there is sufficient proof that no unauthorized or erroneous
transaction occurred.

If, after the investigation, the disputed transaction is found to be unauthorized or fraudulent, the
Bank shall immediately:
a. Correct or reverse the transaction found to be fraudulent, including any related interest and
charges thereon; and/or
b. Make permanent the provisionally credited amount, if any.
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11. In cases of unauthorized transactions resulting to liability for losses, the Bank may consider, among

others, the following factors in determining the liability for losses:

a. Actions of the accountholder before, during and after the unauthorized transaction;

b. Acts or omissions of the Bank, its employees, third-party agent, outsourced entity or service
provider acting on behalf of the Bank; and/or

c. Non-compliance by the Bank, its employees, agents or service providers, with any
requirement under the FCP Framework and other existing rules and regulations applicable
to the Bank'’s provision of any financial product or service: and/or

d. In case an accountholder transfers funds to a payee account other than the intended
recipient account, the Client shall immediately report the error to the Bank with the following
details:
i) Name, contact number, and other credentials of the payor;
ii) Account from which the payment was made;
iii) Payee account details;
iv) Transaction amount; and
v) Transaction date and time.

In case the erroneous transaction involves different banks, the originating financial institution (OFI)
shall immediately inform the receiving financial institution (RFl). Both the OFl and RFl should make

reasonable efforts to recover the sum sent in error in accordance with existing regulations and industry
conventions.
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¢ Cooling-off Period

The Bank shall implement the application of cooling-off period for specific financial product and/or
service that meet the following criteria:

1. Following the complete submission of the documentary requirements for the loan and other credit
accommodation applied, the Client is entitled to a cooling-off period of at least ten (10) banking days.
Provided that, the Client notifies the Bank of the termination/cancellation/withdrawal of the loan contract
or agreement prior to the release of loan proceeds, if approved.

2. Products and services with any of the following features are exempt from the cooling-off period:
a. Products and services marketed, offered or sold to the Bank’s corporate clients, and medium-
sized enterprises, as defined in applicable DTI regulations;
b. Financial instruments with a remaining term of less than one (1) year;
Financial instruments with aggregate investment size of Php 500,000.00 and above;
d. Short-term and one-off transactions, such as but not limited to foreign currency exchange,
remittances, fund transfers, or payments and similar transactional products/services.

]

3. The cooling-off period shall only be applicable to Client who is a natural person and to financial product
or service whose remaining term is equal to or beyond one (1) year.

The cooling-off period is intended to provide Clients a reasonable time to consider the costs and risks
of a financial product or service free from pressure, particularly those with long-term component.
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SECTION VII. INFORMATION ON SUSTAINABLE FINANCE

The Rural Bank of Calbayog City, Inc.’s (RBCCI) Environmental and Social Risk Management System (ESRMS) has
been issued to document, define terms, establish policies and procedures in compliance with BSP issued mandates
on Sustainable Finance Framework (Circular No. 1085 dated 29 April 2020), Environment and Social Risk
Management (ESRM) Framework (Circular No. 1128 dated 26 October 2021), and the Guidelines on the Integration
of Sustainability Principles in Investment Activities of Banks (Circular No. 1149 dated 23 August 2022), regulations
of other financial authorities, government laws, acceptable industry standards and company policies and procedures
as documented in RBCC Policies and Procedures Manual.

RBCCl's Environmental and Social Risk Management System identifies and describes the Bank approach to
manage the Environmental and Social risks in its business activities. RBCCl's key considerations for determining its
approach to Environmental and Social Risk Management are:

e Types of financial services offered (including their typical duration, amounts involved, number of
tiers between the bank and the clients);
¢ Industry sectors of the clients/investment portfolio;

e Types of environmental and social issues related to the Bank’s portfolio and the potential to cause
adverse impacts;

e Applicable industry initiatives and legal frameworks;
e Business and Risk Strategies and corresponding risk appetite

RBCCI's Environmental and Social Risk Management System shall remain in place and adopted towards ensuring

that projects financed by RBCCI are executed in a socially responsible manner and reflect sound environmental
management practices.
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RBCCI shall also determine whether relevant Environmental and Social standards have been adequately applied.
Where avoidance of Environmental and Social impact is not possible, the Bank will agree with its clients on a plan to
minimize and/or offset identified impacts and will work toward improved Environmental and Social performance with
tangible and practical goals.

A. Scope and Objectives

To ensure a consistent approach across RBCCI, its Environmental and Social Risk Management System
practices will apply to lending-related activities.

RBCCl's approach to its Environmental and Social Risk Management (ESRM) is that not all engagements
in the Bank’s portfolio require the same level of environmental and social due diligence. The time and resources
dedicated to each transaction shall be commensurate with the risk profile and nature of the engagement. RBCCI
shall focus more of its environmental and social assessment efforts on transactions that have potentially
significant environmental and social impacts. In view of this, an ESRM review shall be conducted on each
transaction by identifying the risk/s with the stakeholder/s and escalate the decision-making to the Board of
Directors when any environmental and social risk (financial, non-financial risk or climate risk) is identified.

The long-term survival of the Bank depends on its determination and discipline to abide by sound
Environmental and Social Risk Management practices and corporate governance principles. RBCCI is committed
to delivering sustainability and sustainable banking principles through value edge products and services without
endangering the future environmental and social indices.
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The objectives of RBCCl's Environmental and Social Risk Management System are:
To identify and assess social and environment impacts of the lending activities of RBCCl and thereby
to enhance its understanding of environmental and social risks associated with the Bank’s
transactions;

To promote improved social and environmental performance of the Bank’s business activities
involved in projects of loan borrowers which arise from existing weaknesses of local legislation;

To adhere to the International Finance Corporation’s (IFC) performance standards, international best
risk management practices when financing private sector activities and thereby to significantly reduce
RBCCl's environmental and social risks;

To ensure that all projects include adequate provision for actions and costs necessary to prevent,
control and mitigate negative impacts on the environment and society, and to improve the quality
of both; and

To consider safety and protection of the environment and the people as critical factors in all business
decisions, by appropriately balancing the economic, social, and environmental outcomes.
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B. Principles

RBCCl's Environmental and Social Management identifies its obligation to the environmental and social
aspects and impacts that its activities, products, and services have on society and the pressures have on its
ability to create sustainable value for its stakeholders.

This shall require:

e Developing and managing systems to enable effective risk and opportunity identification, and the
management of performance improvement. This includes setting targets and reporting against them.

e Putting on best practices for a rural bank benchmarked against BSP standards.

e Seeking business solutions and products that provide sustainable development outcomes for RBCCI clients
and the wider business community.

e Certifying environmental and social risk assessment input into the credit granting process. Where a project
that the Bank intends to finance requires specific environmental and social management; a legally binding
action plan shall be developed with the client.

e Mapping out opportunities to address climate risk and support RBCCI clients as they transition to a low-
carbon economy.

e Creating mechanisms to minimize the impact of climate change in communities served by RBCCI.
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C. Environmental and Social Risk Management Policies and Procedures

RBCCI shall adopt Environmental and Social Risk Policies and Procedure to enable Bank personnel to
determine what level of Environmental and Social Risk Management is necessary for each transaction, and to
carry out the necessary investigation. This requires the proactive identification, assessment and management of
environment and social risks before they become significant results in an adverse outcome on the Bank'’s client.
Although this is intended for use in analyzing new potential transactions at the time of application by the client,
this can equally be applied to an existing portfolio, to identify existing loans which may present an environmental
and social risk to the Bank.

1. ldentification and Assessment
RBCCI shall consider the economic sector and location of the borrower as well as the collateral for the
loan to identify the Bank's exposure to environmental and social risks. In identifying and assessing
environmental and social risks in its credit operations and at a minimum shall:
a. Conduct an environmental and social due diligence on the borrower at the start of the client
relationship and on an ongoing basis as part of the assessment of the environmental and social
risk profile and creditworthiness.

b. Request the borrower to submit additional document, such as but not limited to,
certifications/permits as required by law specifically those heavily engaged in the extraction of
natural resources, the emission of carbon and poisonous gases and substances in the air, land,
water and other activities that are identified as harmful to the environment.

c. Consider the ability, willingness and to track record of the borrower in introducing and
implementing environmental and social risk mitigation measures.
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d. Solicit external businesses to assist in the risk identification and assessment process, when
necessary.

e. Upon receipt of the loan application from the client tmoO8o RBCCI, the Loan Reporting
Head/Loan Remedial Head shall undertake the initial screening of the proposed project and
evaluates the loan’s financial objectives to determine the scope of the transaction and verify the
information indicated on the Loan Application such as but limited to the:

i)  Name of Client/Investor

i) Type of proposed activity

iii) Geographical location of the project/activity

iv) Scale of the project/activity

v) Approval from the Local Authorities, as required

vi) Any previous loans obtained for similar purposes

vii) Amount of Loan requested

viii) Any environmental permits/certification as required by law for the proposed project/activity

ix) Any social issues arising from the proposed project/activity, such as but not limited to heavy
engagement in the extraction of natural resources, emission of carbon and poisonous gases
or substances in the air, land, and water or other activities identified as harmful to the
environment.

f. After securing the required data, the Loan Reporting Head/Loan Remedial Head shall commence
with the identification activity of environmental and social risks that RBCCl and its clients are
exposed to (e.g., weather changes to assets, danger of employees due to political unrest or
pandemic, or effects of persistent typhoons/ droughts) are determined by which locations which
are salient for maintaining the respective businesses.
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g. ldentification of environmental and social risk factors shall include the investigation of the cause-
effect relationship and/or common triggers against every risk type as identified in the Bank's risk
taxonomy, a comprehensive set of risk categories. Thus, within each risk type an examination
must be made of the extent the environmental and social risk are apt to change the assessment
of the respective risk type.

2. Measurement and Evaluation

RBCCI shall measure and manage the environmental and social risks relative to its credit operations. It
shall measurement methodologies that capture, qualify, and assess the most analysis aligned with RBCCl's
business model, risk appetite, and credit risk strategy. At a minimum, RBCCI shall:

a.

Adopt measurement methods and tools to qualify, physical and transition risks related to
climate change and other environmental and social risk exposures.

Conduct stress testing exercises to include scenario analysis using probable scenarios and
forward-thinking information to avoid miscalculating potential environmental and social risks.

Results of the stress testing exercises shall serve as input in the monitoring and assessment
of the borrower’s account and/or loan portfolio and recommend to the Board of Directors for
the review and/or revision of relevant policies, procedures, risk appetite and credit strategies.

Adopt a methodology to translate the assessed environmental and social risks to potential
impact on the cashflow or the borrower.

. Regularly communicate with borrowers to keep them abreast of their continuing alignment

with RBCCl's environmental and social strategic objectives and targets throughout the terms
of their loan or throughout the duration of the client relationship.
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e. Conduct site visits or validation review on the actual use of the loan proceeds to ensure that
the credit granted was used for the purpose/s applied for. In this manner, Management may
verify if the application of the loan is consistent with the RBCCl's assessment of environmental
and social risk.

A crucial step in measuring and evaluation environmental and social risks is the assessment of the current
environmental and social risk exposure. Due to the range of dependencies across various financial and non-

financial types of risks, risks must be evaluated for every risk type, as follows:
o Financial Risk

a. Credit Risk — The risk of loss arising from the failure of a borrower, issuer, or counterparty
to meet its financial obligations to the Bank. The Bank is exposed to credit risk in the
management of its investment assets and in the standard and non-standard monetary policy
operations it conducts.

b. Market Risk — The risk of loss resulting from changes in market risk factors, including
interest rates, repricing of investments and credit spreads.

c. Liquidity Risk — The risk of financial loss or difficulties associated with being unable to meet
short term financial demands arising from E&S problems. That is, converting assets into
cash. This may also arise on a discretionary basis from the Bank’s holdings of investment
assets.

o Non-financial Risk
a. Operational Risk — The risk stemming from potential disruption of the client's operations
because of environmental and social problems. If not managed properly, these problems
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can affect a client’s stability to meet its financial obligations to the Bank and/ or can drive
down the value of a client’s collateral in the context of a transaction.

b. Reputation Risk — The risk due to potentially negative publicity associated with a client’s
poor environmental and social practices harming the financial institution’s brand value and
image in the media, with the public, the business and financial community, even its own
personnel.

c. Legal Risk - The risk stemming from a client’'s legal obligations which includes fines,
penalties, and costs for addressing third-party claims for damages due to negligence in
managing the environmental and social risks in a client’s operations and clean-up of
contamination. If the Bank is a principal shareholder of a client’s operations, it may also be
directly liable for all environmental and social risks associated with a client’s operations.
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After the loan has been evaluated against the financial and non-financial risk types, the Loan Reporting
Head/Loan Remedial Head shall conduct a stress test that will cover:

a. The effects of change/s to RBCCI's projects such as but not limited to the development and
launching of new services/products, sourcing for new contracted service providers, acquisition
activities, etc., as applicable.

b. The current risk exposures to include evaluating of RBCCl's capital adequacy as well as
calculating regulatory and economic capital.

¢. The Environment and Climate Risks (Physical and Transition) to include factors that may have
impact to the RBCCl's Loan Portfolio, such as:

i) ldentify sources of client-specific location data (e.g., residence/ building for real estate
financing, production sites for corporations) as basis to stimulate impact from physical
climate threats.

i) Evaluate how increased physical climate threats will impact the valuation of the asset
and credit rating of the client.

iii) Analyze the material loan exposures to better understand channels of and transition
risks impacting asset valuation and credit rating of the client.

o Environmental and Social Risks
a. Physical Risk — Potential loss or damage to tangible assets arising from climate change
and/or other weather-related conditions such as floods, typhoons, droughts, extreme
weather variability, and rising sea levels.
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Note: These events can disrupt businesses and clients’ income cycle or cash flow affecting
the clients’ capability to pay their loans from banks resulting to deterioration of the
quality of the Bank’s loan portfolio.

b. Transition Risk — Potential economic adjustment cost resulting from policy, legal,
technology, and market changes to meet climate change mitigation and adaption
requirements.

o Loan Categorization
After evaluating the loan application against possible environmental and social risks, evaluate the loan
according to the Loan Categorization of Transaction:

a. Category A (High Risk): Business activities with potential significant adverse environmental
or social risks and/or impacts that are diverse, irreversible, or unprecedented. The loan
application can be recommended for approval subject to the loan applicant’s willingness to
comply Environmental and Social Risk Compliance Requirements based on national and local
regulations as well as the International Financial Corporation’s (IFC) performance standards.

b. Category B (Moderate Risk): Business activities with potential limited adverse environmental
or social risks and/or impacts that are few, generally site-specific, largely reversible, and
readily addressed through mitigation measures. The loan application can be approved
subject to the loan applicant's compliance with environmental and social policies and
procedures, regulatory requirements, national and local laws, etc.
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c. Category C (Low Risk): Business activities with minimal or no adverse environmental or social
risks and/or impacts. The loan application can be approved without additional requirements
to comply with environmental and social mitigation actions.

Upon completing the evaluation, the Loan Reporting Head/Loan Remedial Head shall endorse the loan
application to the President and CEO for further review and comment. If the President and CEO warrants
that the loan application does not comply with the requirements and/or standards of RBCCI, the loan
application shall be rejected and returned to the Loan Reporting Head/Loan Remedial Head for further review
and analysis. If the Loan Application is approved by the President and CEO, the same shall be endorsed to
the Board of Directors for deliberation and approval, as applicable.

Upon receipt of the Board’s approval, the Loan Reporting Head/Loan Remedial Head shall prepare the
necessary documents to include a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) and discuss with the loan applicant
the terms and conditions of the Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) to include requirements to comply with
environmental and social parameters.

After completing the documentation requirements, the Loan Reporting Head/Loan Remedial Head shall
discuss the terms and conditions of the Memorandum of Agreement and other relevant documents to the
loan applicant prior to the release of the proceeds/funds to the loan applicant.

3. Monitoring
RBCCI shall monitor and evaluate each approved loan on an annual basis to ensure the loan borrower’s

compliance with the terms and conditions stipulated in the Memorandum of Agreement, Environmental and
Social requirements, status implementation of the Agreed Corrective Action Plan, where applicable. In this
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manner, any non-compliance, which increases the loan’s overall risk, can be identified early, and followed up
with the borrower.

The regular monitoring of the loan implementation shall include a review of the borrower’s ongoing
environmental and social performance as well as implementation of corrective actions to warrant if such
actions could be deemed successful or whether additional measures are needed.

As a monitoring process, RBCCI shall identify the borrower’s ongoing Environmental and Social Risk Rating

(ESRR) as guided by the following:

a. “High” ESRR - Indicates serious/critical non-compliance of the borrower. The borrower shall
create a corresponding Corrective Action Plan, inclusive of the timeline for its completion to
mitigate the identified non-conformity/problem. The Corrective Action Plan shall be submitted to
RBCCI within 30 days from the date the borrower was notified of the non-compliance.

b. *Medium” ESRR - Indicates less serious/critical non-compliance or unresolved non-material
issues. The borrower shall create a corresponding Corrective Action Plan, inclusive of the timeline
for its completion to mitigate the identified non-conformity/problem. The Corrective Action Plan
shall be submitted to RBCCI within 60 days from the date the borrower was noticed of the non-
compliance.

c. “LOW” ESRR - Indicates that there is no noted non-compliance and thus, no corrective action
shall be required.
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The Table below shall serve as guide in determining the corresponding ESSR Risk:

E&S Risk Assessment
Activity

E&S Level of Loan

*Confirm compliance from

*Confirm compliance from

operational site visit

visit to check areas of concern

the beneficiary through
Confirm compliance S v g the beneficiary through
Regulatory compliance| from the beneficia aliing warrantee AND check
QRARy o j Ve If concerned check ) :
check through warranties and : : compliance e.g. review
compliance, e.g. review T
covenants s permits/licenses, speak to
permits/licenses, speak to
regulator, etc.
regulator, etc.
Engage beneficiary to assess | Engage beneficiary to assess
Evaluate beneficiary's commitment, capacity and | commitment, capacity and
management of E&S track record in managing E&S |track record in managing E&S
risk risk risk
Conduct an Conduct an operational site | Conduct an operational site

visit to check areas of concern

4. Reporting

The Loans Reporting Head/Loans Remedial Head shall provide the Chief Compliance Officer and Internal
Audit Head with a semi-annual report on the performance of loans and, findings noted during site visits and

corrective measures taken by the borrowers to reduce its overall exposer E&S risk.
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To have a better understanding of RBCCl's overall exposure to E&S risk, the Compliance and Internal Audit
Section shall compile all E&S findings noted on the monthly report of the Loans Reporting Head/Loans
Remedial and aggregate findings at the portfolio level. All findings shall be incorporated into an E&S
aggregate report and submitted to the ICAC Chairman for discussion during the ICAC Committee’s on the
next quarterly meeting, or earlier as necessary.

D. Credit Risk Strategy

RBCCI shall consider environmental and social factors in defining its credit strategy aligned with the
objectives set out by the Board of Directors. In relation to this, the Bank shall review the composition of its
loan portfolio, which may have existing exposures in markets, sectors, or geographic areas vulnerable to material
environmental and social risks. Results of stress testing and scenario analysis shall be considered in setting
credit strategy and risk appetite. Further, RBCCI shall define activities that are eligible for financing based on
its environmental and social objectives and shall be sensitive to potential changes in the business environment
and promptly respond to environmental and social risks in its loan portfolio.

Credit Risk Management System (CRMS)
RBCCI shall consider environmental and social risk in defining credit risk appetite. The type, quality, and

severity of the environmental and social risk shall be evaluated considering different factors such as the type
of loan, location of the borrower, project and/or collateral, business, and industry of the borrower.
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Policies, Procedures and Processes

RBCCI shall adopt policies, procedures, and processes that shall reflect its risk appetite and credit risk
strategy. This shall provide guidance in managing environmental and social risks, which aligns with the
environmental and social objectives of RBCCI, for all its phases of the Credit Risk Management System. Thus,
the board-approved policies, procedures and processes shall:

a. cover the identification and assessments of environmental and social risks coming from the
borrower and loan portfolio levels;

b. provide appropriate metrics, targets, and limits to measure and control exposures; and

c. clearly set out the duties and responsibilities of the Board of Directors, Senior Management
and Internal Audit and Compliance Section

Board-approved policies, procedures, and processes shall be documented in the RBCC Policies and
Procedures Manual which shall be appropriately communicated throughout the organization, and shall be
periodically reviewed and updated, as applicable. Compliance to policies, procedures, and processes shall be
monitored and assessed periodically to ensure that environment and social risks arising from the Bank'’s
credit operations are effectively managed. Deviation from board-approved policies, procedures and
processes shall be documented and approved by the Board of Directors prior to its implementation.
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Summary of the Lending Procedure Incorporated with ESMS

Key Steps

Description

Initial Contract
with Client

Client contacts RBCCI and requests for a loan

Loan Officer interviews the client and assesses whether
the credit request falls within the purview of the Bank'’s
requirements / standards.

Client's Loan
Application

The Loan Officer hands over relevant set of
forms/documents including a loan application form for
the borrow to complete.

The client fills the documents required by RBCCI and
submits the application to the Loan Officer for review.

Evaluation of
the Loan
Application

Loan Reporting Head/Loan Remedial Head shall
evaluate the loan application according to a proactive
identification, evaluation, and management of
environmental and social risks approach.

Identification of
the Project

Conduct an initial screening of the proposed project

and;

a) determine scope of transaction

b) verify the information indicated on the loan
application

c) Identify environmental and social risk factors
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Measurement
and Evaluation
of Loan Risks

Assess the loan application against the various types
of risks to include financial, non-financial,
environmental, and social risks.

Site Visit

Conduct a site visit as part of RBCCl's environmental
and social Due Diligence process to get an initial
understanding of the nature of the project, geographic
location, etc.

Prepare an Inspection Report indicating observations
and findings noted during the site visit.

E & S Risk
Categorization

Categorize the loan application for according to one of
the following Risk Levels:

o lLevel A (High Level) — Business activities with
potential significant adverse environmental or social
risks and/or impacts that are diverse, irreversible, or
unprecedented.

e Level B (Medium Level) - Business activities with
potential limited adverse environmental or social
risks and/or impacts that are few, generally site-
specific, largely reversible, and readily addressed
through mitigation measures.

e Level C (Low Risk) — the business activities with
minimal or no adverse environmental or social risks
and/or impacts.
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- Assess the viability of granting the loan; forward the
loan application to the President and CEO together
with the Loan Application, Inspection Report, and
other pertinent documents along with the
recommendation for the approval of the loan
application

Loan Processing

- The President and CEO approves the loan application
provided the proposal is financially viable (credit
worth) and the facility is within his approval limits.

Approval /
Recommendation

- If the facility is not financially viable, the President
and CEO rejects the application.

- If the loan application requested is beyond the
approval limits of the President and CEO, then the
loan application shall be forwarded to the Board of
Directors along with the recommendation for
approval of the loan application.

- The of Board Directors shall discuss and deliberate
on the viability of the loan application and warrant if
the loan amount is within the Bank’s approval limits.

- If the Board of Directors is not fully satisfied with the
proposed loan application and attaching documents,
the Board shall reject the loan application.

- If the Board of Directors is fully satisfied with the
proposed loan application and its attaching
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documents, the Board of Directors shall approve the
loan application.

Loan
Documentation

Once the loan is approved, the Loan Reporting
Head/Loan Remedial Head shall prepare the loan
documentation, execute the Memorandum of
Agreement to the client and other pertinent
documents as applicable to the proved loan.

Regular
Monitoring

The borrower shall implement the relevant
environmental and social management provisions
and submit reports to RBCCI, as required.

The Loan Officer/Compliance Assistance shall visit
the site of the project/investment for further due
diligence surveillance and submit a report to the
President and CEO and Chief Compliance Officer and
Internal Audit on the level of compliance by the
borrower.

Status of all Environmental and Social Management
Loans and the borrowers’ implementation of the
relevant environmental and social requirements shall
be discussed by the

a) President and CEO during the Board of Directors’
Monthly Meeting, and

b) Chief Compliance Officer and Internal Audit Head
during the Quarterly ICAC Meeting.
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E. Duties and Responsibilities

1. Board of Directors
The Board of Directors shall promote the long-term financial interest of RBCCl and ensures that is has
beneficial influence on the economy consistent with the expectations set under Section 132 of the MORB.
The Board of Directors shall be responsible to:
a. Ensure that environmental and social risks are integrated in RBCCl's operational risk management
framework.

b. Approve portfolio objectives, overall investment strategies, general investment policies, and limits
that are consistent with RBCCl's financial condition and risk tolerance.

c. Oversee the integration of sustainability principles and objectives in the Bank's investment
activities and monitor the progress in attaining such objectives through the relevant committee
(if available) it designated pursuant to Section153, MORB.

d. Institutionalize the adoption of sustainability principles, including those covering environmental
and social risk areas in the Bank, by incorporating the same in the corporate governance and risk
management frameworks, as well as in the Bank’s strategic objectives and operations, risk
strategy, risk appetite and risk management policies and procedures. Moreover, the Board shall:

i) Set strategic environmental and social objectives covering short, medium, and long-term
horizons, including those for credit operations;

ii) Approve the risk appetite on specific risk areas that the Bank is willing and capable to
manage, results of stress testing exercises, and assessments of the timing and channels
though which environmental and social risks may materialize; and
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iii) Ensure that materials on environmental and social risks are considered in the internal capital
planning process.

iv) Ensure that the frequency and manner of monitoring the Bank’s progress in meeting in its
environment and social objectives and targets are not conveyed.

v) Integrate the sustainability agenda in the performance appraisal system.

. Promote a culture that fosters environmentally and socially responsible business decisions. The
Board of Directors (BoD) shall ensure that sustainability implications are considered | the overall
decision-making process.

Approve RBCCl's Environmental Social Risk Management System (ESRMS) that is commensurate
with the Bank’s size, nature, and complexity of operations and oversee its implementation. The
Board of Directors shall ensure that the ESRMS is aligned with locally and internationally
recognized principles, standards and global practices and forms part of the enterprise-side risk
management (ERM) system.

. Ensure that RBCCl's sustainability objective and policies are clearly communicated across the
Bank, and to its investors, clients, suppliers, outsourced services, and other stakeholders.

. Adopt an effective organizational structure to ensure attainment and continuing relevance of the
Bank’s sustainability objectives. The BoD or the designated board-level or management
committee shall monitor the Bank’s progress in attaining sustainability objectives.

Monitor the progress on the Bank in meeting its environmental and social strategic objectives
and targets and ensures that issues in meeting the same are addressed.
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Institutionalize a capacity building program for the BoD, all levels of management, and personnel
to equip the bank in identifying, measuring, monitoring, and controlling environmental and social
risks. The BoD shall likewise ensure that key personnel shall possess adequate knowledge, skills,
and expertise necessary to perform their work.

Ensure that adequate resources are available to attain the Bank’s sustainability objectives. The
BoD shall ensure that the members of the Board, Management and personnel are regularly
apprised of the developments on sustainability standards and practices.

Adopt an effective communication strategy to inform both internal and external stakeholders of
RBCCl's environmental and social strategic objectives and targets.

. Ensure that the sustainability agenda is integrated in the Bank’s performance appraisal system.

For Credit Risk Management System, the Board of Directors shall set strategies with
environmental and social objectives and targets for RBCCl's credit operations covering short,
medium, and long-term horizon to facilitate the integration of environmental and social principles
in lending operations. This may include progressively increasing targets on the proportion of
loan portfolio allocated for sustainable financing. Further, the Board of Directors shall:

i) Set out clear criteria involving decisions to finance high environmental and social risks
sector during the said term horizons. The criteria shall consider the long-term financial
interest of RBCCI and its role in contributing to the sustainable goals and growth of the
economy.

ii) Ensure comprehensive discussions of credit related environmental and social risk of RBCCI,
to include deviations from strategic objectives and targets set.

o. For Operational Risk Management System, the Board of Directors shall:
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i) Ensure that environmental and social risks are integrated in the operational risk
management framework.

ii) Ensure that RBCCl's policies and procedures include the extent of the Bank’s engagement
with its counterparties, including the supplier and outsourced service providers, with
regards to the adoption of sustainability principles, in accordance with its strategy.

2. Senior Management
Senior Management shall be responsible for the overall implementation of the Board-approved credit
strategies, policies, and procedures in relation to the adoption of sustainability principles. In this regard,
Senior Management shall:
a. Ensure effective implementation of policies, procedures, and processes to identity measure,
monitor and control environmental and social risks arising from its credit operations, both at
the individual and portfolio levels.

b. Consider environmental and social factors in the credit understating and loan pricing
frameworks as well as in determining allowance for credit losses.

c. Ensure that the reporting lines and the duties and responsibilities of personnel and officers
with respect to the management of environmental and social risks related to operations are
clear, well-defined, and adequately documented.

d. Facilitate the identification of environmental and social risks that may affect the performance
of key personnel and officers that could serve as the source of operational risks.

e. Conduct an assessment, at least annually or as frequently as necessary of the continuing
relevance of the ESRM policies and procedures considering the developments in the business
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environment. The assessment shall verify the vulnerability of RBCCl's systems, operations and
branches/BLUs to physical risks and other disaster-related events.

f. Facilitate the identification, assessment, monitoring, and mitigation of environmental and
social risks.

g. Ensure that RBCCI takes a holistic approach in managing environmental and social risks aligned
with the strategic objectives set by the Board of Directors.

h. Ensure that the Bank activities are aligned with the overall environmental and social strategic
objectives and targets.

i. Ensure adoption of methodologies and tools that will effectively identify, and quantify, monitor
and control environmental and social risks.

j- Ensure that the policies, procedures, and processes are clearly and communicated across the
organization.

k. Assess consistently of operations and performance of personnel with the RBCCl's sustainability
objectives.

|. Report to the Board of Directors periodically regarding the Bank’s exposure to environmental
and social risks arising from the credit operations, which shall include but not limited to,
potential issues associated with both internal and external activities of its borrowers that may
have material impact on RBCClI’s reputation.

m. Apprise the Board of Directors or the Internal Control and Audit (Compliance) Committee
(ICAC), RBCCI's exposure to environmental and social risks on a regular basis which shall
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include potential issues associated with both internal and external activities of RBCCl's clients
that may have material impact on the Bank's portfolio or reputation. Furthermore, Senior
Management shall report its progress in implementing RBCCl's sustainability policies and
ESRMS.

n. Develop portfolio objectives that set out the acceptable instruments, expected business
returns, desired asset distribution and diversification constraints, and other elements of sound
investment management. The portfolio objectives should likewise provide how the investment
activities will be aligned with the sustainability objective of RBCCI.

o. For Credit Risk Management System, Senior Management shall:

i) Ensure effective implementation of policies, procedures, and processes to identify,
measure, monitor, and control environmental and social risks arising from credit
operations, both at the individual and portfolio levels.

i) Consider environmental and social factors in the credit underwriting and loan pricing
frameworks as well as determine allowance for credit losses.

iii) Regularly inform the Board of Directors regarding RBCCl's exposure to environmental
and social risks arising from its credit operations including potential issues related with
the activities of its borrowers that have material impact and the corresponding control
measures to mitigate such risks.

p. For Operational Risk Management System, the Senior Management shall:
i) Be responsible for the overall implementation of the board-approved policies,
procedures, and systems for managing operational risk arising from environmental and
social risks consistent with the risk appetite set of the Board of Directors.
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i) Ensure that the reporting lines and the duties and responsibilities of RBCCI personnel
and officers with respect to the management of environment and social risks related to
operations are well-defined, and effectively documented in the RBCC Policies and
Procedures Manual.

iii) Simplify the identification of environmental and social risks that may affect performance
of key personnel ad officers that could serve as source of operational risk.

iv) Conduct an assessment, annually or as frequently as necessary, of the vulnerability of
RBCCl's systems, operations, and branch/BLUs to physical risks and other disaster-
related events.

3. Internal Audit and Compliance
The Internal Audit and Compliance Section shall:
a. Conduct an assessment on the compliance to Rural Bank of Calbayog City, Inc.'s (RBCCI)
Environmental and Social Risk Management System (ESRMS) in compliance with:
i) BSP issued mandates on Sustainable Finance Framework (Circular No. 1085 dated 29
April 2020)
ii) Environment and Social Risk Management (ESRM) Framework (Circular No. 1128 dated
26 October 2021),
iii) Guidelines on the Integration of Sustainability Principles in Investment Activities of Banks
(Circular No. 1149 dated 23 August 2022),
iv) Regulations of other financial authorities, government laws, acceptable industry
standards and company policies and procedures as documented in RBCC Policies and
Procedures Manual.
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b. Report to the ICAC Chairman any observed deviation from environmental and social- related
regulations, government laws, company policies and procedures.

c. Ensures that any non-compliance observed or noted against RBCCI shall be appropriately
resolved within the acceptable timeframe.

As part of RBCCl's commitment to its Environmental and Social Management System, the Bank shall focus
on raising awareness of environmental and social risk issues and mitigants among its employees and Board of
Directors. It shall likewise keep all personnel abreast with the developments in the relevant Environmental and
Social-related policies, regulatory and statutory requirements, best practices, and company policies and
procedures by conducting training (face-to-face or online), employee meetings or by issuing of interoffice
memorandums, as applicable.
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SECTION VIII. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2023 Audited
Financial Statements.t
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC. is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, including the schedules attached
therein, for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, in accordance with the prescribed
financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such intemal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In prepanng the financial statements, management is mp’onsiblc for assessing the Bank's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the schedules
attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders or members.

JACKIE LOU R. OCBENIA-DUNGCA, CPA the independent auditor appointed by the
stockholders, has audited the financial statements of the bank in accordance with Philippine
Standards on Auditing, and in their report to the stockholders, have e:prssed its opinion on
the faimess of presentation upon completion of such audit.

M@: ARIOR. SANTOS

Chairperson of the Board

ALAN GILES MARY S. SARMIENTO
President iel Executive Officer
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURN

The management of RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC. is responsible for all
information and representations contained in the Annual Income Tax Retum for the years
ended December 31, 2023 and 2022. Management is likewise responsible for all information
and representation contained in the financial statements accompanying the Annual Income Tax
Return covering the same reporting period. Furthermore, the Management is responsible for all
information and representation contained in all the other tax retums filed for the reporting
period, including but not limited, to the value added tax and/or percentage tax retumns,
withholding tax returms, and any all other tax retumns,

In this regard, the Management affirms that the attached audited financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and the accompanying Annual Income Tax Retumn
are in accordance with the books and records of RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY,
INC. are complete and correct in all material respects.

Management likewise affirms that:

a. The Annual Income Tax Return has been prepared in accordance with the provisions
of the National Internal Revenue Code, as amended, and pertinent tax regulation and
other issuances of the Department of Finance and the Bureau of Internal Revenue;

b. Any disparity of figures in the submitted reports arising from the . preparation of
financial statements pursuant to financial accounting standards and the preparation of
the income tax return pursuant to tax accounting rules has been reported as reconciling
items and maintained in the company’s books and records in accordance with the
requirements of Revenue Regulations No. 8-2007 and other relevant issuances,

¢. The RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC. has filed all applicable tax
returns, reports and statements required to be filed under Philippine tax laws for the
reporting period, and all taxes and other impositions shown thereon to be due and
payable have been paid for the reporting period, except those contested in good faith.

MA‘ ARI SANTOS
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ACCOUNTING OFFICE

JACKIE LOU ROXAS OCBENIA ACCOUNTING OFFICE
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

#212 Prk. 3 Brgy.Suclayin, Arayat, Pampanga
Cp. #0919-272-3574/ jackiclou_ocbenia®yahoo.com

To Officer in Charge
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
Malate, Manda:

In accordance with your instructions, | have undertaken the financial audit of the RURAL BANK OF
CALBAYOG CITY, INC. for the year ended December 31, 2023. In this regard, | am respectfully
submitting the following reports enumerated below:

Audited Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2023;

Supplemental and Written representations required by SEC,

Reconciliation statement of Audited Financial Statements vis-a-vis submitted balance sheet

and income statement;

Certification by the EA under Section 174 of the MORB:

a dates of start and termenation of audit;

b. date of submission of the Financial Audit Report and certification under oath stating that no
matenal weakness or breach in the internal control and risk management systems was
noted in the course of the audit;

c. the absence of any direct or indirect financial interest and other circumstances that may
impair the independence of the EA;

5. Reports required to be submitted under Appendix 55 (Appendix to Section 174),

a Any maternal finding involving fraud or dishonesty (inciuding cases that were resolved
during the period of audit) and any potential losses the aggregate of which amounts to at
least ten percent (10%) of the consolidated assets of the Bank;

b, Termination or resignation as EA and stating the reasons therefore;

c. Discovery of any matenal breach of laws of BSP rules and regulations such as but not
Wb(a)mmwhwwm(b)mmmmm
for credit losses, (c.) material weaknesses in fair value measurement methodology, and
(d.) significant vuinerabilities to money laundering and combating the financing of terrorism,;
and

d. Findings on matters of corporate governance that may require urgent action by the BSP.

Duning the course of my audit, | received excelient cooperation from the officers and members of their
staff. To them. | express my appreciation and my thanks.

Respectfully yours,

2 NS

4278594, January 09, 2024,
Clyol San Fermando Pampanga
BIR ACC . No.: 04-005756-001-2022, Expiring on January 2025
BOA ACC No.:5299, Expining on June 30, 2024
BSP ACC No. 146814; CY 2021-2025
10

March 24. 2024

Member: Philippine Institute of Certified Public Accountants




ACCOUNTING OFrrFict

JACKIE LOU ROXAS OCBENIA ACCOUNTING OFFICE
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

#212 Prk. 3 Brgy.Suclayin, Arayat, Pampanga
Cp. #0919-272-3574/ jackielou_ocbenia®yahoo.com

STATEMENT OF REPRESENTATION

TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

In connection with my examination on the financial statements of RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY,
INC. for the year ended December 31, 2023 which are to be submitted to the Commission, | hereby
represent the following:

1. That | am in the active practice of the accounting profession and duly registered with the
Board of Accountancy (BOA),

2 That the financial statements are presented in conformity with the Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards, in all cases where | shall express an unqualified opinion, except that in
case of any departure from such principles, | shall indicate the nature of the departure, the
effects thereof and the reasons why compliance with the principles would result in a misleading
statement if such is a fact,

3. That | fully met the requirements of independence as provided in the Code of Professional
Ethics for CPAs;

4, That in the conduct of such audit, | complied with the Philippine Standard of Auditing
promuigated by the Board of Accountancy, in case of any departure from such standards or

any limitations in the scope of my examination, | shall indicate the nature of the departure and
lhoulunofhniuﬁon the reasons therefore and the effects thereof on the expression of my
opinion or which may necessitate the negation of the expression of an opinion; and

5. That reiative to the expression of my opinion, on the financial statements, | shall not commit
any act discreditable to the profession as provided under the Code of Professional Ethics for
CPAs.

As a CPA engage in public practice, | make these representations in my individual capacity.

~

JA L -DUNGCA, CPA
A

PTR No.:4278594, January 09, 2024,

City of San Fernando Pampanga

BIR ACC.No.: 04-005756-001-2022, Expiring on January 2025
BOA ACC.No.:5299, Expiring on June 30, 2024

BSP ACC No. 146814, CY 2021-2025

March 24, 2024

Member: Philippine Institute of Certified Public Accountants




ACCOUNTING OFFICE

JACKIE LOU ROXAS OCBENIA ACCOUNTING OFFICE

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
#212 Prk. 3 Brgy.Suclayin, Arayat, Pampanga
Cp. 20919-272 3574 jackielou_ocbenin®yahboo.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the audit of the financial statements

| have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of the RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC. of the
Siatements of Financial Position as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and the Statements of income, Statements
of Changes in Equity and Statements of Cash Flows for the years then ended, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and explanatory notes.

to fraud or eror,

in prepanng the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to continue as a
going concerm, disciosing as appicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concem basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the enbdity or 10 cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but 1o do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process.

My objectives are to obtain a reasonable assurance about whother the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement whether due 1o fraud or error, and 10 issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with PSAs will always dotect a material misstatement when 2 exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered matenial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the




economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As pan of an audit in accordance with PSAs, | exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. | also:

Identify and assess the risks of matenal misstatement of the financal misstatements, whether due to fraud
or efror, design and perform audit procedures responsive 10 these risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate 10 provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud s higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Bank's internal control. Intemal control redevant to the audit in order 10 design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Bank's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disciosures made by management.

NMwWMMNWMbma.MMNIMM
a material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention 10 my auditor's report o the related
disciosures in the financial statements or, if such disciosures are inadequate to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audt evidence ocbtained up 10 the date of the auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the entity 10 Cease, of 10 CONtiNUe as 3 GOINg ConNcoarm.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, Including the
disclosures, and whether, the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in the intemnal control that | identify
during my audit.

CPA Cert

JACKIE L% -DUNGCA, CPA
.. 4278594, January 09, 2024

aryo!s;nFemando

BIR ACC.No.: 04-005756-001 2022 Expiring on January 2025
BOA ACC.No..5299, Expiring on June 30, 2024

BSP ACC No. 146814, CY 2021-2025

g

March 24, 2024 iy

Member: Philippine Institute of Certiffed Public Accountants




ACCOUNTING OFFICE

JACKIE LOU ROXAS OCBENIA ACCOUNTING OFFICE

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
#212 Prk. 3 Brgy.Suclayin, Arayat, Pampanga
Cp. #0919-272-3574/ jackiclou_ocbenia®yahoo.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
FOR SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.

82 T. Bugalion Street, Calbayog City, Samar

| have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements of RURAL
BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC. as at and for the taxable year ended December 31, 2023 on which |
Issued my report thereon dated March 24, 2024. My audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion
on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The Supplementary Schedule on financial soundness
indicators including their definitions, formulas, and calculation, and their appropriateness or usefuiness to
the intended users, are the responsibility of the Bank's management.

These financial soundness indicators are not measures of operating performance defined by Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) and may not be comparable to similarly titled measures presented
by other banks. This schedule is presented for the purpose of complying with the Revised Securities
Regulation Code, Rule 68 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission, and is not a required part
of the basic financial statements prepared in accordance with PFRS. The components of these financial
soundness indicators have been traced to the Bank's financial statements as at December 31, 2023 and
no material exceptions were noted.

Pampanga
BIR ACC.No.: 04-005756-001-2022, Expiring on January 2025
BOA ACC.No.:5299, Expiring on June 30, 2024
BSP ACC No. 146814; CY 2021-2025

March 24, 2024




ACCOUNTING OFFICE

JACKIE LOU ROXAS OCBENIA ACCOUNTING OFFICE
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

#212 Prk. 3 Brgy.Suclayin, Arayat, Pampanga
Cp. #0919-272-3574/ jackielou_ocbenia®yahoo.com

SUPPLEMENTAL WRITTEN STATEMENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.

82 T. Bugallon Street, Calbayog City, Samar

Gentlemen:

| have examined the financial statements of the RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC. for the
year ended December 31, 2023, on which | have rendered the attached report dated 24 March 2024.

In compliance with SRC Rule 68, | am stating that the bank has a total of twenty-seven (27) stockholders
owning One Hundred (100) or more common shares each as at December 31, 2023.

In compliance with Revenue Regulations V-20, | am stating that | and the immediate members of my
family are not related by consanguinity or affinity to the members of the Board of Directors, majority
stockholders or principal officers of the Bank.

PTRNo ‘4278594, January 09, 2024,

City of San Fernando Pampanga

BIR ACC.No.: 04-005756-001-2022, Expiring on January 2025
BOA ACC.No.:5299, Expiring on June 30, 2024

BSP ACC No. 146814, CY 2021-2025

March 24, 2024

Member: Philippine Institute of Certified Public Accountants




ACCOUNTING OFFICE

JACKIE LOU ROXAS OCBENIA ACCOUNTING OFFICE

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
#212 Prk. 3 Brgy Suclayin, Arayat, Pampanga
Cp. #0919-272-3574/ jackielou_ocbenia®yahoo.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO ACCOMPANY INCOME TAX RETURN

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.

82 T. Bugallon Street, Calbayog City, Samar
Gentlemen:

| have audited the financial statements of the RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC. for the year
ended December 31, 2023, on which | have rendered the attached report dated 24 March 2024.

In compliance with Revenue Regulations V-20, | am stating that | and the immediate members of my
family is not related by consanguinity or affinity to the members of the Board of Directors, majority
stockholders or principal officers of the Bank.

The schedule of taxes paid and accrued by the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2023 is embodied
in Note 28 of the Audited Financial statements attached to the Income Tax Return,

o

PTR No.:4278584, January 09, 2024,

City of San Fernando Pampanga

BIR ACC.No.: 04-005756-001»2022 Expiring on January 2025
BOA ACC.No.:5299, Expiring on June 30, 2024

BSP ACC No. 146814, CY 2021-2025

March 24, 2024
@)

Member: Philippine Institute of Certified Public Accountants




RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at December 31

2023 2022

ASSETS
Cash and her Cash ltems (Note 7.1) 5,602,854 4912775
Due from BSP and other Banks [Mode 7.2) 68,495,560 112,877,147
Debt Securities Measured at Amartized Cost [MNote B) 5,511,994 204,821
Loans and Recaivabla, Mat (Mote 3) 103. 724,861 B80.915.979
Bank Premises, Furnilure, Fixturas and Equipmant. Net (Maota 10] 926,330 794,732
Investmant Propertias (Maota 11) 3,494,341 2.234,652
Right of Use Assets (Mote 12) 301,452 538,002
Intangible Assets (Note 13) 353,806 414,409
Oriher Assets (Moba 14) 453,218 418.087
Delarrad Tax Assets (Mate 24) 25,346 111126
TOTAL ASSETS 192,889, 765 203,421,739
LIABILITIES & SHAREHOLDERS" EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Dexposit Liabilities (Mote 15) 136,444,153 146,638,029
Bills Payabde (Note 16) - 7.049,058
Accrued Interest, Taxes and Other Expenses Payable (Mote 17) 51,588 L8886
Oiher Liabilities (Mota 18) 4,337,037 4,204,635
Incaome Tax Payable 175,331 351,242
TOTAL LIABILITIES 141,008,109 158,301,850
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share Capital [Mote 19)

Ordinary Share Capital 20,000,000 20,000,000

Praferred Stock 5,000,000 A, 005,000
Retained Earnings 26,881,656 21,114,885
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 51,881,656 45,119,289
TOTAL LIABILITIES & SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 192,888,765 P 203,421,739
BOOK VALUE PER SHARE 259.41 22560

See dccampanying Notes to Financial Slatermeants
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RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the Years Ended December 31

2023 2022

INTEREST INCOME ON
Loans & Recaivablas [Mots 9) P 12,168,385 P 11428120
Sales Contract Receiveble (Mote 5.1) 628,605 206,548
Due Tromm Other Banks (Mate 7.2) 153,525 162,278
Dbt Securitas Measured at Amortized Cost [Mote B) 253,439 5,260

13,203,964 11,882,206
INTEREST EXPENSE ON
Savings Deposils (Note 14) 926,648 812,221
Laasa Liabdities 18,145 2,273

944,793 214,494

MET INTEREST INCOME 12,258,171 11,077,712
iher Incame [Mote 20] 12,104,178 3,667,524
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 24,363,350 14,745,236
OTHER OFERATING EXPENSES
Provision for Credit Losses - 57,818
Compensation and Fringe Benefits (Mate 21) 7,619,450 6,395,809
Oiher Oparating Expansas (Nota 23) 7,192,660 5.321.898
Depraciaton and Amartization (MNate 24) 445,044 303.875
Taxes and Licensas (Mole 28) 852,132 567,172
TOTAL OFPERATING EXPENSES 16,213,286 13,046,862
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 8,150,064 1,688,374
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX [Mote 24) 1,266,978 352 468
MET INCOME AFTER INCOME TAX P 6,883,085 P 1,345,906
EARMINGS PER SHARE P 34.42 6573

See accampariying Notes to Financial Slatermants.
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RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

ORDINARY SHARE RETAINED

CAPITAL PREFERRED EARNINGS - FREE  Total Equity

(Note 19) STOCK
Balance at January 1, 2023 P 20,000,000 P 4,005000 P 21,114,888 P 45119,889
Issuance of shares - 895,000 - 995,000
Total income for the year - - 6,883,085 6,883,085
Issuance of Dividends - - - -
Provision and Adjustments - - [1,116,318) (1,116,318)
Balance at December :I‘Ii 2023 Evl}imtlll]ﬂﬂ 5lnm a[ii] 26 BE1|EEE 5‘IIH-E1 B56
Balance at lanuary 1, 2022 20,000,000 2,832 400 20,905,858 43,738,258
Issuance of shares - 1,172,600 - 1,172,600
Total incomea Tar the year - - 1,245,906 1,345,906
lssuance of Dividends - 480,100 (480, 100)
Frovisions and Adjustmeants - - 1656, 7T75] (656, 7T5)
Balance al Decambar 31i 2022 P EIIIiE-CII}.I'_'IIZIU P 4|{ID5 gog P 21,11 4IEB‘EI & 115i'l 19 889

See accompanying Noles o Financial Statemenls.
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RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.

TATEMENTS OF H FLL

For the Years Ended December 31

2023 2022
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before tax P 8,150,064 P 1,688,374
Adjustment 1o reconcile Mat Income bo
Miat cash provided by operating activibes:
DepreciationdAmortization (Mote 10, 11, 12 and 22) 449,044 303,875
Appraisal on Bank Buildings -
Gain on sale of ROPA -
Adjusiments to Invesiment Properiies -
Mon-cash adjustments on bank premises, furrsture, fixtures and equipment 37,583 -
Income from Asset Acquired (Mote 18) (2,722, 0000} -
Provision for credit losses on loans receivable - LT
Interest Income {13,203, 064) {11, B8 206)
Interesi Expensea 244,783 El1d, 494
Cperating income before working capital adjusiments (6,344, 480) {8, 717.645)
Decreasal(Increase) in:
Loans & Feceivables (Mote 9) (22,808, 882) 14, 722.413)
Ceher Assets (Mote 14) (35,121} 1,619
Increase / (Decrease) in current Babilities
Deposd Rabdities (Mate 15) {10,193, 876) 19,655,433
Accneed interest, taxes and other expense payabla [Maote 17) (7,208) 15,492
Caher Babdties (Mate 18) 354,256 1,218,554
Interest recenad 13,203, 964 11,682,206
Interest paid (944, 783) (E14,494)
Income Taxes paid (1,442,778} (163,297)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES {28,218, 00) 18,365,462
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Debt Securities Measwred at Amortized Cost (8,307,174} 4BE,931
Cash payments on Investment Properties (Note 11) (1,288,926) (BEE,4TT)
Cash payments on Premises, Fumniture, & Equipment [Nobe 10) (291,838) (54,690)
Cash receipts from Acquered Assets 2,722,000 -
MET CASH PROVIDED [USED IN) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B,165,938) [252,236)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Adjusiments Charged to Fetained Eamings (1,116,318} (BSE,775)
Issuance of Shares 995, 000 1,172,600
Payments of Lease Liabilities {136, 185) (117,730)
Payment of Cash Dividends - (4B0,100)
Procceds (Peyments) of Bills Payables (7.049,058) 2,143,730
MNET H PROVIDED ED IN} BY FINARCIN TIVITIE 308, 2081,725
MET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS {43,691, 508) 20,176,351
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING 117,788,922 97,613,571
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS - ENDING P 74,098,414 ¥ 117, TER, 922

£2 ACCOmpAny g 5 [0 FITAITCAa,
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RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.

FINAMCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
As of December 31, 2023

2023 2022 Increasea
[Decrease)
FOR THE YEAR
TOTAL INCOME 25,308,143 15,559,730 9,748,413
TOTAL EXPENSES 18,425,059 14,213,825 4,211,234
MET INCOME 6,883,084 1,345,905 5537179
EARMNIMGS PER SHARE
Ordimary Shares 34.42 6.73 27.69
RETURN OM AVERAGE EQUITY 14.19% 3.03% 11.16%:
RETURN OM AVERAGE ASSETS 34T% 0.71% 2.77T%:
MNET INTEREST MARGIN B.72% 6.27% 0.45%
AT YEAR EMD
TOTAL ASSETS 192 B89, 765 203,421,739 (10,531,973)
LOAMNS AND RECEIVAELES [NET) 103,724 861 B0,915,979 22,808, 882
LIQUID ASSETS 187,335,269 198,910,721 [11,575,452)
FIXED ASSETS 826,330 T84, 732 131,588
DEPOSIT LIABILITIES 136,444,153 146,638,029 (10,193,876)
EQUITY ACCOUNTS 51,881,656 45,119,889 6,761,767
BOOK VALUE PER SHARE
Ordimary Shares 259.41 225 60 33.81

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO 35.02% 19.55% 15.47%
PAST DUE RATIO 20.39% 33.46% -13.08%
RATIO OF LIGUID ASSETS: OVER

DERPOSITS 137.30% 135.65% 1.65%:
DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO 271.79% 150.85% (0.79)
RATID OF TOTAL FIXED ASSETS OVER

ECQUITY ACCOUNTS 1.78% 1.76% 0.02%:
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RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the yaars ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC. (“the Bank™) was incorporated and registered with the Philipgpirns
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on February 6, 1959 with Registration Mo, 14952 and granted by thea
Bangko Samtral ng Pilipinas (B5F) an adutharity 1o operate on February 7. 1959,

The Bank was organized under Rural Bank Act of 1952 (Republic Act No. T20, as amanded by Republic Act No.
7353) primarily 1o carry and engage in the business of extending rural credit 1o small farmers and tenants and to
desarving rural ndusines o enterprises; o have and exercise all authority and powers, o do and parform all acts,
and to ransact all business which may lagally be had or dome by Rural Banks organized under and in accordancea
with the Rural Banks' Act, as it exisis or may be amended, and to do all other things incident therato and
necaessary and proper in connection with said purpose within such territory as may ba determined by the Monetary
Board of the Central Bank of the Philippines. The Bank i also subject 1o the provisions of Republic Act (RA)
No.8781, otherwise as the General Banking Law of 2000.

The Bank’s principal address which is also its registered address located at B2 T. Bugallon Sireet, Calbayog City,
Samar and is domiciled in the Philippines. The Bank currently holds its main offlice at Calbayog City, Samar. It has
curramly twe (2] branchas and one (2) branch-ie offlice locataed at:

1. Allen I:BI'EII'IEh} Fizal %=1 'SE_’II:IE_”II'Ig I, Allen, Marthern Sarmar

2. S1a. Margarita (Branch) Brgy. Monbaon, Sta. Margarita, Samar

3. Moneyshop (Exenson Office) Stall #7170 Mew Public Market, Brgy. Bagacey, Calbayog City, Samar
4. Chquendo (Branch-lite Ollice) Public Market, BErgy. Oquendo [Pob.), Calbayog City, Samar

Approval of Financial Statermerits
The accomparying financial statements al the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2023 were authorized for
Esue by s Board of Directors on Barch 24, 2024,

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIAMNMCE

The significant accounting polickes applied in he preparation of these lirarcial statements are set out separalaly
below or explairnad in the respactive notas o hese firsarcial statermems. Thesa policies have been consistently
applied to the periods presanted. unless olherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying linancial statements hawve been preparad on a historical cost basis excepl Tor financial assets
atl fair value through profit or oss (FYWTPL), financial assets at fair value through olher comprefensive inoomea
(FWTOCH and derivative financial instroments, if amy, thal have been measwred at fair value. Tha financial
stalamants are presented in Phalippine peso (") and all valuas are rounded 10 the nearest peso excapl swhen
othenwise indicated.

The acoompanying linarncial statements have been preparad on a hisloncal cost bass excapl for financial assets
al Fair valua thwr o profit or loss (FYTPL), financial assets at fair value through othsar compeefensiee Incoms
(FVWTOCI) and derivative financial instruments, if amy, that have been measwred ab fair value. Tha linancial
statamants are presamed in Phalippine peso "F7) and all valeas are rounded 10 the nearest peso excapl swhen
alhenanse indicated.

Historical cost is ganarally based on the fair value al the cansideration given in exchangs for goods and sarvices,
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Fair value is the price that would be receivad 1o sell an assael of pand Lo wansler a liability in an orderly transaction
between markel paricpants at the measurement date, regardiess of wiether that price 1s directly observabde or
astimated using anothar valuation techrque. In astirmating the fair vahoe ol an assel or a liability. the Bank takas
inte accouwnt the characteristics of the asset or liability i markel paricipants would take thosa charactersics inlo
account whan pricmg tha assal or kakality at the measurement date.

Far limancial I'E'pﬂl'til‘ig PUrNPOSES, fair valuea meaasuramants are Cﬂt&gﬂr’i&&ﬂ iMo Lewel 1, 2 or 3 an thea I'.'lEE"-EE La
witnch inputs o the lair value measurements are observabla and the signiﬁtam:e al the iI"IP'L.Il.'E“- Lo R Taur walusa
measurerment in its Er'll"E'l."lll', which are described as lollows:
«  Lewel 7 inpuls are quotad prices (unadpasted) in active markels for identical assels o habilities that the entty
can access al measwrement dale.
«  Lendel 2 inpuls are inputs, other than quoted prices includad swithin Lenval 1, that are obsarvabla for the assel or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and
= Lewel 3 inpuls are unobservable iI"IF‘:l.I[S far tha asseat ar |ii-.’l|:|i|i|f_'|'.

The financial statements provide comparative information in respect to previous period. In addition, the Bank
presents an additional statement of financial position at the beginning of the earlier period presented when there is
retrospective application of an accounting policy, a retrospective restatement, or a reclassification of items in the
financial statements.

Statement of C i

The Bank's financial statements have been prepared in accordance wilh Philippine Financial Reporbiing Standards
(FFRS) and relative laws, regulations and mdustry practices applicable to rural banks. The tem PFRS in general
includes all applicable PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), Interpretations ol the Philippina
Interpretations Committes (PIC) and Standing Inerpretations Committes (SIC)AmMermational Financial Reparting
Interpretations Committes (IFRIC) which have been approved and adopted by the Financial Reparting Standards
Couwncil (FRSC). and adopted by the SEC.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires the use of cernain critical accounting
estimates. Il also requires management 10 exercisa its judgment in the process of applying the accounting policies.
The areas inwolving a higher degree af judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial staterments are disclosed in Note 5.

Goirng Concern Assumpiion
The Bank is not aware al any significant uncertainties that may cast doubts upaon the Bank's ability to conlinue as a
COING COMCarm.

3. SUNMMARY OF SIGMNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accouwnting policies adopted in the preparation of the financal statements are consistent with thosa af the
previous linancial years, except that the Bank has adopted the following new accouniing pronouncements
beginning Januwary 1, 2023. Adoption of these pronouncements did nol have significant impact on the Bank's
financial position or performance unlass olhansise stated.

Amendments, and Interpretations Adopted

Amandmams

The accourting policies adoptad are consistent with those of the previous flinancial year, except for the adaption af
the following amended PFRS:

Amendment to PFRS 16, Leases - COVID-19-Related Renl Conceassions beyond Jure 30, 2027 — In 2020,
FFRS 16 was ameanded to provide practical expedient 1o lessees rom applying the requirements on leassa
rnodifications for eligible rent concessions that is a direct consequance of COVID-19 pandarmic. A lesses may
elact not 1o assess whether eligible rent concessions from a lessor s a lease modification. A lesses that
makes this election account for any change in lease payments resulting from the COVID-19 related rent
concesson the same way it would account for a change that is not a lease modification, &.q.. as a variabla
lease paymeant. This amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or alter June 1, 2020,
with earlier application permitted, and covers aligibde rent concessions until Jurse 30, 2027, The Bank did mot
apply tha practical expedient in its inancial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022,
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Drue 1o continuendg impact of the pandemic, another amendment 1o PFRS 16 was isswad in 2021, which allows
lesseas o extend the application of the practical expadient regarding COVID-19-related reml concessions toa
reduction in lease payments that are due on or before June 30, 2022, The amendment is effective for annual
reporting perods beginning on o after April 1, 2027 bt earkier application is permitted. The 2021 amendmeant is
mandatory for entiies thal elected to apply the previous amendmant. Accordingly, the Bank has applied the
amandmant in the current year financial statermants.

The adoption of the amendad PFRS did not materially affect tha linancial statements of the Bank.

Amendments o PFRS 3, Reference o Conceplual Framework — The amendments will replace the relerance
of PFRS 3 from the 1989 Framework o the currend 2008 Conceptual Framework., The amendments includa
an exncaption that specilies that, for some types of liabilites and contingent labilites, an entity applying PFRS
3 shouwld refer o PAS 37, Frovisions, Conlingent Labiities and Conlimgent Assels, or IFRIC 21, Lewes
instead of the Conceptual Framework. The requirernent will @nsure that the labilities recognized in a businass
combination will remain the same as those recoqgnized applying the current reguirements in PFRS 3. The
amendments also clarified that an acquirer shall nol recognize contingent assels acguired in a businass
combination. The amendments should be applied prospectivaly.

Amendments 1o PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipgmen! - Proceads Bafore Itarded Use —

The amendments prohibit dedocting from the cost of property, plamt and equipment any proceads Trom selling
iterms produced while bringing that asset o the location and condition necessary for its intended use. Instead,
the proceeds and related costs from such items shall be recognized in profit or loss. The amendments must
b applied retrospectively to tems of property. plant and equipment madae available for use on or after tha
beginning af the earliest period prasented when an entity first applied the amandmants.

Amendments o PAS 37, Onerows Corifracts - Cost of Fulfiing a Caortract — The amendments clarify that for
the purpose of assessing whether a contract is onerous, the cost af fulfilling a contract comprisaes bath the
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of costs directly related o contract activities.  The
amendments apply o contracts existing at the date when the amendments are lirst applied. At the date of
imitial apphication. the comulative effect of applying the amendmenls S recognized as an opaning balanca
adjustment o relained eamings or olher component of equily, as applicable. Accordingly. the comparalives
are not restated. Earlier application is permitted.

Annual Improvements 1o PFRS 2008 1o 2020 Cycle:
Amandmeant ta PFRS 1, First-time Adopiion of Phitippine Financial Reporting Standards - Subrsidiacry as a2
Firsl-time Adaplar — The amendmeant permits a subsidiary that becomes a first-ime adopler later than its
parent and measwes ils assets and liabilites in accordance with paragraph D16 (a) of FFRS 1 10
measure cumulative transkation differences for all foreign operations using the amounts reportad by its
paremnt, based on the parent's date of transition o PFRS. Earlier application of the amandment is
permitted.

Amandmeant to PFRS 9, Financial fnsfroments - Fees in the 10 per cent’ Test for Derecogriition of
Financia! Liabiies — Tha ameandment clarifies which feas an entity shall inclede whean it apphas tha 10
per cent’ sl in assessing whather o derecogrize a financial liability (i.e. whether the @rms ol a new or
mradified financial liability s substantially differant from the terms of the anginal financial abiity). Thesa
fees include only those paid or received between the borrower and the lender, incloding fees paid or
received by aither the borrower or the lender on the other's behall. The amandment applies to financial
liabilities that are modilied or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which
the entity first applied the amendmenls. Earlier application is permitted.

Ameandman to PFRS 16, Leases - Lease ncentives — The amendment removes from the lllustrative
Exampla 13 the ilustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvemeants by the lessor. The objective
ol the amendmant is o avoid any potential confusion regarding the reatment of lease incentives becausea
al how the reguirermneants for lease incentives are ilustrated.
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Amandmant to PAS 41, Agrculiure - Taxation i Far Valie Measuraments — The amandmant removeas
the requirement for entities o exclode cash flows for takation when measuring the fair valoe of a
bindogical assel using a present valua technigue to enswre consistency with the reguiremants in PFRS 13,
Fair Value Measwrement. The amendment should be applied prospectively. Earlier application is
permittesd.

Mew and Amended PEFRS Issuad But Mot Yel Effective

Relevant new and amended PFRS. which are not yet effective as at December 31. 2022 and have not been
applied in preparing the financial statements, are summarized balow.

Effective for annual periods baginning on or after Janwary 1, 2023:

= amendments to PAS 1, Classificalion of Liabifttes as Corerid or Non-covrert — The amendments clarify tha
requiremeants Tor an antity o have the g to defer settlemeant of the labdity for at least 12 momths after tha
reparting period. The amendmeants also specily and clarily the Tollowing: (i) an antity’s right to defer settlement
rrust exist at the end of the reparting period, (i) the cassification is vnaffected by management’s imentions or
expectations about whethar the entity will exercise s right o defer settlerment, (i) how lending conditions
affect classification, and (iv) requirements for classilying liabilities where an entity will or may sattle by isswing
its own aguity instrurmeants.  The amendments most be applied retrospactively.  Earlier application is permitied.

« Armendments to FAS 1 and PFRS Practice Statement 2, Disciosurs ifaiive — Accolurdinilg FPolces — Thea
amendments reguire an entity 1o disclose its material accounting policies, instead of its significant accownting
polickes and provide guidance on how an entity applies the concept of materiality in making decisions about
accounting policy disclosures. In assessing the materiality of accounting policy information, entities need 1o
consider both the size of the transactions, other events or conditions and its nature. The amendments clarify:

(1) that accounting policy information may be material becawsea ol its nature, even if the related amouns ara
immaterial, (2) that accownting policy nformation = material il users of an antity’s linancial statements would
need it w understand other material information in the financal statements, and (3) i an entity discloses
immaterial accounting policy irformation, such information shouwld not obscure material accourting palicy
infarmation. In addition, PFRS Practice Statement 2, Making Materiality Judgements, is amendad by adding
guidance and examples to explain and demanstrate the application of the ‘four-step materiality process’ to
accounting policy information. The amendments should be applied prospectively.  Earlier application is
permitted.

= Amendments o PAS 8, Defifion of Accounting Estimaies — The amendments clarily the distinction
betwaen changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies, and the correction of armors.
Under the new definition, accouwnting estimales are “moneiary amounts in inancial statements that are subject
o measurement uncertainty”. An entity develops an accounting estimate if an accounting policy require an
iterm in the fimancial statemants o be measwred 0 a way thal imdolves measureameant uncertainty. The
amendments clarify that a changs in accounting estimate that results from new nformation or e
developments s not a correction of an arror, and that the effects of a change in an input or 8 Meaasuremeant
techinigque used to devalop an accounting estimate are changes in accounting estimates il thay do not result
froem the correction ol prior period errors. A change in an accounting estmate may affect anly the profit ar
loss in the current period, or the profit or loss of both the current and future periods.  Earlier application is
permitbad.

= Amendments to PAS 12, Defarred Tax Relafed Assels and Liabiittes from @ Single Transaction — Tha
amendments require companies Lo recognize daferred lax on ransactions that, on initial recognition, give rise
to equal amoums of taxable and deductible temporary differencas. Earlier application is permitted.
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Effective for annual periods baginning an or after Janwary 1, 2025

* PFRS 17, nswance Cordracts — This standard will replace PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts. L reguiras
insurance liabilites to be measured at current fulfillment value and provides a more wniform measorerment arnd
presentation approach o achieve consistent, principle-based accounting for all insurance conracts. 1 also
requires similar principles 1 be applied o renswrance contracts held and investment comracts sith
discretionary participation featuras issued. An amendmant to the standard was issuved o (i) redoce costs of
transition by simplifying some requirements of the standard, (i) make financial parformance easier 1o explain,
and (i} ease wransition by deferring the affectivity of the standard from 2021 1o 2023 and by prowviding
additional raliel o reduce the elfort reguired wihen applying PFRS 17 for the first time.

In responsea to the challenges browght by the COVID-1% pandemic, the Insurance Commission isswed Circular
Lettar 2020-062, Amardrment of Section T of Circwlar Leffer Mo, 20018-68, Daefevral of IFRS 17 fmplevneriabion .
which provides a two year deferral on the implementation of the standard from the 2023 affectivity date.
Thearefora, all lite and nonlife insurance companies in the Philippines shall adopt PFRS 17 for annual periods
beginiming an or after Janwary 1, 2025,

Deferred effectivity

Amendments o PFRS 10, Consoldated Fnancial Statermenls, and PAS 28 - Sale or Cartribution of Assets
BetweedT & miasior and s Associale of i Varilure — The amendments address a conflicting provision
under the two standards. It clarifies that a gain or loss shall be recognized Tully wien the rarnsaction imalves a
businaess, and partially if 1 involes assets that do not constitule a business. The effective date all tha
amendments, initially set for annual periods beginning on or after January 1. 2006, was deferred indefinitely in
Decamber 2075 but earlier application is stll perrmitbed.

Financial Instruments

Financial instrurmamt is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial iability or eguity
instrumeant of another amtity.

Initial Recognition and Measurement
Financial assets and financial labilities are recognized when the entity becomes a parly 1o the contractual
provisions of the instrurmsant.

AL initial recognition, the Bank measwres a financial asset o limancial liabdity at its faic valese ples or minus, in the
case af financial assat o financial liability not at faic value through peofit or loss, transaction costs that ara
imcremantal and directly atiributable 1 the acquisition o isswe of the inancial asset or financial liability, such as
fees and commissions. Immediately after recognition, an expected credit allowance (ECL) is recognized for
financial assels measurad at amonized cost

Wirhen the fair value of financial assats and liabilities differs from the ransaction price on initial recognition. the

Bank recognizes the differance as follows:

a)  When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability (i.e. a
level 1 input) or based on a valuation technigque that used only data from observable markets, the diffarancea is
recognized as a gain or loss.

Bl In all other cases, the difference is deferred and the timing of recogrition of deferred day one profit or loss is
determined individually. 1t is either amortized over the lile of the instrument, deferred until the instrumeant's fair
value can be determined using markat observable inputs, or realized throwgh sattlement.
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Financial Assats

Classification and Subsequent Measurement

Far purposas of subsequant measurameant, financial assets are classilied in four categorias:
+  Financial assels at amaorticeed cost (debt instrumeants)
= Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of comulative gains or lossaes (debt instruments)

+  Financial assets designated at fair valoe through OC1 with no recycling of cumulative gains and lossas
upon de-recognition (equity nstrurmants)
= Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortized cost (delbl instruments)

This category is the most relevant 1o the Bank. The Bank measures linancal assets at amortized cost if both
of the Tallowing conditions are met:
= The linancial assat s held within a business model with the objective o hold financial assets in ordar 1o
collect contractual cash llows
= The contractual terms af the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solaly
paymments ol principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Fimancial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the elfective interest method and are
subject o impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is de-recognized,
rmodified or impaired.

The Bark's cash and cash equivalents, loans receivable and invesimen! Secunfies fall in this cafegory of
Frnancial rsirurmenis.

Cash and Cash Equivalans

For purposeas of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash and other cash
iterms, unrestricted balances with BSP and due from other banks which are subject o insignificant risk aof
changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents are highly liquid and readily comerntible to known amounts af
cash with original maturities of three months or less from dates of placements and which are subject 1o
insignificant risk of changes in value, The components of cash and cash equvalents are shown in thea
statement of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents are valued at face amount. Cash denominated in foreign
currency is ranslated in peso using tha closing rate as ol the financial date. If a bank ar linancial institution
holding the funds of the Bank s in bankruptey or financial difficulty, cash should be written down o estimated
realizable value if the amoum recoverable 1s astimated 1o be lower than the face amaunt.

Cash arr Harnd
Cash on hand represants tha total amount of cash in tha bank’s vault in the form of nofes and coins under the
custody of the cashier/cash custadian. This is measured at face value.

Dwe frarm Bangko Seriral rig Pilivnas
This represemts the balance of the deposit account in local currency maintained with the Bangko Sentral to
meel reserve requinement subject o existing rules and regulations. This is measured al face value.

Dwre frovme Other Sanks

This represants the balance of the deposit accounts maintained with other resident banks, Thesa ara stated in
the Statemeant of Financial Pasition at their face value. Income an interest bearing deposits are credited Lo and
included in the determination of income in the Statement of Comprehensive Incomea.
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Loans Recaivables
Loans recenvable account includes loans extendad o clients classified as small and rmeadium scale enterprisa
loan, ather kans and agrarian reform and other agricufural loans. Loans receivables are recognized when
cash s advanced 1o bormowers. These are recogrirad initially at fair value plus ransaction costs that are
directly atiributable to the receivable. These are subsequently measured al amaortized costs wsing effectve
interast method less provision for impairment. Amorized cost s calculated by taking into account any discount
or pramiurm on acgusibion and fees and costs hat are an integral part of the efective intarast rate, Tha
amortization is included as “Interest Income” in the Statement of Comprahensive Income. The losses arising
from impairment are recognized in profit or loss,

Lovarrs & DUscouris
Recaivables from customers ara stated at the austanding balance reduced by an allowance fiar probable koan
[

Interest incomea on non-discountad term loan is accrued maonthly as eamed, axcepl in the case al non-
AcCCruing loans.

Unaarmead discouns are recogrizad as intomse over the pericd far wiich such discount has been collecled
using the effectve imtarest method. In accordance with the axisting BSP requilations nd inderast mcome s
accrued on accounts classified as past due.

Under existing BSP regulations, nan-accrding loans are those that have been defined as being past due and
itermis 0 litigations, or those for which, in the opinion of managermant. collection ol interest or principal s
doubtiul.  Inerest incomsa on thesa loans s I'Ei."ﬂE"li.!Eﬁ l:lr"j' o the axtert of amount collected. Loans are nol
classilied as Eﬂﬂruil‘lg urill mterast arndior pl‘il'ﬂ:ipﬂl due are collected and the oans are I:rr:nughl o curremnt ar
are restructured n accordance with existing BSP regulations and fulure paymeants appear assured. Collaterals
af restructuraed loans axcesading ™1 milkon shall be revaluaed by an indepandent appraiser accapiabla to BSP.

Sac. 304 of the Manual of Regulations for Banks (MORB) states that past due accounts of a bank shall, as a
general rule, rafer to all accounts in its loan portfalio, all receivable companants of rading account securities
and ather receivables, which are not paid at contractiual due date.

Sec. 304 states that loans, investments, receivables or any financial asset shall be considered non performing
even withoul any missed contractual payments, when il is consdered impaired under existing accownting
standards, classified as doubtful or loss, in litigation andfor there s evidence that full repaymeant of peincipal
and interest is unlikely withowt foreclosure of collateral, if any. All ather loans, evan il not considerad impaired
shall be considerad mon-performang i ary principal andfor interest are unpaid for more than 90 days Trom
contraciual due date or accroeed interest for more than 90 days have bean capitalized, refinanced or delayed
by agreemeant. Restruciured loans shall be considered performing ondy, i prior 1o resiruciuring. the loans wera
cateqorized as performing. Non-performing loans and other receivables shall remain classified as such wntil a)
there is sufficient evidenos to support that full collection of principal and interests is probable and payments of
interest andfor principal are recenad for at least 6 maonths; or B) written off.

The allowance for credit losses is the estimated amount of lossas in the Bank's portfolio, based on evaluation
of the gquality of loans and prior loan loss edparance (Appandix 15 of the MORB). Any amount set aside with
respect o losses on loans and advances in addition o those losses thal have been specifically idemified or
potential osses are indicatively present in the portfalio of loans and advances, are accounted for as
appropriations from retained earmangs. Any credits resulting from the redection of such amouts resalt in an
increase in retained earnings and are not includad in the determination of net prolit o loss Tor the pericd. The
allowances is increased by provisions charged o expense and reduced by reasonable  write-alfs and revarsals
as determined by the Bank.
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Sales Contract ReCaivabla

Sales Contract Receivabla (SCR) shall be recorded based on the present value of the installments recevablas
discounted at the impuiled rate of imerest. Discourt shall be accrued over the life of the SCR by crediting
imerast incomea using the effective interest method. Any difference between the presamnt valos of the SCR and
the derecognized assels shall be recognized in profit or loss at the date of sale in accordance with the
provisions of PFRS 15" Revenue”. Provided, furthermore, that SCR shall be subject to impairment provisions
of PFRS 4.

SCRs that meet all the requirements or conditions enumerated below are considered performing assets:

1.  That there has been a down payment of al least twenty percent (20%) al the agreed salling price or in thea
absence thereal, the mstallment payments on the principal had already amounted 1o at least wenty
percent (20%:) af the agreed selling price;

2. That paymeant of the principal must be in egual installmeants o in diminishing amounts and with masdimuom
intervals of ane (1) year;

3. That any grace period in tha payment of principal shall not be more than beno (2) years; and

4. That there s o installmant payment in arrear either an principal or inerast: Provided, That an SCR
account shall be avtomatically classified “Substandard” and considered non-performing in case of non-
paymment af any amaorization dea. Provided, further, that an SCR which has been classified “Substandard”
and considered mnom-parforming  due o non-payment of  amy  amortization due may only  be
upgraded/restored to unclassiflied andior pedorming status alter a satisfactory track record of at least
thres (3) consecutive payments of the reguired amortization of principal andfor interest has been
establishead.

Einancial Liabilities
Classification and Measuremernt
A linancial liabdlity is amy Rability that is:
a. A contractual obligation to daliver cash or another financial asset o anolher entity or o exchanga
financial assets or financial liabilites with another entity uendar conditions that are potentially unlfavarablbs

Lo A2 entity; or
b. Caniract that will or may be settled in tha entity’s own equity instrumenis and is:

i A nan-derivative for which the entity is o may be obliged to deliver a favorable numbers of tha
entity’'s owm aguity instrumants; or
il & derivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange ol a fixed amount of cash or

another financial assat for a fimed number of the antity’s ocwn equilty instrements.

Imitially, financial liabilies are maasure at Tair value, and, whare applicable, adjusted for ransacton costs unlas the
Bank designated financial liability at fasr value through profit or loss.

Im both the current and prior parod, financial liabilities subsequently measwed al amortized cost using effective
imterest meathod except Tor derivatives and financial liabilities designated at FYTPL, which are carmed subsaguently
at fair value with gains or losses recognized in the Statement of Compeehensive Income (other than derivatne
financial imstruments that are designated and effective as hedging instruments). Mo reclassilication shall be madea
Lo financial liabikities.

All interest-related charges and, il applicable, changes in an insrument’s Tair value thalt are reported in thea
Staterment of Camprehensive Income are mcloded within financa cost or linance iNncome,

The Bank's financial liabikies include deposit liabilites and other payables arsing from contractual abligations
{excepl for tax-related liabilities and retirement benefit obligations).

Dapaosit Liabdlities

The depasit liabiity accownt includes savings deposits and term deposits. Savings deposits are inmarast bearing ar
rmon-interast bearing and are withdraw-able upon presentation of properly accomplished withdrawal slip and
passbook. Term deposits reler 1o imerest-baaring deposits with speciflic maturity dates and ewvidenced by certilicate
ssued by the Bank.
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Accrued Expenses and Othar Liabilities
These refer o obligations already incurred by the Bank which are not yet paid as of the balance sheet date. Thesa
are normally measured at actual costs.

Dividends distributions o shareholders are recognized as financial liabilities when the dividends are declared by
the Bank's Board af Directors and subject to the requirements of Section 124 al the Manual Regulations for Banks
(MORB).

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Bank has not designated any linancial liabiltes wpon nitial recognition as
al FWTFL

Classification as Debl or Equily Instrumeants

Dett and equity instruments isswed by the Bank are classified as either financial lHabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangemeants and the definiions of a financial labiliy and an
equily Instrurmants.

Cithier Payables arising from contraciual obligations

Othar Payables arising from contractual obligations include accournts payable, lease labilities and other accrued
payables excleding those peraining to obligations as mandated by law such as laxes payable. 355 payables and
the like. These other payables gualifying into the dafinition of finandal Babilities under PFRS 9 are subsaguently
measured at the expected sattlement amounts. The short-term nature of such payables rendars the effect of
discounting to be immaterial.

Barrowing Costs
General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable 10 the acquisition, construction or prodection of gualifying
assels, which are assals thal necessarly lake a substantial period or tme 0 gel ready Tor their intendad use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such ime as the assels are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Imvastmeant income earmed on the lemporary imvestmeant of specific borrowings pending thair expendilure on
qualifying assats is deducted from the borrowing costs aligible Tor capitalization.

Al other borrowing costs are recogrized n the Statemeant of Comprehensive Income in the pericd in which theay
are incurred.

Derecognition of Financial Instruments

Financial Assels

The financial assets (or where applicable, a pant of a linancial assetl or part of a group of financial assets) are
derecognized wihen tha conractiual rights o recemwva cash flows from the financial instruments expire, of when the

financial assets and all substantial risks and rewards of ownarship have been transferred 1o another party and
meals the gualification parameters lor derecognition.

The Banks had transferred a financial asset if, and only if, it either ransfers the contractual rights 0 receive thea
cash flows of the linancial assal, or retains the contractual rights o receive the cash flows of the financial asset
but assuemes a contraciual abligation to pay the cash flows o one or more recipients. When the Bank retains thea
cantractual righls 1o recaive the cash Mows ol a linancial assats bul assumeas a contraciual aobligation to pay thosa
cash flows, tha Bank treats tha trasaction as a transfer of financial asset if the following conditions are met:

a) Tha Bank has o obligation Lo pay amounts to the eventual reciplents unlass it collacts aguivalent amaouwnts
fram ariginal assat;

b} The Bank is prohibited by the termes of the transfer contract from selling or pledging the ariginal asset othear
than as securily as security to the aventual recipiants for the obligation 1o pay them cash flows; and

] The Bank has na obligation o remit any cash flows it collects on behall of the eventual recipients swithout
material delay

Whera the Bank has transferrad its right 10 recaive cash flows from an assal or has emerad into a pass-through
arrangement, and has neiher ransferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
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transfarrad the control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extant of the Bank's comtinuirg invalserment in
the asset. Contindung involsemant that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset s measwred at thea
bowner of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Bank could
required o repay.

Financial Liabilhes

A flinancial liabily is derecognized when the obligation under tha liability has expired, or is discharged or has
cancelled. Where an existing financial liabiity is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
differemnt terms, or the terms al an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition aof the anginal liability and the recognition ol a new liability, and the difference in tha
respective carrying amaounts is recognized in Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Impainmment of Financial Instruments
Al each reporting date, the Bank measures the loss allowance for a fimancial instrumeant at an amount egual 1o the

lifetime expected credit lossaes il tha cradil risk on that financial instrements has ncreased significantly since nitial
recogrition.

If at the reporting date, the credit risk on a financial instrument has nol increased significantly sinca nitial
recognition, the Bank measuwres the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an armownt equal to 12-month
expeclted credit losses.

The Bank recognizes in the Statement of Comprehensive Income the amount of expected credit losses (or
reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowances at the reporting date. Loss allowance lor financial assets at
FWOCI are recognized in other comprehensive income and doas nol reduce the carrying amount of the financial
assel in the Staterment of Financial Postion.

The Bank shall measura the loss allowance al an amourd agual o Wfatime expected credit losses for trada
recaivables or contract assets that resull from transactions that are within thea scope al PFRS 15.

The Bank measures axpected credit losses of a linancial instrurment in a way that refllects:

a) An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determinad by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

bl The time value of money: and

c] Reasonable and supportable informatiob that is available without endue cast or effort at the reporting date abaout
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The Bank considers a broader ramge of information when assessing credit risk and measuring expected credit
bosses, including past everts, current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts thal alfect expected
collectability af the future cash flows of the instrumeants.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction is made batween:

(i) financial irstrumants that have not deteriorated significantly in credit guality since initial recognition or that
have loww cradit risk (Stagea 17 and

(i} financial mstrumeants that have not dateriorated significantly in credit quality since initial recognition and whosa
credit risk s not low ("Stage 27,

Sla 3 woould cover Tinancal assets thatl have objective evidanca of im il &l e ra rii date.
ge pa porting

12-month expected cradil losses’ are recognized loe the first category while lifetime expected credit losses' ara
recognized for the second category. Measurement of the expected credil losses is determinad by a probabiity-
weaighted estimate of credit lossas over the expectad life of the linancial instrument.

The Bank shall directly reduce the gross carying amount of a financial asset when the Bank has no reasonabilbe
expectations of recovering a financial asset on its entirety or a portion thereol. A wite-off constilutes a
derecognition ewvent
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Diefinition of “defawl” and “cure”

The Bank delines a financial instrument as in dafault, which is fully aligned with the definition of creditimpaired, in
all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on s comracical payments. As a part of a qualitative
assessment of whethar a customer is in defaull, the Bank also considers a variety of instances thal may indicate
unlikeliness o pay. When such events ooour. the Bank carafully considers whether tha event should resull in
treating the customer as defaulted. An Instrurment is considered o be no longer in default (e, to have cured)
when it mo longer meets any of the defaull criteria for a consecutive period of 180 days and has exhibited a
satislactory track record.

Wirite-off Policy

The Bank writes ofl financial assets, in whole o in part, whan it has exhawsted all practical recovery efforts and
has concluded there is no reasonable expeciation of recovery. Indicalors that there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery include ceasing enforcement activity: and, where the Bank™s recovery method is foreclosing on collateral
and the valwe of the collateral is swch that thare is no reasonable expectation of recovering in Tull.

The Bank may write-all financial assets that are still subject to enforcemeant activity. Any outstanding contractual
amaouwnts of such assets written off during the period ended Decarmber 31, 2023, and 2022, if thare is any is
disclosed in the notes discussing details of Loans and Mher Receivables.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assals and flinancial liabilites are offsel and the net amount reported in the Statemant of Financial
Position i, and anly if, thara is a currently enforceable legal right 1o offsat the recognized amaounts and thare's an
mtemntion W setlle on a net basis, or o realize the assel and settle the Bability simultanacusly. The Bank assessas
that it has a currently enforceable right of offset if the right is mot contingent on a future event, and is legally
anfarceable in the normal cowrse of the business, event of default, and event of insolvency of bankruptcy of thea
Bank and all of the counterparties.

Im accounting Tor a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the Bank shall not affset tha
transfarrad asset and the associated lability.

Othar Asseols
Othar assels reprasent rasidual accounts which were nol classified as a sapara‘le line item in the Financial
Reporting Package (FRP) - Manual of Accounts issued by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas.

FPremisas, Fumniture, Fixtures and Equipmeant
FPramisas, furniture, ures, and equipment excep land, are camed al cosl less accumulated depreciation and
amartization and any impairment value. Land is stated al cost less any impairment valoa.

Land is stated al cosl less any impairment losses. All othear ilems of bank premises, furmiure, fistures and
equipment ara slated at cost less accomulated depreciation, amaortizabion and amy impairmeant in valws.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to working
condition for its intended use. Expenditures for additions, major improvements and renewals are capitalized whila
expendituras for repairs and maintenanca are charged 1o expense as incurred.

When major improverment is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the premisas, furmiture,
fixtures, and aguipmeant as a replacameant if the recognition criteria are satisfied.

Drepraciation ard amartizaton is compuled on the straight-ne basis over the estimated usalul lives al the assels.
Leasahold improvamams are amorized over the astimated useful livas af improvements or the term al the lease,
whichaver is shorer. Land is not depraciatad.
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The estimated useful lives of Bank Premisas, Furniture, Fixtures and Eguipment ara as follows:

Building 10 years
Leasahald Improvements 10 years

Transportation equiprmeant 3 - 5 years
Furmiture and fixturas 3 - 5 years

Fully depreciated assels are retained in the accoumnts at #1 net value until they are no longear in use and no further
charge for depreciation is made with respect o those assets. When assels are retired or atherwise disposed of,
the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the account and any resulting gain or loss are
reflected in the incame for the perod. Any disposal or delation of proparty and equipmeant rom the Bank's book al
accounts should ba approved by the management.

Leasehold rights and improvements amorization i there is any, is computed over the leasea term or he estimated
wseful Ma of the improvement, whichever 5 shoner. The estimated wseful life of leasehold rights and
improvements is five years depending on Lha natura of the improvarmant.

The useful lives and depreciation or amortization method are being reviewad by the Bank periodically o ensura
that the periods and method of depreciation and amortization are consistent with the expected pattern of economic
benefits from the items of premises, furniture, fidures, and equipment. The residual value, i any, is also reviewed
and adjusted i appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Inmtangible Assels

Anintangible asset partains o acquired information technology software capitalized on the basis of the cost
imcurred o acqguire and bring 1o use the specific software. This assel i stated at histoncal cost less amorization.
Howewver, costs for heansas incurred for mainaining the saftware are charged 1o operations. Costs that are diractly
attributable  to  the development phase of fnew costomized software  for information  technology and
telecommuonicalions systems ane recognized as ntangible assets provided, they meeat tha fallowing recogrition

rEUIreTenls:

- Demonsiration of lechnologcal feasibility of the prospactive prodoect For intermnal wse or sale;
- The intangible asset will generate probable economic benedfits throwgh intermal wsa or sale;
- Sufficient technical, financial and other resources are availabla for completon; and

-

The intangible assel can b reliably meaasurad.

Intangible assets are subject o impairmeant testing. Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the
basis ol the costs ncurred to acqguire and install speciflic software.

Armartization on other computer soltware is provided an a straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
five (5} years

Invastment Properties

Imrastmeant properties represent proparties that were foreclosed by the Bank from defaulted borrowers and

held either o aarn rental incorme o for capital appreciation or for sale ar for bath, this also includes tha foreclosed
properties of the bank as required by the Manual of Regulations for Banks and available for sale after redemption
period in tha ordinary cowrse of business,

ROPA are booked indially at the carrying amount of the loan (e outstanding loan balance adjusted for any
unamartized pramium discount less allowance for credit losses computed basad on PFRS 9 prowisioning
requirernents, which take into account the Fair value of the collateral) plus booked accrued interest less allowanos
for credit losses (computed based on PFRS 9 provisioning reguiremants) plus ransaction cost ncurred mpon
acquisition (such as non-refundable capital gains tax and documentary stamp tax paid in connection with the
foreclosuredpurchase of the acquired real estate property: Provided, that the carrying amount of ROPA exceed
P5,000,000. the appraisal of the loreclosedipurchased assel shall be conducted by an independent appraiser
acceplable o the BSP.

Subsequeant Lo initial recognition, depreciable tems of ROPA are carried al cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses.
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ROPA are derecognized when it has either bean disposed ol or permanantly withdrawn from uesa and no futura
benefit is expected from its disposal. fAny gain or loss on the retirement or disposal of ROPA is recognized in tha
Staterment of Comprehensive Income in the year of retirment or dispasal.

Transfers are made 1o ROPA when there is a change in use evidenced by ending of owner-occupation,
commencement of an operating leasa to another party or ending construction or development. Transfers are made
fram ROPA when, and only when, thare is a changa in use evidenced by commeancemant of oswnar-occupation or
commencement of development witha view seil.

Depreciation and amortization are calculated on a straight-line basis ower the estimated wsalul vas of the assets.

Anassel's caryirng amount s writlen down immeadiately o 1s recovarabla amount il the asset's Carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable armownt.

Imvastmeant properties including the related accomulated depeeciation and any impairmant losses are derecognized
upon disposal or when permanently withdraen from wse and no fulure economic bemefit & expected fram their
disposal. Any gain or loss on the retirement or disposal of an investmeant property is recognized in profit ar loss and
iz presented as part of ther Operating Income in the staterment of comprehensive income in the year af
retirament or disposal.

Right-of-use Assets

The Banks recognizes rght-of-use assets al the commencement date of the lease (e, the dabe the underlying
assel is available for use). Right-ol-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurameant of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease labilities recognized, initial direct costs ncwred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencameant date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assels are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the kease term, as follows:

Wears

Building 23

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Al each reporting date, the Bank assesses whather there is any indication that its non-linancial assets may be
impairad. When an indicator of impairment exdast or when an annual impairment testing for an assel is reguired, thea
Bank makes a formal estimate ol recoverable amount. Recoverabde amount is the higher of an asset’s fair valuea
lass costs o sell and its value inuse and is determined for an individual asset, unless the assel does nol genarate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets. Whera carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and s witten down to its recoverable amount. In
ASSESSing in use, the estimated fulure cash flows are discounted Lo its present value using a pre-tax discownt rate
that reflects current market assassmeants of tha timea value ol money and the risks specific o the assat.

An impairmeant loss is charged 1o operations in the year in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is charged 1o the revaluation increment of said assel. An assessment is
made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses
may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverabla amount is estimated. A
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if ther has been a change in the estimates used o
determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the
carrying amaount of the assal is increased o s recoverable amount. That increased amourt cannol exceed tha
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amartization, had no impairment loss
been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the Staterments of Comprehensive
Income unlass the asset is carried at a revaload amount, in which case reversal is reated as revaluation increase.
Aflter such a reversal, the depreciation expensa is adjusted in future years (o allocate the asset's revised carrying
amount, less any residual value, on systematice basis aver its remaining life.
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Equilty

Share Capital

Share i::a'::ir,al e measured al par valuoe for all shares issued and outstanding. When the Bank ssues more than
ane class of stock, a separate account is maintained for each class of stock and the number of shares issued.
Incremental costs ncurred directly attributable o the issuance of new shares are shown in equily as deduction
from proceads, net of tax. The subscribed capital stock is reparted in equity less tha related subscrption receivabla
not currently collectible. Capital stock consists of common and preferred. Preferred stocks are (a) comulative, (b)
non-voding, and () non-redeemable.

Subscnbed commaon SUeck 1S recogized al subsoribed armoont net al subscriplion recenable.

Subschnplions recenvable perains 0 wncollected porbon of subscnbed stocks., The Bank accourted for tha
subscription receivable as a contra equity account

Ralained eamings reprasents the comulative balance of periodic nel ncome or loss, dividend contributions, prios
Ratained earnings represants the cumulative balance ol periodic net income or loss, dividend contributions, prior
period adjustments, effect of changes im accounting policy and other capital adjustments.

Dhividends

Cash dividends are recognized as lability and deducted from the equity when approved by the Board of Directors
(BOD) while stock dividends are dedwcted from equity when approved by BOD and stockhaolders. Dividends for thea
year thal are approved alter the reparting date are deall with as subsequent events. Slock ISSUance cosls are
accounted for as deduction rom equily.

Earmings par Siare
Earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year with retroactive adjustments applicable, if any, o preferance shares.,

Book Value per Share
The book walue par common share s derved from the total stockholders’ equity et of praferred shares and
dividends (for cumulative shares) divided by the total number of ordinary shares oulstanding during the year.

Ravenus Recogrtion
The Bank deriwves revenos rom interast income, loan fees and service chargas, nterast mcome fram bank
deposits, and other incormea over lime and al a pomnt in tme.

The Bank pimarily denwas s revanue from interest mcome on loans, Revanue rom contracts with cuslomears is
recognized when control of the qoods ar services ana ransferred 1o the customer at an amount that reflects thea
consideration 10 which the Bank expects @ ba entitled in exchange for those gqoods or services., Tha Bank
ASSESSES LS revanue arangements agamst Spﬂtifiﬂ criteria in ordar o determing whether it is acting as principal or
as an agent. The Bank is acting principal im its revanue arrangemeants 1o i1s customeans, revenus s recogread on a
gross basis. However, il the Bank is acting as an agent o ils customers, only e amount of netl commission
retamned |15 recognizad as revernue.

The following spescilic recognition criteria must also be met belora revenue is recognized:
Revenue within the scope of PFRS 15:

Loan Fees, Service Charges and Cormmissions

Loan fees directly related o acguision and orgination of loans are incleded in the cost of recaivables and ara
amortized wsing the affective interest rate method over the term of the oan. Loan commitment feas ara
recognized as eamed over the term al the credil lines granted 10 each Bormoswer.

Service charges and commissions are recognized earmed or accruad whera there is reasonable degres as o its
collectability and based on the agraed term and conditions with customers which are generally when the services
has been parformead. This is included as part of the Other Operating Income in the statement af income.
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Revenue outside the scope of PFRS 15
i et e o

irnferest on Loans

Interest Income on loans and discount with advanced interest are recognized periodically using the effective
interest method of amortization. On the other hand, imerest income on loans and discount with no advanced
interest are recognized on accrual basis. The accrual basis of recognition of interest income, however, ceases
when the loans and discount is akeady past due.

The Bank shall anly charge interest based in the outstanding balance of a loan at the beginning of an interest
pericd. For a loan whera the principal is payablke n installments, interest per instaliment penod shall be calculated
based on the oulstanding balance of the loan at the beginning of each installment period.

e fncorme
Othar income arising from from sources which are not included in all income sources are, penalties and chargas
for clients' requeast of statement of accounts.

Cost and Expense Recogrition

Cost and expense are decraasa in economic banalits in tha form of decreases in assets or ncwrrence of liabilities
that result in decrease in eguity, other than those relating o distribotions © equity participants. Expansas ara
generally recognized when the sarvices ara received or when the expansa is incurred.

ireves! Expense
Interast expansa for linancial liabilties is recognized in prafit or loss on accrual basis using EIR ol the financial

habilities v which they ralata.

Other Expense
Othar expansas encompass losses as well as expanses thal arise in ordinary coursa of business of the Bank.

Othar expenses are recognized when imcurred

Employas Benelits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by the Bank in exchange for services rendered by
employees, including directors and management. The Bank recognizes a lability net of amounts already paid and
an expense lor services rendered by employeas during the accounting period.

Sthart-larm benelits

The Bank prowvides short term benefits 1o its employeas in the form of salaries and wages, 13th month pay.
contributions to S55/FHIC/HDMF and other shoet term employee benefits and are presented  as part of thea
operating expenses as compensation and ringe benefits-emplayeas.

Retirament Borafits

Tha Bank's retirement benefit costs is not accourted for using the projected unil actual actuanal valuation
method as prescribed by PAS 19, but determined by observing the minimum legal requirements as stated RA
TE41 and retrement policy whichever is beneflicial. Mo significant assumption was used by the Bank that
would generally alfect the recognized expenses and recorded obligation in the future pericd. Annually, the
Bank assesses the sufficiancy of the recorded ratiremant benalit liability. Any increase or decraasa thereto is
adjustad through the Bank's Statemeant of Comprahasive Income.

Post-amplowment Defined Benelit Pian

A dafined banalit plan is a post-employment plan that defines an amount of post-employmeant benelit that an
employesa will receive on retirement, usually depandent on ong or more factors such as aga, years of sarica
and salary. The legal obligation for any benelits from this kind of post-employmeant plan remains with the
Bank, evan il plan assets for funding the defined banalit plan have bean acquired. Plan assets may includs
assels specifically designated to a long-term benafit fund, as well as gualifying insurance policies. The Bank's
defined benefit post-employment plan covers all regular full-time employees,
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Income Taxes

Income lax expense includes current tax expansa and deferred tax axpansa. The current lax expense s based on
taxable profit Tor the year. Delerred lax is recognized an the dilferences batween the carrying amounts of assels
and liahilities in the lirancial statemants and their corresponding tax bases.

Deferred tax liabiliies are recogrized for all emporary differences thatl are expecled o increasse taxable profit in
the fulure. Deferred lax assels are recognized for all emporary dilferences that are expected o redoce taxable
profit in the futwre, and any nat operating loss carry over (NOLCO) or exoass of mirdmum corporata incormsa tax
(MCIT) over the regular corporate incame tax(RCIT). The net carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewsad at
aach reporting date and any adjustments are recognized in pralit or loss,

Daalerred lax is calculated at the lax rales that are expecied 1o apply o the acabde prafit on the basis of tax rales
that hawve b=en enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the repartireg period.

Relatad Party Relationships and Transactions

Farties are considered o be related il one party has the ability, directly or indirectly. to control the olher party or
exercise signiflicant mflluence aver the other party in making financial and operating dacisions. Parties are alsa
considered to be related il they are subject to common controd o common significamnt mflleence. Related partias
may be individuals or corporate amntities. Transactions between related parties are based on terms similar w those
allerad o non-related parties.

Provisions and Conungancoes

Provisions are recognized when present obigatons will probably kad o an outlliow of econamic resouwrces arnd
they can be estmated reliably even i tha timing or armownt al the outflow may still be uncartain. A present
obligabon anses frarm the presance al a legal o constructive obdigation thal Ras resultaed from past events. This
also ncludes any provisions of bank for lossaes and proaision for retirement of employeas.

Provisions are measured al the esumated expendiura reguired o settle the present obligaton, based on tha most
reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting penod, mncludmg the reks and uncenainbes associated sath
the present cbligation. Where there are a numbsar al similar obligatons, tha likelinood that an ovtflow will be
required in sattlerment is datermined by considering the class al chligations as a whola. When time value of rmonsay
= matanal, bng-lernmn provsons are discountad o e presemnt values using a pretax rate that reflects market
assessments arnd the risks specilic o tha obligation. The ncreasa n the provision due o passage of time is
recognized as imterast expense. Provisions ara reviewed at the end of each reporting pearod and adjustad o reflact
the cwrrent bast astimate.

In those cases where the possible outflow of sconomic resource as a result of present obligations is considered
improbable or remota, or the amount © be provided for cannat be measured reliably, no liabdity = recognized in
the financial statements. Similarly, possible inflows of economic benefits to the Bank that do not yel mest thea
recognition criteria of an assel are considered contingent assetls: hence. are nol recognized in the fnancial
statemants. On the aother hand, any reimbursement that the Bank can be virtually cartain to collzct from a third
party with respect to the ohligation is recognized as a soparate assel nol exceading the amount of the related
provision.

Subsequan Everls

Post-year-and evets up o the date of approval of the BOD of the financial statements that provide additional
information about the Bamk's position at the reporting date (adjusting events) are reflectad in the financial
statemants. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting avents, il any, are disclosed in the notes when material to
the financial statermeants.

4. SICGHNIFICARNT ACCDUNTING JUDCGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Bank's financial statemants in accordance with PFRS requires the management o make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, labilities, revenue and
expenses and disclosure of contingent assats and contingent Kabilities, if any. Future events may occur which will
cause the judgments used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effects of any change in estimates are
reflectad in the financial statements as they become reasonably determinable.
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Judgmems are made by management in the dewslopment, selection and discloswre af the Bank's significant
accounting policies and astimates and the application of these policies and estimates.

The astimates and assumplions are reviewed on an on-going basis. These are based on management's
evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of the reporting date. Actual results could differ fram swch
astimales.

Revisions 1o accounting estimatas are recognized in the period in which the estimate s revisited i the revision
alfects anly that period or in the period of the revision and future periods i the revision affects both current ard
future periods.

Judgrmeamts
In tha process of applying the Bank's accounting policies, managament has made tha lallowing jedgments, apart
from those involving estimations. which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial
stalamearnts:

a. Classificanon of financial fnsirumeants

The Bank exercises judgment in classifying a financial nstrument, or s companant pans, on inial recognition as
aither a financial assef, a flinancial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance al tha
contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial asset, a financial lability or an equity instrumeant. Tha
substance of a financial instrumeant, rather than its legal form, governs its classification in the statements af
financial poasition.

b Deterrmination of Functional cumrency

FAS 21, the effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rales requires management o use 5 judgment 1o
determine the entity's functional currency such that @t most Taithlully represents the economic aeffects al the
underlying transactions, events and conditions that are relevant o the amtity. In making this judgment, the Bank
considers the fallowing:

k1. The currency that mainky influences sales prices for linancial instruments and services (this will olten bea
the currency in which sales prices for its financial instruments and services are denominated and settled);

b2, The currency in which funds from flinancing activities are generated; and

b.3. The currancy in which recaipts fraom operating activities are usually retained.

The bank has determined that its functional currency is the Philippine Peso which is the currency of the primary
environment in which the Bank operates.

C.  Recognition of Provision and Contingencies

Judgmem is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and comingencies. Policies on
recognition and disclosure of provision and disclosure of contingencies are presemad in the Notes to the Financial
Statemeants.

d. Classifeation of Acguved Properties and Far Walse Determuination of Now-currerd Assets Hald for Sale ard
Invesirmarnt Property

AL imitial recognition, the Bank determines the Tair value of acguired properties through imernally and externally

generated appraisal. The appraised valug is determined based on the current economic and market conditions as

well as tha physical condition of the propery.

Estimates

Im the process of applying the Bank's acoounting policies, managament has made tha Tollowing judgrments, apart
fram those involving estimations, which have the most significant elffect on the amounts recognized in the financial
statemants:

a.  Deterrmimation of Far Values of Financial Assets and Liabiities

FPFRS requires cerain financial assets and liabilities o be carmed and disclosed at fair value, which reguires
enctansive use ol accounting estimates and judgments. While significant componemnts of lair value measurement
were datermined wsing verifiable objective evidence (Le. foreign exchange rates and inmerest rates), the amount af
chamgeas in fair value would differ if the Bank utilized a differemt valuation methodology. Amy changeas in fair value aof
these financial assats and liabilities would directly affect the Bank’s staterment of comprebensive income and
statameant of changaes in equity.
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B Alowance for Craol Losses

The allowance for credit losses, which includes both specific and gemeral loan loss reserve represeants
management’s astimate of probable losses inharent in the porifolio, after considering the prevailing and anticipated
economic canditions, prior [oss experience, estimated recoverable value based on fair market values of underlying
collaterals and prospect of support from guaramors, subsequent collections and evaluations made by the BSP.
The BSP obsarves certain criteria and guidalines in establishing specilic loan loss reserves for classilied loans and
ather risk assats a provided under Sac. 143 and Appendix 15 ol the Manual of Regulations for Banks.

Othar Risk Assels
Other risk assels such as accounts receivable are also given allowance afler considering the nature ol the
transaction and the degree of collectibles of the accoumnts.

Provisions for losses (expense account) on the above cited risk assets are datermined by the required allowance at
the end of the year less the beginning allowance for a particular year adjusted by write-off and recovery, il any.

. Uselw! ives of Bank Pramises, Furnidure, Fixdores & Equiprmearnt

The useful lives of Bank Premisas, Furniure, Fixiores and Equipment are astimated based on the parod owver
wifiich thesse assels are expecied to be available for use and on the collective assessment of indusiry practice,
internal technical evaluation and experience with similar assets. The astimated useful ives of Bank Pramises,
Furmiture, Fixlures and Equipment are reviewad penodically and are updated il expectations differ matarially from
previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, lechnical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other
limitations on the use of the Bank Premises, Furniture, Fixiures and Equiprmeant. It is possibla, howewver, that future
financial perfformance could be materially affected by changes in the astimatas brought about by changes in
factors mantionad above. The amoumts and timing of recorded expanses for any perod would be alfected by
changeas in thase factors and crcumstances.

There were no changes n the astimated uselul lives of Bank Premisaes, Furnilure, Fixiures and Equipmeant.

d.  Usaelid e of Depreciable Invesimeant Property

The assumplions and astimates used by the Bank in the useful life of Investmeant Property are made 1o objectively
deterrning the productivity or use of the assats. Tha BSP howewver in its Circular 494 provided that Investment
Property-buikding and Investmeant Property-Other Non-Financial Assets specifically those that weara accounted for
as Investment Property under PAS 40 shall ba depreciated anty Tor a period ol not more than 10 and 3 years
respectively reckoning from the date of foreclosure. Thus, the lower batwean the estimate of the Bank and BSFP
regulation shall prevail.

2. Determination of impaiment of Mon-financial Assets
An impairment review should be performed whan cartain impairment indicators are preseni.

Datermining  the walue in use of Bamk Premises, Furniture, Fiduwres and Eqguiprment which redquires thea
determination of fulure cash flows expacted ta be generated from the continued wse and ultimate disposition af
such assels, requires the Bank to make estimales and assumptions that can materially affect the financial
statameants. Fulure events coukd cause the Bank to conclude that Banmk Premises, Furnilure, Fidures and
Equipment are impaired.

Any resulting impairmant loss could have a material adverse impact on the Bank's linancial position and financial
performance.

.  Recogrfion of Retirermarnd Costs

The determination of the obligatiom and cost for pension and other retirement benefits s dependent on thea
salection ol certain assumptions used by an actuary in calculating such amouonts. Those assumptions include
among olhers, discout rates and salary rate ncrease. Actual results that differ from the assumptions genarally
aflfect the recognized expense and recorded abligation in such Tutwre periods. While the Bank balieves that thea
assumplions are reasonable and appropriate, significant diferences in the actual experience or significant changeas
in the assumplions may materially affect the pension and other retirement obligations.
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g.  Recognition of Deferred Tax Assels

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
fulure taxable income will be available against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized. Significant
management judgment is required to detarmina the amount of deferred tlax assets that can be recognized based
upan the likely iming and kvel of future taxable incoms togathar with future tax planning strategies.

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Bank's prncipal financial nstruments consist of cash and cash aguvalents, recevables and payabdas which
arsa fram aparations, and long tenm meestimants. The Bank's activities are principally related o the profitable wsa
al financial instruments. Risks ane mbaramn in these activities bul are managed by e Bank theouwugh a rigorous,
comprahensive and continuouws process of dentification meaasuremant. monitoring and mitigaton of thase risks,
partly through the affective usae of risk and auhorily mits, process controls and mondtoring, and independeant
contrals. The Bank has placed due wnmportance 1o expanding and strengthening its nisk management procass arnd
considers i1 as a wvital companant 1o the Bank's continuireg ﬂrﬂrilﬂbili[}' ared fhinancial stabibity. Central to the Bank's
risk management process is ns adoplion of a nsk management program mtended o avoid unnecessary nsks,
manage and mibgata wnavoidable rnisks and masamize returms froem lakng acceplable risks necessary o Sustan its
busimess validity and good linancial position in the market.

The inherent risks which can arise from the Bank's limancial instrumeants are credit risk. market risk (i, . nterest
rate risk, currency risk and price risk) and liquidity risk. The Bank's risk managamean! objective is primarily locused
an contralling and miigating thesa risks. The Board of Direclors reviesws and agreas on policias for managing each
al thess risks and are summanized as Tollows:

Creai! RYsk

Credil risk is the risk of financial loss due 1o the other party's failure o discharge an obligation cited in a binding
financial instrument. The Bank Taces polential credit risks every lime it extends funds o borrowers, commilts funds
lo coumnerparias, guarantees tha paying performance of s clients, imests funds o issweers and enbars Mo either
market-traded or over-the-counter derivativas, through implied or actual conractual agreements. The Bank
manages the leval of credil risks it accepls through comprebensive cradil risk palicy setling assessment and
determination of what constitutes cradil risk for the Bank; setting up exposure limits by each counterparty or growp
of counterparties, geographical and industry segments; guidelines on obtaining collateral guaranmtaes; reporting of
credil risk exposures and breachas to the monitoring authority; monitaring compliance with credit risk policy and
revienw al credit risk policy for pertinence and changing environment.

Additionally, the tables below show e maximom exposure 1o on-balance shael credil nisk al the Bank as at
Dsacesmbsar 37, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022
Cash and athar cash items P 5,602,854 P 4912, 775
Due fram BSF 5.461,341 5.561.573
Due from ather banks 63,034,219 107,315,574
Drab Securtes Measurad st Amaonized Cost 9,511,954 204, 821
Loares Recencalble 103,724,861 BO.915,979
Total P 187,335, 269 P 183,910,722
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Creail guality per class of fnancal assels

The tables below show Lthe credit quality par class of linancial assals as al December 31, 2023 and 2022:

2023
High grade Standard grade P“:ﬂ::i::"“ Impaired Tatal

D from BESP P 5461 341 P - P - P - 5. 461,341
Dise frovm ather banks E3,034. 218 - . - E3,034. 2718
Dbt Securities 9,511,924 - . - 9,511,994
Loans Receisvable® 0, 618, 751 &, 787,260 6,520 K55 10,5800074 113,216 620
Sales contract receivable® . 1,478,885 . - 1,478, 8856
Other fsses™ TR A3G ] . TR ARG

P 168,527 305 P T 246971 P 5209 585 P 10,580,014 P 153, 482 855
“armownl is gross ol ACL and meal off eviarnorlined discounts
““cormprised of refinerment fund, accrued tevasy and accounts recedvabbs

2023
High grade Bandard grade puh;:lj:::;;l nor Irmgairesd Talal

Dwie froem BSP = 5561.5731 P P P P 5.581.673
DCruree Troem onbser Bkanks 107,3168.574 107,315,674
Dbl Saurilies 204,821 204,821
Laans Recaivakile® 117,041 164912 77,5324 378 13,874 537 21,431, 859
Sakesg conlrsc recentalde E. 493 7oz 3,493 792
Other Asgesg™ 54,934 54 9354

[ 1‘|3|1‘EIEI.-:H:IEI P 3.5-151'&3-'9 P '.'TE-!.H'.IEI [ 13874 537 P .EI:EEIDEE.EEH

“Araut & gross ol ACL S resd of dmarmorfiized aVscourds
“*covrprsed of retmernerv frd], Socrosd Fiferesl And Ssooouils rederaiiie

Narret FHisk

Markal rick is the risk of loss thatl may result rom tha changes n price ol a linancial product. The value of a
fimancial product may changa as a resull of changes iminaesrest rales (currency risk) and markel prces (prce nisk).
Imarest rate risk is the risk that the value of linancial instrument sall Tlocioate because of changes in market
mterest ratas, Currency risk on the odber hand s tha nsk that the value of insruement sall focteate as a resalt of
changeas in markal prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specilic 1o the individual instrument o its
rssuer or factors allecting all instruments traded in the market.

Irilevest rale risk

The Bank's loan recaivables earn ellective nterest rates ranging rom 5% o 30% and 8% to 30% lfor 2023 and
2022, respecively. The Bank's mterast rate on its daposit labibbes 1s ranging from 0.025% 1o 1.45% or all years
preserbad.

Huownzwver, the Bank earms interest at 000713 1o 0.5% and 0.18% with other Banks lor the year 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

Liquachity Risk

Liguidity risk is generally defined as the current and prospective risk o 2armings o capital arising from the Bank's
mahility to meaet its obligations when they come due without incurring unacceplable lossas or costs. L may result
from either irabality 0 sell linancial assets quickly at their far values: of countarparty failling on repayment af
contractual obligation: or inabity o generate cash infllows as antopatad.

The Bank monitors s cash flow position and overall iquidity posibon in assessing iLs exposoure 10 iguidity nsk. Thse
Bank maintains a kavel of cash deemed sulbcient 10 linancae operations and 10 mitigate the effects of Mecduations mn
cash fows and a balance betwaen continuity of funding and flexibility through the use ol shor-term debl and
advances from related parbes and an arrangamant Tor a stand-by cradil line [acilities with any repulable bank and
m casa of ermargency. Inmaerest rate and matunty malcheng amalyss s used o guanuly monitonng of lguedity
pOsition.
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The tables below summarize e maturity prodile based on comractoeasl undecownted cash

financial liabilies and related financial assets used lor liguidity purposes:

flows ol the Bank's

2023

0 - Emonths 3 - & monihs 6 - 12 moevihs Eeyorsd 1 yooar Toial
Firmnarmsial Ll ie-s.
Dizposit labelicees P 136 436,777 P T.3T6 P = P 136,444,152
Bills Fayabe P = P =
Aeocruad Intorest Poyabds 51,588 - 51,588
Dner Liabilities" 2 550,507 = 1,450,386 821,305
Total Finoncial Liabilities P 135,039,272 P 7376 P 1,460,388 P S0 477, 086
Firnamcial Asseis:
Cash and cthor cash s P 502 H54 P = P = P 5602, 854
O Tromm B5F 5 4E4,341 - L= 4, 341
Dhae Trivim othar banks BE034,278 - BE034, 2158
Debi Scocunties 8 511,084 = S5, 9094
Lizares oo ieabde 115,516,550 = A1 E576,580
Salles CoMtract e o irabds: 1,479,885 = 1479, 885
Dther Asseis " 74,826 = 78,826
Total Finoncial Asses P 195,065,708 P - P - P Ao OES, P0E
Licguid ity Possion oG ap) P |60 076.437) P 7,376 P 1,460,388 P |58 608, 66 X]
"CONTEL S O SCCOMNTS BapabhT. e Aoy S DR gty
"R &S N Of LNaUmaniine | aRSO00nT and onos s of SAsciWc AN MRS Iroaishor
Rl = Ee " e e g Tt T S TR ]

S22

0 = 2 rmanthes 2 - & manths i - 12 monis Beyond 7 e Tl
Firendal Liabifties:
Depamt labdiihes P 95 50,800 F ar FrFaE2 F F S ¥ TAE &3, 03
Bills Payaitibe 7045 058 T OEh DaE
ADoued mencst Payablc 5H,BHE LH . HEG
Eher Liahiies® 103,643 T, S 936 1,249,578
I'oial Finamcial Liabilises P THES02, JHE & ar FrFaE2 F F S 1, ME5936 F T5EE515,557
Finaroal Asscts
Cash and ot cash ioms P 4,912,872 F P P 4972, 7%
D= from BSP £,551,573 £ 551,572
[ from ather banks 1,315,574 T B1H 574
et ecumines 08 H2T S0d HE
LS resce reable" HE, 184,268 HE 184S 262
Sales oomract rece esbles 2493 M5E 2 493 Ve
CEher Ansci=""" 54,534 5a 534
Ioial Finarcial Asscts P 206, T27,038 P o o 2HE T27, 735
Liguidity Position (Gagp) P (1060, 12%,348) & a7, ¥ a2 P T, AGE 1,765 936 & (571,112, 183)

"CompiaT of arcme s aapabhs Enaes dabing s ponsion oddgaton

TIRTROLINE B N Of LMaUmeneT aESOo0aT and gnos S OF S0 an oSS mnoadsio

" compnisod of O0Slns TeTaRiNg

Clperalional Risks

Operational risk is tha risk of direct and indirect loss arnsmg rom a wade vanely of causes associated with tha
Bank's imsolbvarment in iinancial mstrumeants, personmed, technology and inrastiructure and axtarmal laciors other
than markel and iquidily risk swch as thosa arising rom legal and regulatory requrements and generally accepled
standards of corporate behavior. Tha Bank's olmective 15 10 manage operational rfisks 50 as 1o balance thea
avoidance of inancial losses and damage to he Bank's reputation with overall cost aelfectivenass and o avoid
control proceduras hal restnct imtative and creatnity.
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MdieurrreaTt Liguedily Ralio (ML)

Mlinbmwm Liguidity Ratio (MLR) for Stand-Alone TBs, RBEs and Coop Banks. To promaote short-lerm resilience 1o
hgquidilty shocks, banks shall maintain a stock of bguid assels proporionate o her on and ofl-balance sheet
habilities. The prudental MLRE requirement applies to all TEs, RBs and Coop Banks and QBs thal are mnot
subsidianes af UBs/KBs.

A prudential MLRE Minimoum requirerment of twaenly percent (20%:) shall apply o banks on an ongoing basis absant
a penod ol hirancal stress. The bguidity ratio s expressad as a percentage of a bank's aligible stock ol ligued
assels o its total qualifying labdities n accordance with BEOREB Section 145,

On March 26, 2020, the Monetary Board in its Resolution Mo, 427 B issues the Memorandum Mo, M-2020-020 reducing the
BALR from twenty percent [205] w0 sictean percent (16%:) 1o address the mcreasing bguedity risk exposure of the Banks arising
from higher demands for funds by depositors, bomowers or both browght by the COWID-189 outbreak the mmplementation of
community quarantine untl December 31, 2020, On January 13, 2022, the Monetary Board in its Resolution Mo, 65 issues the
mAemaorandum Mo, M-2022-004 o prolonged or extend the reducing of MLR of stend-slone thrift, rural, and cooperative banks
until the end of Decembar 31, 2022 Therefore, effective Jameary 01, 3023, the MLE requirement shall be reinstate to beenty
percent [(20%:5).

2023 2022
PART 1. BMIMIKDS LIGUIDITY BATHD (MLR)
o Siock of Liguid Sssels P 74,098, 414 P 117,788,522
E. Cruahlyireg Liabilities 105,771,817 119,275 0588
KErirnum Liguidity Ratia TO.DE 0E.75%
PART Il STOCK OF LICWID ASSETS
Cash on Hand 5,502 154 4,912 776
Bank Reserves in the BSP 5,461, 341 5581.6713
Dl Sacurilies réepresanting dams an ar guaranbeed by the Philippine .
Mational Gowernmert and the BSP
Diepasils in Ciher Banks B3,034 219 107,316 574
74,0858 414 117,788,522
PART L QUALIFYIMNG LIABILITIES
o Cruahlyireg Liabilities
9. Real owrent and mqular sawings deposiis it
mutsianding baleros per acoount of SE00,000 and
bl v P 0472585 P A5, X36.293 P 7RO 9FE P 39,026, 8964
Bowroredirggs that are non-callable i, oor
2. have corraciual maburity dates beyond, the -
ezl B0 calendar days
3. Total on Balamcs Shessl Liabilities 141,008,109 158,301,450
& Dedduct: [Sum of &1 e A2) 70,472 585 A5, X35, 233 78,051 928 39,026, 964
B OEher norcbalance shoe Batilities ( bem & 3 s A4 70,636,524 70,536, 6524 A0, 225 a%2 B, 248 922
. Iresocahle abligalions wnder off-balance sheet bems ]
. Tetal [Sum of Adfusiesd Senourn of (e A0, A2, B and C) P 105,771,817 P 119,275 086
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6. EAIRVALUE MEASUREMENT AND DISCLOSURES

Tha following table presants tha carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's assats and liahilities
measured al fair value and for wihach fairr values are disclosed, and the corresponding lar value hieranchy:

As at December 31, 2023

. —Larrying Walus Lovel Level 3 Leveld
Cash and other cash items [ &.E02 854 P - P 5.E02 854 P -
Due froem BSP &, 451,341 . E. 461 341 .
Due Froem oither banks 63034, 219 . 63,034,219 .
Dbt Secwrities 9,611,004 . 9,611 004 .
Loans amnd Receivabile 103,724, 881 . 103, 724, 861 .
Deposit Liabilities 138 444,163 . 138,444 163 .
Bills Payable - ] - "
Accrued Expenses and Other Liabdlities 4 08 625 . 4 300 EIE .
Tartad P 328168047 P - P J2@, 168047 P .
Sig an DHI.'I-_'L“.IIH 31, 2022

I EHTI:IIIJ U L Le=anz=l 1 Lganz] 2 Leanes] 3
Cash amnd othes cash igems P 4,812,775 P P 4512775 P
Due fram BEP &.661,573 5,661,573
Do Branm alher banks 107,315 574 107, 315 574
D=yt Secuirides 24,831 204 831
Losars amd Reoaivabila 80,515,979 BO.51549749
Deposi Liabilites 146,638 039 1456, 380349
Eils FPayakile 1045 058 7040058
Sociuesd Expenses amd Other Liablities 4 5T 531 4 363 53
EI P &6G,051,329 P P I66, 061 3-2'3 P

7. CASH AND CASH EQUINVAL ENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period as shown in the statemeants ol cash llows can be
reconciled Lo the related items in the statements ol linancial position as follosws:

202% Hx2
L1 Cash and Orhery Cash Mevs
Cash an Harsd and in Waull P E.EO02HE4 P 4,912 776
Check and Ofher Cash Bems -
Toral cash svnd anfiey cash M 5, B02 A54 4,912 776
7.2, e frovr 50 and odfer Daviks
Due fram Bangka Santral ng Pilipinas 5,461,341 5.581.5713
Due fram Oiher Banks 63,0034 219 107,315 574
Total 68,498 560 112,877,147
Total Cash and Cash Eﬂui--.ulenl:. P 74,008 414 P 117,708 922

Cash consists primarily of funds in the form of Philipping cwrrency noles and coins in the Bank's vaull and
those in the possession ol tellers. Chacks and other cash tems include cash items (odher than currency and
cams on hand) swech as checks drawn on the othar banks or other branches aller the Bank's clearing cut-ofl
time until the close of the regular banking hours. For the purposea ol the staterments of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalars include cash on hand and in banks. Cash eguivalarts are short-terrm,  highly  ligquid
imvastments thal are readily comeaarible 10 known amounts of cash sith maturities of threse months or lass from
the dater of acguisition and that are subject to an insignilicant risk of change n vabue.
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The balance of Dus from BSP account serves as the Bank's reserve lor its deposit habilities. Undar the
Manual of Regulations for Banks, a Bank is reguired o maintain its resere redqurements for s dapasit
lianbilities in the form of deposits with the BSF Section 252 of MORE further providas that such deposilt account
with the BSP is not consideraed as a regular curfent acoownt. Drawings against such deposits shall be limited
to: (a) settlement of abligations with the BSP; and, (b) withdrasals 1o maet cash requirameants.

D from other banks represaent lunds deposited with domestic banks which are used by the Bank as part al
its opearating funds. Breakdown of this accournt foldlowws:

2023 2022
Private banks
Commercial banks P 15,125,985 P 28,488,848
Government bank
Land Benk of the Philippines 47 . BT2, 718 2. 744 0174
Development Bank of the Phils. 31,516 249 8&2
Total Due from Other Banks P W P 107,262 714

Under Sec.362g of the Manuwal of Regulations lfor Banks, loans and other credil accommaodations as well as
depasits and usual guarantesas by a bank o any other bank whether locally or abroad shall be subject 1o the
Single Borrower's Limit of 25% of the Nel worth as berein prescribed or ®100 Rillion whichever is higher.
Provided thatl the lending bank shall exercise propar due diligence in selecting a depository bank and shall
formulate appropriate policies o address the corresponding risks imalved in the ransactions.

On March 15, 2020, the Monatary Board, on s Resolution issuoad tha Memoranduam No. BM-2020-071
increasing the single borrowear's limit (SBL) from 25% o 30% for a parod ol six (6) months from March 18,
2020, Om January 13, 2022, the Monetary Board in its Resolubion Mo. 65 issuas the Memorandum Mo, M-2022-
004 o prodonged or extand the effectivity of the single borrower's limit for Philippine banks and foreign bank
bramchas umlil end of December 317, 2022.

Az of December 31, 2023, the Bank's SBL was reqistered at 12 783,252 and as per BSF Manwal al
Requlations, banks are exempled on the cailing af single borrowsars it (SBL) on depositfirmeaesiment
placements o government banks, howeaver excess ol SEL on privalte banks are bDeng consdered if thea
accaunts are used for clearing operation.

A5 ol December 31, 2023, none of the Banks has exceadad the prescribed hmit or = 100 milion under
Circular Mo, 734 Series al 2071

Cash in bank reprasents current, sawvings and tima deposit accourt n lecal bank winch aams imarast at 0,07 %
o 0L5% and 0.18% lor the year end 2023 and 2022, respectnsaly.

Interest incomsa rom bank accoums and short-term cash deposits amownted 153 525 and 162 2778 N
2023 and 2022, respectively.

Tha Bank reconciles the books and bank balances reqularly as part al its cash monitoring and interral contral
measuras.,

The Bank holds no cash and cash aguivalents in 2023 and 2022 which ara rnol avadable for oseae by Bank.
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8 DEDT SECURITIES MEASURED AT AMORTIZED COST

Thas accour! consists of -
2023 2022
Agraran Bonds P 9.511.994 F 204, 821
Less: Unamartized Discount!Premium - -
Allowanca for Credil Losses

Toonktanl = E-i511|954 = EEIdiEI-E"I

Urder current bank requlations, investments in bonds and othar dabd instroments shall not axceed 50% of
adjustad statlutory met worth plus 40%: ol otal deposit liabilites. As ol December 371, 2023 and 2022, the
Bank's imvestmanmts are wilhin the prescribed wathan.

Interast incoma from imvastmenis accounts and shori-ierm cash deposits amounted P253.435% and ™5 260 in
2023 and 2022, respectively.

AL ol Decamber 31, 2023 and 2022, no amount of these lMinancial assets are osad as collateral for liabibibes or
contingent liabilities

2. LOANS AND RECENADLE

The loan receivables are stated al cutstanding balances, nel of estimated allowance for credil lossas and
unearmed incomeardiscounts, brokaen down as lTollows:

o ] i ]
Curment Loans [ 81, ZT7. 611 P 56,854, 9068
Pasgt Due Losns
Perfarming 5 T63 230 7,623 958
Fdri-Per Torrming 9,126, 381 11,6591, 882
nens i Litigation 8,484 216 9,276 552
Tenal 114,650, 3008 &5, 447 298
Leesss Linameetired interast ardd Disoount T3 718 2E3 029
Tolal, met of @Ecour 113,916 650 BES 184 267
Lesss: Allowance for Credil Losses
Specific 10,580,014 13,974 537
GeEneral a1 600 EE_ B0
Tenal Loarns Raeceivables. rel P 102, 244 976 J0,518 130
S Sales Conract Receable, el (Mote 9.1) 1,478,885 3,453 793
CHFer Ladans (Role 9.2 . 6,904 056
Tenal Loarns and Recaivabibog.net P 1ﬂ!.T-2MEi = B1,916 978

As ol December 31, 2023 and 2022, tolal nterest eamed amounted o P12 795,999 and ™11,724,669,
respecivaly.

Tha Bank holds collateral against loans and recaivablas in tha forrm of real estate and chattel mortgages, and
depasit hold ouls ower assals,

The Bank has in place a reliable credit classilicaton system o promptly ideruly detenorating credil exposuras
and determine appropriate allowance for credit lossas. Classification can be done on the basis of internal
credit. risk rating system, incleding paymeant delingueancy status. Al credil classilications, nol only thosa
rellectimg severe cradil detericcation, are considered in determining the appropriate allowance for credit
lossas.
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Mote 5.1 - Sales Contract Receivable

Thais refars o the amoriieed cost of assels acguirad in sattlerment of loans throogh Toreclosure or dation n
paymeant and subsequantly sold on nstallmeant basis wheraby the Utk o the said propery s ransfarred Lo the
buyers ondy upon Tull paspment of seldling price.

Thas accourd consists of

2023 2022

Parfarmandg P 1,537,588 P 3.668, 446
Pdeori- pPrerlarrmirg = -

Tl 1,537,598 3668, 446
Less: Allowance for Credil Losses - -

Unamoriizad Descowunlt 57.713 174,654

Sales Contract Recermvable-net | & 1.479. B85 P 3,493 792

[ s s e e e e

Mote 9.2 - Other Loans

Thea Bank acls as a conduit betweaen the Agncultural Cradil Pohicy Councill [(ACPC) and its borrowers wheraby
the loans gramtad ware unded by the ACPC. All credit polickes and programs in support of the latbars priority
programs. The braakdosen of Other Loans as Tolkows:

A ol Decamber 37, 2023, there are no Agnicullural Credit Pohcy Councill ACFC) wiech already fully comipleed
with the pravious year.

2022
Current FPast Due Irems in Liligaban Tadal
Parformang Pion- Performing
SAgri P 1,879,536 P 1.567,039% P 2,164 286 P - P 2,610,661
Agra 440, 2E2 354, 380 498 533 . 1,293 7105
= 2319818 P 1.927.419 P 2662 B19 P - P B, 904 056

In compliance with the regulations of the B5P, the Bank strictly adheres 10 the satiing up of tha valwation
allvwrance lor nsk assetls based on the loan loss methodology ol the Bank. The Bank reviews the quality of its
loan portlolio and preparas a quantitative classhcation of 1S nsk assets including |oands.

Movsearmernds in the allowearnca Tor credil lossaes related 1o lean and recaivables fallon:

2023 2022
Balance al beginning ol yeaar P 14,666,138 F 17.776.606
Provrsson - 157,818
Acoounls seittern-odl (2. 994, 566) -
Adjustment 42 (3468, 286])
Balance al end year P 11.&671.614 P 14,666,138

Tha total Allowance Tor Credit Losses of 11,671,614 which composed of specilic loan 0ss prowvisions arnd
general loan loss provision as stated above 1S in complancs with the BSF Mamorandowm Circoular 707 1.
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10. BANK PREMISES, FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND ECUIPMERNT

The Qross carmying amourids of thaese inad assels and thair respactive accumulated depraciaton and
amarization of bank premisas, furmiture, Tures and equipment shown below.

Details of net carrying amount &s of December 31, 2023

Accumulated

Cost De-pre;im:i_nnn' NE;:E:J?.;"Q
Amortization
Cost

Lamnd P 337,500 B - B 337,500
Building S84 906 S84, 406 -
Furniture and Fixtures 3,631, 287 3,273 4090 357, .78BB
Transportation Eqguipmemnt 2,084, 628 1.853.587 2371042
Leasahold Iimprovements 1,579, 260 1.579, 700 -
Total | = B217. 112 & 5,290 78 & D25, 30

e —

Details of nel carryireg amourt as ol December 31, 2022

Accumulabesd

Cost Depracistiond Nt Canrying

Amortizetion Armouint
Cost
Land | = J3s75. 500 - e J37 500
Building 5434 406 534 4D -
Furnrure amnd Focbuones 3000352 3,147 342 149 681
lransportation Eguipment 2,084 520 1. 8717 OEF 263 542
Leasehold Improsemsamis 1,579 280 1,579, 200 -
I'oial P ra62 BESE P J163 125 L 7O4 T3E

A reconciliation of the carrying amounts of bank premisas, furmirdre, fixiores and equepment al the beginmireg
and end al 2023 and 2022 is shownr bsalona:

Roll foreard analysis of acquisition cost for the year ended December 31, 20238:

Balance a1 beginming

o year Bt ions Disposals Adjus DT s Balanoe ab end of yoar
[T
Land P 337,500 P - P - P - P 37,500
Baikding 584,406 = - = E24,. 406
Furnibure and Fizbures 377,032 291,858 - 37,583 B3N, 2HT
Trarsp=nrtation Equegment 2 024,625 = . = 224, 620
Leasahald Improuements 1,579, 280 - - 1579, 260
Taoial T, 9E2 B5T 291, BEE . 37,583 B.E17,112
Arcumuiated Depreciaton
Basikding 524 &D6 - " =TT
Furniiure and Fixbunes 187, 34F 86,157 s a E_F73, 468
Trarspsoriation Equipmont 1,517,087 36,500 - = 1.653,58T
Leasahold Improvoments 1,579,280 = = 1.579, 280
Toal T.1E8.125 122 657 - - = il -
BlEt CarTyieg aeGunt P T34, TIZ P 168,181 P - P 317,68 P WG, 330
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Roll farward armalysis ol acguisition oost for e year ended Decermber 31, 20@2:

Esaloine i it [zginining of

e Addinons Disposnals Adjusiments Ealance ot o ol yoar
e
Land P 13,500 P - P - P - P 337,500
Buildirg =4, 406 - . - 524, 406
Funniune and Foeures 323,347 54, 630 - - 2.30.0az
Tronsporiaten Equipment 2= 0E4, 629 . - - =024 620
Lizaschiokd Improdssmenis 1,579,280 - - 1.579,290
Total To08 167 54 B30 . - 733 857
Accumuiaicd Depreciation
Buldirg =4, 406 - - 5=, 406
Funniiune: and Forures = 078,557 100,585 - 1,800 187,342
Transpartaton EquipmieEnt 1, 70,587 3E,500 - - 1.817,08TF
Lizaschold Improsomenis 1,575,250 . - 1.579, 250
Tkl T0Z3,.850 147,085 - 1,800 T.1E8, 125
T TR S = e P FNET I — 5 TN I e

Depreciatton amownting to #4459 043 and #3033 875 in 2023 and 2022, respectiivaly, are shiown as separala
compornanis of operaling expanseas in the Statemants of Comprahansive Income.

Mo additions 1o property and @guipment dunng tha year are treated as non-cash ransactons foe cash flows.

Tha wvalee al ke Bank premoses, lurmitora, llures and equeprmeant of 926 330, netl of accwmolated
depreciation, as al Decembear 37, 2023 15 1.871% al the Bank's oltal net swarth,. This is lower than the 50%
rmaxirmurm ratio required under BSF requilation (BMOREB Sachion 109).

The Bank, alter dee corsideration of the assassmeant al ils impairment, believes thal there are no indcations
thal the property and equipment as of December 37, 2023 amnd 2022 are impaired or 1S canrying amount
cannol be recovearsd.

11. INWESTMENT PROFPERTIES

This account s consisting of real estate proparties acquired by the Bank in ssttlemeant ol loarns which wera
recognized as FROPA and accoured for as nvestment properties o oorform saith PAS 400

The gross carrying amouris and accumulated depreciation and impairment of investment propariies ara
shonwn in the Delows.

2023 2022
Lared [ = 2.595.075 P 1.942 265
Eusiliang 292 _ZIE7T 293 36T
Cithars 658,063 -
Total 3,545 505 2,234 BE52
Less: Accumulaied Depreciation 51,164 -
Total 3,494 341 2,234 652
Less: Allowances for Credit Losses - -
[0T=18 Earm’nﬂ Aot [ 3,494, 341 F 2,234 652
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A reconcihation of the carying amounts of the Bank's imsastmant propertyal the beginmng and and of 2023
and 2022 15 showr N below:

2023 2022
Balance al begirmning of year nel ol accumulated
depreciation and Impairmeant loss P 2,234 652 P 1.568B,175
Adddilions 1,310,853 GEG 477
Disposal - -
Deprecialsan (51,16-4) -

Adjustments - -
Balance al and of year netl of acoumulatad depraciabon

ard Irrlﬂaurrlern Iss P 3,484, 341 P 2. 234 652

Az ol December 31, 2023 and 2022, no amount of imsastmeant in property was used as collateral For liabilities.

Addions o investment propsarty durnng the year are throwegh ransier of loans recervablas 1o ROPA acoount.

12. RIGHT TO USE ASSET

The bank has sewvaral lease agreamants of which are under tha finance 2ase model of acoownting. With the
exceplion ol short lerm leases and leases of love-value underlying assats, tha lease 1s reflected on the balanca
sheel as a right-of-use assel and a lease liability. The bank classilies s right-of-use assels in a consistent
manner a5 Bank Premisas, Furmilure, Fixlures and Eguiprmeni.

In complance walh PFRS 16, the movement of nght-of-use assals 15 as follow:

Total
Cost
Balance at Jarmuary 1. 2022 P G620 505
Additions 537,427
Balance at Decembsr 31, 2022 1,157,632
Additions -
Balance at December 31, 2023 1,157 831
Accumulated Amortization
Balance at Jarmuary 1, 2022 521,540
Amortization ST, 990
Balance at Decembsr 31, 2022 619,930
Amortizabon 236,549
Balance at December 31, 2023 B56,479
Met Book WValue - 2023 P 301 452
Met Book Walue - 2022 P 53RB,002

Finance leases are capilalized at the leasa's commeancamant al the lower of the fair walue ol he leased

property and the present walue of he minimoem lease payments.
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13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Systems and Softwares

Cost

Balance at Jarnuary 1, 2022 P &G, 000
Additions -
Adpustments -
Balance at Decembs=r 31, 2022 &06E, D00
Additions -
Balance at December 31, 2023 G606, D00

Accumulated Amortizaton

Balance at January 1, 202Z2 130,991
Amortizaton &0, 600
Adjustiments -

Balance at Decembs=r 31, 2022 191,591
Amortizaton &0, 600
Balance at Decembear 31, 2023 252, 181
MNet Book WValue - 2023 P 353 808

=1 Boo giue -

14. OTHER ASSETS

This accourd is consists of -

2023 2022
Prepan] Expenses P 57.729 = 45 737
Patty Cash Fund 10,0100 10,000
Slabonery and Supplhes 306,663 107,426
Miscellaneou Assel 78,826 54,934
w |5 453,218 H EREE T
15. DEPOSIT LIABILITIES
Thas accourd 15 consists of -
2023 2022
Savings Deposil P 136,436,777 P 146,630,663
Tirme Depasil T.37TE 7. 366
RTHE] [Epu!.ﬁ Ciabilities F 136, 4449, 153 146 Gan, 020

Savings Deposits are composad of regular savings accounts which are withdrawable upon demand and thosa

with speal tarms and withdraswable at certain pencd olume. Tha oal deposias for the yaar decreasad by
P10,193, 876 or 65.95% over the ligures of 2022,

For the yaar 2023 and 2022, reqular sawvings daeposil camies an annoeal interest rate of 0.025%, while special
savings and ime deposits ranges betwean 0.65% 10 1.45%: per annum.

O Jurs2 23, 2023, the BMonetary Board i its Resolution Mo, 727 approved a reduction an the reserva
requireament (RRE) ratios af deposits and deposit substitvte abibes of roral banks ([RBs) and cooparatneeg
banks [Coop Banks) decreasing the reserve reguirement 1o one parcent {1%:) allective reserve weak 30 Juna
2023 Tha required resarve as ol Decamber 37, 2023 amounted o ™ 1, 364,442 ar 1% al thae total depasit
liabihites. Thes amourt s n the form of deposit with Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas which has a balanca of
5 451,341 as at Decamber 31, 2023 which is higher thamn the reguired resarses for ruoral banks.

Interest expense lor he years ended Decembsar 37, 2023 and 2022 amounted o #9265 648 and ®812 221,
respectvaly.

Faga 30 of 45

Page | 179




16. BILLS FAVARLE

Thas accour consists of bormovangs from Agricultural Credit Policy Councl (ACPC) availled for the
purpose al funding the loans extended 10 marginalized growp of farmers and Osherlolks. The loan Dears no
iMerast walh matunty of ten (10) years from date of grant.

2023 2022
Bills Payahle P - P 7.0449 058
Tolal P - P 7.048, 058

17. ACCRUED INTEREST, TAXES AND OTHER EXFENSES FPAYABLE

Thas accoun! consists of :

2023 2022
Accrued Interest Expansa on Financial Liabilities P 51,588 F 58,886
Total ] E1.508 - nh.oan

Accrued inerest payable represants the recograbion ol interest expansa already due on imancial liabilities as
of Decaember 31, 2023 bul subsequantly paid in tha nexd accounting period.

18. OTHER LIABILITIES

Thas accoun! consists of :

2023 2022
ACCOounts Payabie P 2,520,907 F 103,643
Withholding Taxas Payable 58,661 23,321
Lease Liabidity 301,007 L22. 862
Parsion and Other Retireamant Benelits (Mote 22) 1,155,391 1,243,074
Dividends Payabla 68,647 H02,988
Docurmantary Hamp Tax 3,900 50
Urclamed Balances - 895 455
Miscaellaneous 223,524 B52,242
Tolal P 4,337,037 F 4. 204,635

The abt=pve liabaities are settled edher by cash or check paymeams. As December 31, 2023 and 2022, o
amourt of assels was used as collateral, secunty of quarameae loe the above liabaities.

Withholdireg 1ax payable represents tax wilhheld on inlerest expense on deposits, on compensation and other
transactons on wihich the bank 15 obliged o withhold as a wilthhalding agent of the government. 535,
Medicare and Pag-ibig Contribution are amployees contribution ard payment of loan which are o be remitted
by the Bank on Janwary 2024,

Pansion and Oiher RetrementBbenefits represemts liabiily recognized by the Bank for the bDenefit of ils
officers and employaes upon reaching their retirement age.

Dividends Payabla are due o preferrad shares

The laasa labdlity is calculated using the present value of tha lease payments over he lease lerm discounted
using the average incramantal borrowing rate as provided by the Bangko Sentral ng Filipinas.

Unclaimed Balances are deposil account balances which are dormant for ten years or longer wich are dusa
lor rarsfar o the Treaswrer of the Philippines due o absence of claimant
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19, COUNTY

18.1 SHARE CAPITAL

Frafgrance 5have Capilal

The prederence share capital of the Bank 15 given prniorty n the distnibution of the assets of the corpocaticn in
casa of ligquidation. As o divdends, prefarmad shares are antitled o recenve dividends on the said shares o thea
extent agreaed upon belore any dividends at all are paid to crdinary shareholders. Prelerred shares are non-
curmulative and non-participating. As W vating nghts, preference shareholders are nol entithed 1o wole in tha

narmal cowse of busmess and decision making of the bank excepl as those provided in Sec X of tha
Corporabon Code of the Philippanes.

Ordinary Shares

Tha ardirary shareholders of the bank are gvan less priogity as o assels liguidation compared 0 outsida
creditors ard praferred shareholders. Ordinary shares are given equeal nghts and prelerance as amaong
ordinary shareholders. The availaility of dividends shall be determmed Dy the net incomes aller daductireg any
rasiriction lor reserve reguireamants and preferred dividends, if any.

The reconciliabon of number ol ordinary sharas oulstarnding durmg thae paenod s as follows:

2023 2022
Shares Aumaunt Sharas Aurnount

Share Cagilal = P00 par valws, 200000 authorized shares

Owdinary Shares al e baeginming ol he year FO0000 P 20,000,000 AoOxg P 20,000,000
Sgddigianal Infugion - .

suance ol shares of stacks fram senlement al - .

S by plia e rescejvaile . .

Ondinary Shares the end of the yesar i Ll i 20, GO0 o0 200000 S0, O 00
SubSoribed "

Subsoniplion receivalle - '

Taotal %m P mlﬁ-&m 00000 P 20, OO0 0
— —

The reconciliation of number ol praferred shares oustanding during the period is as follows:

2023 2022

Shares Aumount Shares Aurnount
Share Capital = P100 par valws, 50,000 autharized shares
Pefemad Sharaes & the beginning ol the year 40,080 P 4,008,000 2E3ZE P 2,832 400
EsuAnces of Shanes 8,950 SaE 000 11.79%
EsuanceE ol shares of siacks am Seflement al - .
ST plia s receivaile . .
Pualeares] Shares e end of 1he yeces 510, CHND 5, 00, 00 40,050 4, 005, 0

15,2 RETAIMED EARNINGS
The reconciliabion of surplus during the pericd is as lollows:

2023 2022
Balamnce, Baginning P 21,114,868 P 20,9045 BESE
Met Income B, 883, 85 1,345,806
Dividend Declaration - {430, 100)
Prowvisions and Adjustiments (1.116,3218) {656, TTS)
“Balance, Ending P 26,881,666 21,114 650
Provision and Adjustments

20Z3 g
Prioe Parmod Incamea and expenses P (1,116, 318) P -
Apprareal of Building - 1656, 775)
Tokal P (1.116,318) 1656,775)
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15.3 CAFITAL MAMAGEMENT

The prnmary objectives of the Bank's capital management are o ansdra that it complies with externally
imposad capital requirements and thal it maintains strong cradil ratings and haalthy capaal ratios in order 1o
suppart s businass and o maximizs shareholders’ value. The Bank maintains sulficient capital necessary 1o
Support its primary purpose andfor undertakmgs whech it has inated and promotad. Tha Bank management
ivalves maintainmg lunding capacity to accommaodate luciuations in assat and baility levels dea 1o changas
in the Bank's businass operations of unanticipated events created by conswumer behawvior or capital market
conditbores.

Tha Bank manageas ils capial strocture and makeas adjustmeant Lo it in kight of changes in eaconomic conditions
and the fisk charactenstucs of i1s actvities, In order 10 maantam o adpust the capital structura, the Bank may
adjust the amownt of dividend paymam o shareholdaers, relum capatal o shareholdars or issue Capital
SERCUritEes,

Regulatory Qualifying Capital

Under existing BSP regulations. the determination of the Bank's compliance with regulatory reguirements and
ratios is based on the amount of the Bank's unimpaired capital {regulatory net worth) reported to the BSP.
determined on the basis of regulatory accounting policies, which differ from PFRS in some aspects.

Under Section 127 ol the MORE, as amended by Cwcular Mo, 1078 dated March 2020, the risk-based capital

adequacy Iramewoark far stand alone theflt banks, rural banks and cooparatnie banks ara in Appendix 62 of thea
MORE.

Under current banking regulations, the combined capital accounts of each bank should not be less than an
amournt equal 1o ten percent (10.00%) of its risk assels. The qualifying capital af the Bank for purposes af
determining the capital-to-risk assets ratio to total equity excludes:

+ unbooked valuation reserves and other capital adjustments as may be required by the BSP;

« total outstanding unsecured credit accommodations o directors, officers, stakeholders and related

interests (DOSRI);
« deferred tax asset or liability; and
« other regulatory deductions.

Risk assels consist of total assats alter axclusion of cash on hand, dese from BSP, loans covered by hold-out
or assignrment of deposits, bans or acceplances undear lettars of oredit 1o the extent covered Dy margm
deposits, and other non-rek tems as determinaed Dy he Monetary Board ol the BSP.

Under Saction 121: Mdiarmun Regquired Capdal, Rural Banks with up o five (5) branches including head office
in all other areas are required to comply with the naw minimum capital of PSOM within five (5) years as
amendad by BSP Crcular No. 1151 series of 2022, A capital build up program is also required 1o be submittesd
to the BSF within six (6) months from date of the circulars effectively. Despite of the capital deficiency, the
Bank submitted s capital build-up program to BSP and to comply thair preferred incentives within five (5)
yEaArs.

Tha CAR ol the Bank as al Decembser 37, 2023 and 2022, as adjusted, is shown in the able below:

2023 2022
_Iier 1 I:EFli'LE“ P 51,856,310 P A5 0B, f&53
Tier 2 Capital 681,600 B8, 600
Total Eﬂlifm' H gm P 52,547,970 & A5, 000, 363
Risk Weighted Assets P 150,050,608 0 fid /B8, 720
Tier 1 Ratio 4.5 1825
Tier 2 Ratio 0.46% 0.30%
Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) 35.02% 1D 555
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Tha Bank's Total Qualifyirng Capital as al December 31, 2023 and 2022 weara computad as tollows:

2023 202
A Calevitation of Cualilying Capital
A1 Tier 1 Capital
Core Tier 1 Capital
Paid-Lip Capital - Ordinaey L 20,000,000 F 20 300, 000
Paid-up perpetual amnd mon-cumulative preferned siock 5, a0, IDHERTH 4,005,000
Retained Earmings D6, B8 G5E 1,114,889
Deductions from Care Tier 1 Capital
Deeferred Taw Agsel, Mel ol Delerred Tax Lialklivg 25,346 111,126
Tenal Tier 1 Capital 51,856 310 45 008 TGS
A2 Tier 2 Capital
Eerneral Loan Loss Pravision G51,50:0 B9, G600
Deductions Iram Uppers Tier 2 -
Tetal Upgresr Tier 2 Cagital B G000 EA1, 600
TOTAL CHUALIFYIMNG CAPITAL P 52647910 P 45,700,363

Tha Bank maimntaimns an activaely managed capital base 1o cover nsks imherent an the businass. The adequacy

of the Bank's capatal 15 monitored using, among otber maasures, tha rulas and ratios adopted by the BSF m
supervising the Bank.

The armount of surplus unds available for dividend declaration is determined also on the basis of regulatory

net worth alter considering certain adjustiments. As al Decamber 37, 2023 and 2022, the Bank is compliant
with AR requirameant.

20. OTHER INCOME

Thas accourd consistls of:

2023 2022
Feas and Commissions P 281,050 F 304,528
Gains From Sale/Derscogrnbon of Investiment Proparties 2,722,000 -
Miscellaneous Income 9,101,125 3,362,996
Tenkal P 12104178 F 3667, 6524

Miscellaneous Income consists of amoums from recovery of wrllen-ofl accounts amountireg 1o P11, 789,486,
loan processing feaes amournting o P475,00, penalties for past-due accourds P5.2095, 146, and others
amounting o P1,.547 497, respectivaly.

21. COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS

Thas accourd consists of the Tallowing:

2023 2022
Salaries, Wages and (Mher Benelils P 5.T6E BT2 P 5 153,974
Diractor's Fag 1,470,333 885,000
555, Philhealth, and Employees Campensation Premium and Pag-ibig Fur 280,245 356,825
Tkl | 7.619.450 P 5,385,899
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22, REETIREMERNT BEMEFITS FLAM

In compliance with R.A. 76417, defined banalit plan, on which the bank’s obligation is o provide specific level ol
benealits for avery year of sarvica, tha bank will pay lomp sum o s regular employees when they retire. Thea
lmp sum i thair basic salary in the linal year of service muliphed by tha number of year in sarvice.

The bank has ol abtaned an up-::laleu:l actuarnal valuatwon ol IS Empllﬁ:l'l-_'EE' ratirerment benelils compuled
using the progected wnit credt method as of Decembsar 37, 2023 as required by PASIAS 19, Employes
Banalits and PAS/IAS 26, Accounting and Reporting of Retiremeant Plan. Tha bank has s own retiremeant
policy to comply with the requiremeants of Philippine Laws the Republic Act 7847, The reguired disclosure swch
as, ils exgposura Lo risk, demographic and linancial assumptions, defimed benealits plan and fair value of assels
and the stress test dealing with timing amd uncertainty of fTvlure cash lows were nol disclosad. Thera is o
sufficient infarmation o compute the retirerment cbligaton using the "Projectad Unil Credit” mmethod and 1o
prepara the requered disclosure purswart wath e provision of PAS 189 and PAS 26. The Management beliewvas
Lthat the effect ol such non-compliance is nol material arnd will not alfect the decision ol usaers of these linancial
slalements. DESPI[E Lhal, the bank maintains a retrement lia |.'Ii||1.3,l and plan assel.

Tha Banks retrement benelil obdigation partams ooa fended, comnbutory and non-comribuatory retrment
benelit plan. Tha retirement plan, the Bank recogrmzas the payment of relrement, death, or disabality banalits
Lo its employeas’ benefliciarias as the case may ba, subject o the conditions and limitations sat in tha Bank's
retirement plan manual.

All regularipermanant amployae regardlass of age s aligible for Bank’s retrement benealits. NMormal retiremeant
age is 50.

This accourd refers Lo the bank liability with respeact (o othar post employrmsant banalits given o employaes.

2023 2022
Bagunning Balance P 1.243,074 P 1.623,064
Additional prowvisions - -
e ctvars arsndg iram Satilements (B3,683) {379,990)
Balance at the and of the ﬁl’ [ 1,159,391 P 1,243,074

23. DTHER QOPERATING EXPEMNSES

This accourd consists of the Iﬂllﬂu.ring:

2023 2022
Travelng Exparsas P &08,048 P Z233.8892
Reprasentation and Emertainment 62,496 88,937
Security, Clerical, Messengerial& Jamorial Saricas &0, 907 532,593
Power, Light & Waler 338,585 A0E, 542
Information and Technology 174,825 BT 456
Ligaton Expansas T10. 447 BOB. 496
Paostage, Telephone, Cables & Telagram B8, 236 85,547
Insurance Expenseas 501,778 475,747
Addvertising & Publicity 151,967 127,828
Fines, Panalties and iher Fees B, 103 BE 372
Ful & Lubricams 180,710 305,244
Slatoneries & Supplies Used 127,899 116,952
Management and Other Professional Fees B66, GO0 931,233
Fepanrs and Pairarnarca 1,406,032 321,144
Membarship Faes & Duas 22120 5520
Donatiornes and Charitabla Contributions 95, k0 86,598
Supsarvison Faes 21,130 17,824
Mher Expanses 1.081, 477 483,616
Fental 65, 300 158, 250
Total P 7. 182,660 P 5,321,898
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24. DEPRECIATION AMD AMORTIZATION EXFENSE

This accoum is consistls of -

2023 2022
Fusrrifure, Fodures and Equaprmant P a6, 157 F 108, 785
Transportation Equiprmernt 36, 500 365,500
Right-aol -usa 236,550 97,990
Intancubde 60,600 &0, 600
Investment Propsaries 29,237 -
Talal P 449044 P 103,875
25. INCOME TAXES
Prowrsaan [ar income Llax consists of:
2023 2022
Current: P 1,276,243 P HOT, 700
Dedarrad - (155,232]
Tax EIEEI‘I‘EE IEEI:IFI'.EI:' in Statement of Income | 1 IZ'.I'EIE-HE | 35 2|-1-E1EI
The current and dalerred Lax is compulad as Tollows:
Current Tax
2023 2022
Sialulory INcome Lax P 2037516 P 424 593
Incame ax alfects of:
Interest ircomea subject o inal tax (101, 741) (41,885)
Prowrssan Tar credil lasses on loards and recaivablas - g8, 454
Mon-dedctible axpansas 849,109 35,537
Remeasurement doa 1o changed in ax rates [748,641) -
Provision for Income Tax-Current = .20, ¥
Computation of Income Tax:
2023 2022
Mel Incomea per books P 8,150,064 P 1.698, 374
Add: Mon-deductible Expenses/Taxablde Olher Incorme
Provision for Credil Losses on Loans and Recaeivablas - 357,818
MNon-deduclible expenses 356,436 142,748
Todal 8,506, 500 2,198, 340
Lexss: Mar-taxable Income and Income Subjectad o Final Tax
Accounts written-oll 2,994, 566 -
Lease Paymenls 37,500 278, 250
Iritarast Income Subject o Fmal Tax 406,964 167,538
M Taxable Irnetormea 5,067,470 1. 752,551
Tax Rale 25% 25%
Mosrmal Corpoarate Incames Tax 1,766, BGE 438,138
Minirmurm Coarporate Incomsa Tax®™™ 242,120 78,366
Incame Tax Do 1,266, B68 438,138
Less:
FPror Year's Excass Credits — Taxes Withheald - -
Tax F".L'IIITIE'TI[E IJ[hI-.'L thary WCIT _ 1_051,53’1 _ a5, 896
Income Tax Sull Due!/{Owverpayment) [ 175,331 P 351,242
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""Balow is the computation of RMinimom Corporate Incomea Tax (MCIT) Tor the year anded December 37, 2023

and 2022.

2023 2022
Revarue P 13,203.8964 P 11,892 205
Cosl of Revenusa B. 7559, 8649 7.465 625
Grores Incorme 4,444 096 4,436,581
Add: Other Incame 12,104,179 3,667 524
Less: Inmarast Income Subjected o Final Tax 406, 364 167,538
Total Gross Inoarmea 16,141,311 7.936,567
MCIT Rata 1.50% 1%
Minimum Corporate Income lax |2 Az 120 D
An analyss of Deferred Tax Assals as follonw:

2023 2022
Defarred Tax Assat
Defarrad Tax Assat — Baginning = 245627 P 25 457
Prowvisson Tor allowance credit lossaes - a9 454
Prowision for pansion and othwer retiremeant bsanalits - -
Lease Lisbdlity 75,252 130,715
RMCIT w=ead - -
Chers [(B5,670) -
Defarrad Tax Assat — Ending 235,200 245,627
Deferred Tax Liability
Defarmad Tax Liability — Baginning 134,500 -
Right of use assel 75,363 134,500
FRemeasurement impact of CREATE Law - -
Defarrad Tax Liability — Ending 208,864 134,500
Deferred Tax Assets, Met | ESIEIE | 11 1.1£

25. RELATED PARTY TRAMNMSACTIONS

FParties are considerad 1o b ralated il one pary has the ability, directly or indirectly, o comtrod the other party
or exarcise signilicant influence owver the olher party in making linancial and operating decisions. Emlilies ara
considerad o be related il they are subjected under common comrod or significant influence. The Bank's
related parties inchuda:

+  Rey management personmal, closs Tamily members of key manadgameanm persornnel and entities;
= wihich are comrolled, significantly nfleencad by or for which signilicant voling power is held:

= by kay management parsonnel or their close lTamily mambers, arnd

= post-amployment benafit plans for the banefit of the Bank's employaess.

The Bank has no several busimess relationships with related parties. Transactons with such parties are mada
in the ordinary course of business and on substantially sarme erms, includng imerest and collataral, as thosea
prevailimg at the time lfor comparable ransactions wih othar parties. Thesa ransactions also did not neohoee
more han the mormal risk of collectability or presaent cther undavorable conditions.

Remunerations of Key Managameant Personnel

Kay management personnal arae those persons having adthority and responsibaity for planning. directineg and
controdling the activiies of the Bank. directly or indirectly. The Bank considers the members of the senior
managamant o constitvte kay managameant parsonnel for purposeas ol PAS 24,

The compensation of key management personnal included vender 'Compensation and benefits’ im0 the
staterment al incomea are as lollosws:

2023 2022
Short-term employes banalits P 5. 766,872 P 4447 T4
Past-employment benedits 83,683 314,925
Total P 5.850,555 P 4. 762,639
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Tha Bank also provides banking services o directors and other key management personnal and persons
connecled o Rem. These ransachorns are presented in the Labdas that fallows.

26. RECLASSIFICATION OF ACCOUNTS

Cerlain amounts in he comparative linancial statements and note disclosures have bean reclassilead 1o
corlanm W e curant year's F:I'E'_'-.‘EI"II!EIIIIJr'I. F.."IEIr'IElgErrIEr'II. beliensas that the reclassifcations rasultad o a bedler
prasantation of accounts and did not have any impact on prior year's profit or loss.

Cerlaim prior year amounts have bean reclassilied to align with the current year's presamntation. Thesa
reclassifications had no allect on the reporied resulls of operations. Adpstments have been made o tha
Statements of Financial Positicn and Statermeants of Cash Flows Tor the hiscal year endad Decembsar 37, 2022,
Thase changes in classilicathon do not affect previously reporad linancial statements.

Z7. DIHER MATIERS

1. Ant-Money Laundering Act (AMLA)
The Bank had completely satislied the reporing reguirements as required by the Bangko Seniral ng
Filipinas (BSP) and RA 8160 as amandeaed by RA 8194 otharsise known as the Anti-Money Laundearing

2. As of December 371, 2023, all of the Bank’'s directors had undergone the requirements for corporabe
gowverranca as confirmed by the Monetary Board as mandated by Saction 132 of the MORE.

Reveniue Regulation (RR) Ao 15-2070
On Movembar 25, 2000, the BIR issued RE 15-2010 |'.'I'I"E‘_~|"Cr'll‘.'li ng the manrsar al r_‘ﬂ-r'npliﬂ rnce in o carnnecian swith
the preparation and subrmission of financial statamants accompanying tha tax returms. U incledes provisions
lor addiboral disclasure reguirerments in the nates o the inancial statements, parﬁ:‘:l.llﬂrly an EeEes arnd
licensas paid or accrued during tha e

Earcentage Taxes (Gross Beceipl Taxl
Under Section 121 of the MNational Inernal Revenwe Code, thare shall be tax on gross receipts derived from all
sources within the Philippines by all banks and non-bank financial imermediaries in accordance with the

lollowing rates:

a.] On interest commissions and discounts from lending activities as well as incomea rom linancial leasing.
on the basis of remaimning maturities of instruments from which such receipt are darived:

Maturity parnod af Tive (5) years or less 5%
haturity period is more than five [(5) 1%
bBo) O dividends. e o

c.) On royalies, remals of property, real or personal, peofit from
exchange and all cther items treated as gross income under Section

iZ2 ol the T
e} On net rading gains within the laxable year on loreign currency, debl

securilies, derivatives and otber sirmilar financial

BPISEFLIFFIEIFIES oot s oo e e e s e e 7%

GRT in 2023 consists of taxes an:

Tax Base GRT
IAlerest iroorme F 12,051,742 P 197,643
CHBer income 13,050,361 561,107
T ozl = 25i1ﬂ'2|1f.|3 = BEEIT!‘}D
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Documentary Stamp

Pursuant to revenue regulation No. 13-2004 dated December 23, 2004 © Implemening prowvisions of Baepublic
Act N0 9243, an add rationalizing the provisions of the documentary stamp @x of the Iinternal Revenuwe Code of
1297 (as amendad], balow are some of the crcular affecting the operation of bank and non-bank linancial
imermediaries:

1 . i af|LoEw [ B[] [} = ] il il s L L ot

Thare shall ba wo pesos (F2.00) on each two hoendred pesos (@ 200.00) or fracticnal part thereol of the par
value of such shares of siock. Providaed that in casa of original issue of shares of stocks withowl par value, thea
arfrour of documentary stamp herean preschbed shall be based upon the actual consideration Tor thea
1Isswarce of such shares ol stocks. Provided Turber thatl n the case of siock dividends, or the aciual valus

reprasented by each shara.

Section 55 of Republic Act No 10863: New Rabe of DST on all Debt Instruments (Documents, Loan

One peso and hilty centavas (B1.50) on each two hundred pesos (# 200000) or any fractional part thereol of
ther issue prca of any such debl instrument. If the debt instrument has a matunty date of less than o (1)
year, the DST dusa shall be computed based on the number of days the nstromeant is cutsianding as a fraction
off 365 days.

Tha componanis of ‘"Taxes and licenses” recognized in tha statemeant of incomea for tha year endad Dacembsar
31, 2023, lodlow:

Taxes and Licenses

2023

a. Lacal

Business Parmit P 161,925

Real Property Tax 10,633

Mhers 12,481
b. Maticnal

Parcenta e Tax 764, 594

Anrual Registrabaon-BIR E,Eﬂﬂ_
Total-Taxes and Licenses [ G52, 133
Withholding Tares
The Bank todal withholding taxes pasd Tos the year 2023 15 beokandown as Tollows:
Wilhhulﬂirlg Tax an Campensation = -
Withiolding Tax al Sources 226,218
Fimal Wirnthhaldireg Tasx | Interaest and Dividands) 310,544
Tkl | 53'EI?EE

Tax Assessmenls and Casas
A al December 37, 2023, the Bank has no oultstanding assessment ratice Trom the BIR or cases in cowrt or
bodieas oulside the BIR.

Revernue Regulation (RR) No 19-20717

The Bank reported the fodlowing schedules and nformation on taxable ncome and dedoectible expenses 0 bea
laken in 2023 and Z022:

Sl of SEerrces
Tha Bank's laxable sale ol servicas amountaed to 24 901,178, and income subjact 1o final income tax and ara
exampt from &< amounted to P406 864 for the year endad Deacembar 31, 2023
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Cost of Services

2023
Details of the Bank™s lax deductible cost ol services accounls are as lollowss:
Direct Charges - Salanas and wages P 7,619,450
Direct Charges - Insurance (PDIC) 294,382
Diract Charges — Supervision Fea 21,130
Direct Charges - others (inmerest expense net of 20% limith

Interest expansea 926,648
Lexss: Lirmal [20% al mberes) income sub). bo linsal tas) 101,741

Total P 8,750,869
Memirzed Deductrons

2023
Insurance- Others P 207 387
Power, Light and Waler 338 585
Litigation Exparmas 710,447
Stationeries and Supplies Usad 127, 8899
Janitorial and Security &G04, 907
F sl and Lubricants 180,710
Paostage. Telephone, ard Telagram 88,236
Managemen: and Olher Professional Faes 866,600
Travehng Expansea &08,048
Fepairs and Rainlanarstsa 1,406,032
Representation and Emertaanment 62 496
Information Technolegy Expense 174, 825
Membership Fees and Duas 22,120
Advertising and Publicity 151,967
Droratbore: and Charitabla Contributions 95,000
Fines,. Panalties and Oiher Chargas 80,103
Taxas and Licensas 52,132
Deprecialion 212 494
Oher Expanses 1,081,477
Bad Dsabls 2,994, 566
Fenlal 106,800
T ol P 11,073, 840

28. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION RECHUIIRED UNDER BSP CIRCULAR NC. 1074

On February 7, 2020, thae BSP issuvad Circular Mo, 1074 10 amend certamn perovisions of the MORB and Marnual
of Requlatons for Foresgn Exchange Transacons (MORFXTI. Tha Circular provides for new and armearsded
drsclosure regurements 1o thae audited fmancial statements, which are o be presamed aither () on specilic
naotes o the hinancal statements, ar (i} m a separate naole comtaining supplementary mlformation as requared
by the BSP. This supplamantary indormation is not a reguired disclosure under PFRS.

In compliance wath he requiramants selt forth by Circular Mo, 1074, heraundar are tha sopplamentary
infarmatian:

Financial Perlormance

The Tollowing basic ratios measura the inancial performance of the Bank:

2023 2022
A Return on Average Equily 14.19% 3.03%
B. Raturn on Sverage Assets 3.47% 0.71%
C. Met Interast Margin 6.72% 6.27%%
D Dab Lo Equity Ratio 2T7T1.79% 350.85%

Pags 40 of 45

Page | 189




Tha Bank's ROE, ROA and MNel Interest Margm Ratio as at December 37, 2023 and 2022 was computed as

lolbowes:
Return on Average Equity (ROE)

Formula: ROE = Nel Imncome alter Tax §f Average Capital

2023 2022
Bl I oime P E.0E3 O 1,345,906
Equity
2023 51,001 G885
20232 45,118,889 45 115 869
2021 43,738 258
Tonal 87,01 544 B ESE 147
Seerace Eoquity P 48,500,772 F 44 428,073
Rleturm on Aorerage Equiky 14.18% 3.03%
Return on Average Assats (ROA)
Formula: ROA& = Nel Incorme alter Tax § Average of Tolal Assals
2023 2022
M Irscoeme P & B3 OB P 1345 906
e
2023 192,885, 755
2023 208, 421,739 20E, 4210, 739
2021 178,310,985
Tonal 306,311, 6504 3E . TIZ DS
Saeer e A G els g 188, 186, T62 P 180,866, 347
Returm oo Aorerage ASsels 34T G T1%
Net Interast Margin
Formula: Met Intarast Margin Ratio = Met Imarest Income’ Avaerage Earrmng Assals
Formula: Averagae Eaming Asseaels = Due From Othar Banks+ Loans + Held 1o Matunity Financial Assals
2023 2022
Mt Irier &S Inoome P 12288171 P 11077, 712
Interest Earmings Asseis
2023 176,271,078
o b 188 438 373 188 436 373
2021 164, 752 0191
Tenal 364, 07 448 55 1HE IR
Sacerage Inberest Earmings Agsers P 182,353,724 P 176,594,152
Met Interest Margin B.T2% B. 279
Capital Insirments
A ol Decaember 31, 2023 and 2022, the Bank share capalal consist of -
2023 2022
Shares* Sumount Shares* Sumount
authoresd:
Common slock - P00 par walue 200, O S0, RO D00 A D0 S0 CHCC D00
Prefarrad stock - 100 par wales 50,00 5,000,000 50, 00D 5, 000,000
Subscribed and paid-up:
Commaon stiock 200, O S0, U D0 A DO S0 CHOCE O
Prefarmed stock S0, 00 S, O D00 A0 050 4, kS D00
Balance &t the end of the wear 250,00 25, O D00 240050 2 S, D00

bl muvniar of shares
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dovements of commo and prefermed shock are showne belfmas

Commeoin Shosk

2023 2022
Shares Aumoaunt Shares Aumoaunt
January 1 200, 0k 20, OO DO 2000000 20, GO D0
Issuance - - - -
Decembsr 31 200,05 S0, CHOC D0 O D0 S0 O D0
Prefarmed Stock
2023 2022
Shares Aumaunt Shares Aumaunt
January 1 A0, 050 4, CCkS D00 28, 324 2. 832 400
Issuance = L] San, D00 11, F&a 1.1 82600
Decemixer 31 50, O & OO D0 -H-I}.IJhl'_'l 4, OCkS D00

Thare ara capital nstruments issued by he Bank in year 2023 and 2022,

As ol December 31, 2023 and 2022, information on the concantration of cradil as W indostry, et ol unearnead

discouwnts and delerred credits, Tollows:

As o Concentration of Credits to Certain Industry'Economic Sector:

Percentage per tolal loan partfolio 2023 Fa 2022 “a
Agriculture, Forestry & Fishing [ ] 11,197,787 8.8¥% 11,804 530 12.871%
Wholesale & Retasil Trade, Repair of Maobor

wehicles, Motorcycle 19,826, 352 1T.489%: 30, 7HE 164 15367
Marmnufscturing T. 1. TEE B.7T% 6, 370000 G6.97%
Feal Estaste Ao tivities 42 617 6878 IT A% 170047349 18.680%
Drbuer Sarvice Activities 2.B12073 2.4T% 1828 THE 2.00%
Consirmciion 14,742 965 12. 6% 12,772 3249 15.87%
Transportation amd Storage 1,384 352 1.32%, 2,308 843 FEEFW
Information and Communicatiom X 7TET A4 X 3% &, EQ7. 074 4 055
Fisancial and Insuramces Activibies X 024, 92T Y 0005
Accomodation & Food Services Aclivities 3. 538, 255 3I.19% 0005
Activities of Househaolds Tor o Luse 3,121,646 2.74% 4,773 480 5.32%
Taodal P 113,816 550 100 % 591,431 A9 100005
Percentage per lier 1 capital 2023 T 2022 T
Agriculure, Foresery & Fishing [ 2] 11,197, 78T 21.60% 11,804 530 26 25
Wholesale & Retail Trade, Repair of Maotor

wehicles, Motorcycle 19, 6026, 302 A8 435 30,786 164 BE.40%
Marmnufscturing T. 1. TEE 14.87T%: 6, 370000 14.15%
Feal Estaste Ao tivities 42 617 6878 B 18% 170047349 IT.7E%
Drbuer Sarvice Activities 2.B12073 E.42% 1828 THE 4 D5
Consirmciion 14,742 965 28 4% 12,772 3249 28.38%
Transportation and Storage 1,384, 362 2.8T% 2,398 843 5.35%
Information and Communicalion 3,737,841 T.21% 3.691.0749 B.20%
Financial and Insuramce Activities 3024 92T 5.B¥% 0.00%
Accomodation & Food Services Activities X AR 2EE P e 0005
Activities of Households for owen use X A2, 646 (=i Y 4 773 40 10E1%
Tostal P 115010, 600 591,437 8pa
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Tha BSF considars thal significant credil exposuras exists whean tolal loan exposura 10 a parcudlar economic
seclor exceads 300 ol the tolal loan portfolio ar 10% of Tier 1 Capital.

As atl December 31, 2023, one (1) of the indusires exceaeding 30,0 percent of the total loan portfolio and (e
(5] industries excaseding 100 parcant of the Bank’s Tier 1 Capital.

Breakdown ol Ialal loans as o securily and status

The [ollovang table shows the breakdown of recenvable rom cuslomears as o secured and wnsecured arsd the
breakdown of secured recaivables rom Ccustoamers as o the type of Ssecunty as af Decamber 37, 2023 arnd
2022 Classihcation of laans: (Met of Unamorized Discounts)

As Lo Maturity:

n0Zxy nE2
Due within ore (1] pear =] 1,454 847 P 1,424 457
Due Beyond ore (1] year o fve (5 pears 112,461,743 o0, 007 452
Total Loan Porfolio P 115,916 650 P 21,431 8540
As o Status

Pl ] i ]
Cuarent Lo s [ B, 543 723 P B, 402 632
Past Due LA 14,588 EE1 3,789 700
nems in Litigation a,.484 216 Q230 5ETF
Tolal Loan Portfalio P 113,516,650 P 21,431 8559
AS Lo Securty:

i e | i ]
S Linda [ 102, THI 684 P B4, 327 528
Lirrses e 11,132 8906 F2 10HE_ 341
Total Loan Porfolio P 115,916 650 P 21,431 8540
As o type of security:

i e | i ]
REM P 102, X308 274 P B, B0d G244
Chatbal 1 1
Hold-out .
Crthears 445 409 517,804
Total P 102, T8I 624 P 69,322 520
The Tolkownng table shows thae breakdown of recenvable rom customears gross ol urnearmed discounts
and deferred credns as 1o performmg and non-perlorming as of December 31, 2023 and 2022:

A 2023
Prodect | ina Perfarming Mon-Performing Taotal

Agrarian Reform loans P 31584950 P x| ANT P 3,446 BTT
Orfuer Aagricultural Credin Loans 0,528 596 1,314 918 10,841 611
Microfinance Loans T 456 T34 1,048 380 0, 408 123
Small Scake Enterprise Loans 5,506.9178 1,248 653 &, 246 G612
Medium Scale Enterprise Loans 5 416 196 - 5 418 196
Loans to Individwals Tfor Housing Purposss 8, T3 053 1,603 985 28, 777,038
Loans to Individwals for Personal Purposes a5x TXFE 2. 244 87T 3,087 603
Loans to Indisidwals for Other Purpsoses A, 027 320 R i 45,087 931
Taodal P Q-E*‘_".ﬂ?.{r'lﬂ P 1T 808 57T P 11!.51&%
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Product Line

20232

Perlorming R Performing otal
Sgrarian Refanm kbans P 2,841,530 P 142860 P £, 287 559
Cnbeer fagricudiural Credl Lodans 4, 445, FO0 4.59F 2E5 9,037 984
Blicralines mos Losns BED TO5 3 E16. 550 4, 486 185
Smaall Scale Ermerprise Loars 4. 55 318 2,0 S 860 &G1E.170
Bdediurm Scake Enberpriss Loans 6, 3700000 &, 3700000
Liares Wy Individuals far Housing Puiposes 2,982 074 2,9082.074
Lo riess e indivicluals for Personal Purposes 1171030 3, 60Z 450 4 T3 480
Loars Wy Individuals for Other Purpases 44,517 375 8.378914 52,886 485
Tienal P ET.E’.‘I 162 P E-ﬂ' IO0F P o1 431 859

As reguired by BSP, the Bank disclosaes loan transactons with invesiees and with cenain directors, officers,
stockholders and related imearests (DOSRI). Existing banking regulations limit the amownt of individoal loans bo
D5 R1, T0.00%: of swhich must be secuwred, o the olal ol thesr raspactive deposits and book value ol thea

respecting invastments in the lending company withan the Bank.

In the aggregate, loans o DOSREI generally should not exceed total aguity or 15.00% ol wial loan portfolio.
whichewar is lower. As al Decamber 371, 2023 and 2022, the Bank has no DOSRI acoouwnts.

2023

Particulars

DOSRI Laans

Related Party
Loans
(imnclusive of
DODSRI Laans)

ﬂl.ll'_'t'.‘taru:ling Laans

| 1,691,352

| 1,591,352 |

DOSREVRelated Party loans

Percent of DOSRIIRelatesd Partyloans to total loan portfolio 1.49% .49
Percent of unsecurad DOSRIRelated Party loans o total
DOSRVRelated Party loans 4. TE% 4. T 635
Fercent of past due DOSREUV Related Party loans to total
DOSRVRelated Parly loans OLID0%GE LER i
Percent of non-performing DOSRIRelated Party loans o total

0.5 0. DN

2022

Farticulars

DR Loans

Felated Party
Lozans
[ireclusive al
OSSR Laarns)

Chulstanding Loans

P 2,175 856

= 2,175,856

Parcanl o DO5RE|/Ralated Partyloans to lodal loan porialio 2.38"%, 2.38%
FParcent of unsecurad DOSRVRelated Party lcans o todal DOSREVRa|atad

Farty loarrs 4. 76"% 4. TE6%
Farcent of past due DOSRE Ralatad Pary loans 10 total DOSRVRelated

Farty loares 0. o0 S 0.00%:
Farcent of mon-parfarming DOSRIRelated Pamy loans 1o total

DOSREIVRalated Party loans 0.0, 0005,
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Agoregate amownt of secured liabdities and assets pledged as security

A5 of Dacembar 31, 2023 and 2022, the Bank has no securad liabilities and assats pledged.

Thais accoun consists of-

a.) The Bank is a plaintill to varows cases arising from thae collection suits pending in cowrts Tar claims against
dalinquent borrowears of the bank. The final decision of which cannod be datermined at present. The amaount aof

b.) The Bank has no pending legal caseas arising from its normal operation that will put the bank as defendant
as a result af violation of ransactions against its clienms! depaositors.

.} Tha Bank had no outstanding issuances of bank guararmesa and othear similar credit instruements that will put
the bank ino abligation in case of non-compliance by the buyer.

d.) The Bank has no contingent acoownts for the years ended Decermmber 31, 2023 and 2022,
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